
 

 

If you would like to attend this meeting as a member of the public, please contact 
Democratic Services by telephone on 01775 764454705 or via email at  

demservices@sholland.gov.uk 

 

AGENDA 
 
 
 

 
 

Committee - GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 
Date & Time - Thursday, 29 July 2021 at 4.00 pm 
 

Venue - Marquee Suite, Springfields Events & 
Conference Centre, Camelgate, Spalding, 
PE12 6ET 

 
 

Membership of the Governance and Audit Committee: 
 
Councillors: J R Astill (Vice-Chairman), F Biggadike, C J T H Brewis, T A Carter 
(Chairman), M Hasan, M D Seymour and S C Walsh 
 
Quorum 3. 

 
 

 Persons attending the meeting are 
requested to turn off mobile telephones  

 
 
 
 
 
Democratic Services 
Council Offices, Priory Road 
Spalding, Lincs PE11 2XE 
 
Date:  21 July 2021 

Public Document Pack

Page 1



AGENDA 
PLEASE NOTE TIMINGS 
ARE APPROXIMATE 
 
TIME 
4.00 pm 1.  Apologies for absence. 

  
 

4.01 pm 2.  Declaration of Interests -  
(Where a Councillor has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest 
the Councillor must declare the interest to the meeting 
and leave the room without participating in any 
discussion or making a statement on the item, except 
where a Councillor is permitted to remain as a result of a 
grant of dispensation).  
 

 

4.02 pm 3.  Minutes -  
To sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting 
held on 11 March 2021 (copy enclosed). 
 

(Pages 5 - 
16) 

4.05 pm 4.  Progress Report on Internal Audit Activity -  
To examine the progress made between 2 March 2021 
and 20 July 2021 in relation to the completion of the 
revised Annual Internal Audit Plan for 2020/21 (report of 
the Head of Internal Audit enclosed). 
 

(Pages 17 
- 34) 

4.15 pm 5.  Follow Up Report on Internal Audit Recommendations -  
To provide members with the position on the progress 
made by management in implementing agreed Internal 
Audit recommendations as at 31 March 2021 (report of 
the Head of Internal Audit enclosed). 
 

(Pages 35 
- 46) 

4.25 pm 6.  Annual Report and Opinion 2020/21 -  
To provide the Council with an Annual Report and 
Opinion for 2020/21, drawing upon the outcomes of 
Internal Audit work performed over the course of the 
year.  The report also concludes on the Effectiveness of 
Internal Audit (report of the Head of Internal Audit 
enclosed). 
 

(Pages 47 
- 64) 

4.35 pm 7.  Annual Treasury Management Review 2020/21 -  
To consider the Annual Treasury Management Review 
for 2020/21 prior to it being submitted to Council for 
approval (report of the Treasury and Investment 
Manager (PSPS) enclosed). 
 

(Pages 65 
- 80) 

4.45 pm 8.  Strategic and Annual Internal Audit Plans 2021/22 -  
To provide an overview of the stages followed prior to 
the formulation of the Strategic Internal Audit Plan for 
2021/22 to 2024/25 and the Annual Internal Audit Plan 
for 2021/22. 
 
The Internal Audit Plan provides the basis for the Annual 

(Pages 81 
- 106) 

Page 2



Audit Opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness 
of South Holland District Council’s framework of 
governance, risk management and control. 
 
(Report of the Head of Internal Audit enclosed). 
 

4.55 pm 9.  Q4 Strategic Risk Report -  
To provide an update to the Committee on the progress 
of the Council’s identified strategic risks (report of the 
Executive Manager for Growth enclosed). 
 

(Pages 
107 - 128) 

5.05 pm 10.  Q1 Strategic Risk Report -  
To provide an update to the Committee on the progress 
of the Council’s identified strategic risks (report of the 
Executive Manager for Growth enclosed). 
 

(Pages 
129 - 150) 

5.15 pm 11.  Counter-Fraud and Corruption Policy -  
To introduce the recently reviewed Counter-Fraud and 
Corruption Policy at South Holland District Council 
(report of the Head of Internal Audit enclosed). 
 

(Pages 
151 - 170) 

5.25 pm 12.  20/21 Financial Statements -  
The Committee will receive a verbal update on the 
current position. 
 

 

5.35 pm 13.  2019-20 Annual Audit Letter -  
To note the Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 
March 2020 (report of EY enclosed). 
 

(Pages 
171 - 190) 

5.45 pm 14.  2020/21 External Audit Plan -  
To note the Provisional Audit Plan for year end 31 March 
2021 (report of EY enclosed). 
 

(Pages 
191 - 234) 

5.55 pm 15.  Governance and Audit Committee Work Programme -  
To set out the Work Programme of the Governance and  
Audit Committee (report of the Assistant Director –  
Governance (Monitoring Officer) enclosed).  
 

(Pages 
235 - 240) 

5.57 pm 16.  Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent. 
-  
 
 
NOTE: No other business is permitted unless by 

reason of special circumstances, which 
shall be specified in the minutes, the 
Chairman is of the opinion that the item(s) 
should be considered as a matter of 
urgency. 

 

 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



- 38 - 
 

 

Minutes of a meeting of the GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE held in line 
with The Local Authorities & Police & Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local 
Authority & Police & Crime Panel Meetings) (England & Wales) Regulations 2020, on 
Thursday, 11 March 2021 at 4.00 pm. 
 

PRESENT 

  
T A Carter (Chairman) 

J R Astill (Vice-Chairman) 
 

 

P A Redgate 
 

M D Seymour 
 

S C Walsh 
 

 

In Attendance:  F Haywood (Internal Audit Manager, Eastern Internal Audit Services), 
the Strategic Finance and Compliance Manager, the Acting Director, the Head of 
Finance, the Financial Control Manager, the Senior Change, Innovation and 
Performance Business Partner, the Democratic Services Manager and the 
Democratic Services Team Leader. 
 
 
 Action By 

34. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS   

  

 There were no declarations of interest.   

   

35. MINUTES   

  

 Members commented that, during discussion of the Follow Up 
Report on Internal Audit Recommendations at the meeting on 14 
January 2021, it had been noted that Recommendation 3 within 
Audit Area SH2015 (Disaster Recovery) was outstanding. The 
recommendation was that ‘The Council would work with PSPSL to 
identify potential opportunities for the relocation of the network 
cabinet that is located within the cleaners’ storeroom’.  At the 
meeting, members had questioned why the network cabinet had 
to be moved when it would be easier to instead move the 
cleaners’ storeroom – this comment had not been included within 
the minutes and it was requested that this be added, prior to the 
minutes being signed by the Chairman.  
 
AGREED: 
 
That the minutes of the meeting of the Governance and Audit 
Committee held on 14 January 2021 be signed by the Chairman 
as a correct record, following the addition of the following wording 
at minute number 30: 
 

 With regard to item SH2015 (recommendation 3) on page 89 
of the agenda, members commented that rather than moving 
the network cabinet from the cleaners’ storeroom, it would be 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CM  

Page 5

Agenda Item 3.



- 39 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
11 March 2021 

 

 

 

easier instead to move the cleaners’ storeroom to a different 
location.  It was requested that this suggestion be taken 
forward with officers.    

   

36. Q3 STRATEGIC RISK REPORT   

  

 Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Manager 
for Growth, which provided an update to the Committee on the 
progress of the Council’s identified strategic risks.  
 
The Senior Change, Innovation and Performance Business 
Partner provided the Committee with the following updates:  
 

 Overall the majority of the risk movements in the report related 
to the current Covid-19 pandemic in areas such as 
vulnerability and leisure compliance.  

 A new risk had been added covering the separation of the 
SHDC and Breckland Council partnership, highlighting any 
impact that this might have on the current shared working 
model and the services of the shared management team. This 
would continue to be monitored closely over the coming 
months to mitigate against any service impact during the 
separation.   

 The likelihood score around cyber security risk had also 
increased. Whilst there were no internal concerns currently, 
there had been a national increase in cyber threats, and it was 
therefore considered prudent to increase the likelihood of the 
risk at this stage. 

 The risk around Parkwood Leisure Provision had increased 
due to the closure of facilities caused by the Covid-19 
pandemic, but it was felt that this risk would reduce once 
lockdown easing started.  

 There was also a risk around failing to meet regulatory 
compliance which had increased in likelihood largely due to 
the understanding that elections were to go ahead in May.  
This would place a strain on the Governance and Democratic 
Teams who had to ensure that the whole process would be 
Covid-safe, which, in itself, would bring added complications 
and risks.  

 Finally, the risk around the failure of the Council to deal with 
more than one significant incident simultaneously had been 
reduced. The rationale for this was that during Quarter 3, a 
number of incidents had been dealt with in parallel, such as 
the problems caused by bad weather, whilst dealing with the 
ongoing pandemic, and it had therefore been decided that the 
risk be reduced. 

 
Following consideration of the report, and the information 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



- 40 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
11 March 2021 

 

 

 

provided by the officer, the following issues were raised: 
 

 Members asked if there was anything further to report with 
regard to the local economy, in addition to the information 
included within the report. 

o The Executive Manager for Growth confirmed that 
officers continued to remain in close contact with 
employers and businesses at this time. To date, £6 
million in grants had been given to businesses, and 
it was understood that more grants would soon be 
available. 

 

 Members questioned why, following the recent issue with 
emails, the technology infrastructure failure scores of ‘Impact’ 
5, ‘Likelihood’ 2 remained the same as within the previous 
quarterly report.  Depending on when the incident had 
occurred, it was felt that this risk should have risen.  

o The Senior Change, Innovation and Performance 
Business Partner suggested that there was a 
possibility that an interim assessment had taken 
place.  He would clarify when the incident had taken 
place and the resulting potential impact, and report 
back to all members. 

 
AGREED: 
 
That the content of the report be noted.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CG  

   

37. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2020/21 ACCOUNTING POLICIES   

  

 Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director 
Commercialisation (S151) which asked the Committee to review 
and agree the Accounting Policies for inclusion in the Financial 
Statements 2020/21. 
 
The Deputy Head of Financial Services informed the Committee 
that the accounting policies applied to all material balances and 
transactions within the Financial Statements. The policies 
remained the same as in the 2019/20 statements which had 
recently been authorised. The external treasury advisors (Link 
Asset Services) reviewed the Code of Practice each year and 
made suggestions for the production of the statements. Any such 
suggestions would be considered, and any relevant changes 
made before bringing the draft Financial Statements to the next 
meeting of the Committee for consideration.  
 
The Strategic Finance and Compliance Manager informed the 
Committee that the 2019/2020 Year End Audit had been 

 
 
 
 
 
ES  

Page 7



- 41 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
11 March 2021 

 

 

 

completed. Ernst and Young had provided a Final Audit Results 
Report which showed three unadjusted differences.  

1. Overstatement of short-term creditors – this had been 
included within the November report and was an 
extrapolation of a data set. The accounts had not been 
adjusted as it was felt that this was not a true reflection of 
what adjustment would be required; 

2. Understatement of pension liability (McCloud & Goodwin) – 
this related to an ongoing legal case regarding inequality 
for age discrimination. Following an updated pensions 
liability report issued in Autumn 2020 it had been agreed 
not to adjust the accounts on the basis of immateriality, 
and it was only an estimate and as such the amount may 
not be a true reflection of the adjustment required. There 
was no overall impact on Council’s reserves as a result of 
undertaking or not undertaking the adjustment; 

3. Misclassification between Property, Plant and Equipment 
and Investment Property – this referred to industrial units in 
the Council’s portfolio, built as starter units for economic 
regeneration purposes, not for investment property 
purposes. It had been agreed that a revision of that 
valuation would take place in the 2021 audit and accounts 
process but there would be no impact in the Council’s 
balance sheet, as it would be a transfer of assets from one 
category to another; 

4. Understatement of Valuation of Property, Plant and 
Equipment – this referred to a site that was not easily 
accessible and there had therefore been an issue in 
detailing exactly what the site contained. It had been 
agreed with the auditors in the 2021 process to undertake 
a thorough review of that site and clarify what the asset 
was. 

 
AGREED: 
 
That the Accounting Policies for 2020/21, included at Appendix A 
of the report, be agreed.  

   

38. PROGRESS REPORT ON INTERNAL AUDIT ACTIVITY   

  

 Consideration was given to the report of the Head of Internal 
Audit, which examined the progress made between 5 January 
2021 and 2 March 2021, in relation to the completion of the 
revised Annual Internal Audit Plan for 2020/21. 
 
The Internal Audit Manager provided the Committee with the 
following updates:  
 

 

Page 8



- 42 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
11 March 2021 

 

 

 

 A summary of the number of days which had been able to be 
delivered as part of the programmed work was 100 days, 
equating to 69% of the revised plan. This was a much better 
position than had been reported in January. 

 Two final reports had concluded in this period. The first report 
was ‘Accounts Receivable’ which had achieved a ‘reasonable’ 
assurance grading with three ‘important’ recommendations 
being raised, and two ‘needs attention’ recommendations. The 
second report was ‘Corporate Governance’ which had 
received a ‘substantial assurance’ grading with two ‘needs 
attention’ recommendations.  

 The Procurement and Contract Management Position 
Statement had been completed and would be brought to the 
Committee at the next meeting.  

 Regarding the executive summaries of the reports finalised 
during the period there were three important 
recommendations:  

o In relation to transfers between accounts this would be 
subject to independent scrutiny; 

o In addition to the urgent recommendations of the 18/19 
Review of Financial Services, it had been established 
that the system was capable of enforcing those controls 
but until those systems were put in place, additional risk 
mitigation would be needed; 

o An audit trail was to be retained by the officer preparing 
write-offs. 

 The Assurance Review of Corporate Governance 
Arrangements had received a ‘substantial’ assurance.  
Guidance had been issued for Local Authorities on how to 
respond to the pandemic - South Holland District Council had 
followed these well, and within the positive findings of the 
report it had been noted that virtual meetings had been very 
successful. Two ‘needs attention’ points had been raised - 
firstly, it was recommended that the lessons that had been 
learned over the last year during the pandemic be fed into the 
Business Continuity Plan moving forward, and secondly, that 
an annual reminder be sent out to all members to update their 
register and disclose pecuniary interests - it was noted that 
this action had already been undertaken. 

 Information on the Assurance Mapping Exercise had been 
provided to members in full, in order to provide detail on how 
the Council had responded at the outset of the pandemic – 
this piece of work had been used to illustrate how Internal 
Audit coverage was used in the current year, and how this 
would feed into planning for 2021/22. 

 
Following consideration of the report, and the information 
provided by the officer, the following issues were raised: 

Page 9



- 43 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
11 March 2021 

 

 

 

 

 One of the issues to be addressed (at page 64 of the agenda), 
related to the new Finance system, and mitigations that were 
in place – was progress on this being made? 

o The Internal Audit Manager responded that one of 
the recommendations to be completed by March 
related to reminders that were sent out, and 
evidence being retained to show that the 
authorisation matrix was being reviewed each time 
purchase orders and accounts received invoices 
were raised.  This was a key control, and the item 
was being progressed. 

 

 Members commented that, with regard to annual reminders 
being sent out to all members to update their register and 
disclosure of pecuniary interest, it was encouraging to note 
that this had been addressed. 

 

 Members commented that it was good to note how well virtual 
meetings had been undertaken at the Authority. 

 
AGREED: 
 
That the progress of the Internal Audit Plan of work for 2020/21 
be noted.  

   

39. FOLLOW UP REPORT ON INTERNAL AUDIT 
 RECOMMENDATIONS  

 

  

 Consideration was given to the report of the Head of Internal 
Audit which provided members with the position on the progress 
made by management in implementing agreed internal audit 
recommendations as at 2 March 2021  
 
The Internal Audit Manager advised that, since the January 
meeting, many of the recommendations had moved forward to the 
completion stage, thanks to the hard work and quick response of 
officers providing the necessary evidence. A risk mitigation 
column had been added to some of the recommendations so that 
it was clear what was happening with them. 
 
Following consideration of the report, and the information 
provided by the Internal Audit Manager, the following issues were 
raised: 
 

 The Chairman thanked officers for the effort that had been put 
into the addition of the risk mitigation section, and the 
thorough content within it. 

 

Page 10



- 44 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
11 March 2021 

 

 

 

 

 Attention was drawn to the outstanding action around Data 
Protection, and completion of Information Asset Registers. 
How could the Committee assist? 

o Officers advised that the Information Governance 
Officer was liaising with Data Champions to assist in 
moving this action along.   

 The Chairman responded that she would discuss the situation 
with the Internal Audit Manager, with either Data Champions 
being asked to attend the next meeting or discussions to take 
place mid-way between this and the next meeting of the 
Committee. 

 

 Members questioned what the Council’s plans were for the 
separation of SHDC and Breckland from an IT perspective, 
specifically regarding backups, and the data held by SHDC 
regarding Breckland and vice versa.  

o The Strategic, Finance and Compliance Manger 
confirmed that there was a large piece of work being 
undertaken with regard to the separation of the two 
authorities, of which separation of IT was one of the 
areas being addressed.  A comprehensive piece of 
work was underway to ensure that all linked 
systems across both authorities were separated 
correctly. 

 

 Members again questioned the issue of the removal of the 
network cabinet from the cleaners’ storeroom, and whether 
this suggestion had been passed forward since being raised at 
the January meeting. 

o The Internal Audit Manager agreed that it was a 
pragmatic suggestion which had been passed on.  
She agreed to pursue this and obtain feedback for 
the next meeting. 

 

 The Chairman questioned item SH2010 on page 91 of the 
agenda (Procurement and Contract Management) which 
stated, under Risk Mitigation, that it had been proven that the 
annual review of spend had bought up less ‘maverick’ spend 
every year for the last few years.  Clarification was asked for 
as to what happened when this type of spend occurred, and 
some context around the issue was requested.  

o The Internal Audit Manager was not able to provide 
context but would discuss the situation with officers 
and report back to the Committee. 

 

 The Internal Audit Manager stated that a number the new 
financial system recommendations at Appendix 1 had moved 

Page 11



- 45 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
11 March 2021 

 

 

 

forward to completion as the system was now capable of the 
controls required.  She had researched the progress of the 
system, and the Head of Financial Services at PSPS, who was 
the Project Sponsor, had been invited to the meeting to 
provide an update. 

 
A presentation was given by the Head of Financial Services 
(PSPS) on the FinVis20 Project, and the following update was 
provided:  
 

 The current financial system (AX) had reached the end of its 
contract term and was to be replaced with the Unit 4 Business 
World (U4BW) system. PSPS had engaged Embridge 
Consulting to support the implementation. The project was to 
be delivered via a joint PSPS/Embridge Project Team and 
overseen jointly between PSPS, SHDC and East Lindsey 
District Council (ELDC) via the Project Board.   The new 
system would be implemented across PSPS, ELDC and 
SHDC, as well as Welland Homes and South Holland Homes.  

 

 The project had 4 stages – Evaluate; Adapt; Test; and Deploy. 
Since the project began, two events had occurred which had 
delayed the live date. The first was that the initial testing of the 
system identified issues with the initial build design. The initial 
build centred around a single client database. Testing found 
that the controls were unsatisfactory and the Project Board 
approved a re-build changing the emphasis to a multi-client 
data base option. The build phase and IST (Integrated System 
Testing) phase were therefore repeated and the project 
deadline extended to a new ‘go live’ date of 31 October.  The 
second event was the Covid pandemic. It had been necessary 
to provide extra support to the Council during this time and it 
was not possible to set aside the resources needed for the 
project. The Project Board approved deferral to April 2021. 

 

 During the User Acceptance Testing phase, to date, 2011 
tests (99% of the total) had been completed – of these, 255 
defects had been found but this level of defects was not 
unusual, and was to be expected. 18 defects were still being 
worked on, and these were split into 4 categories: Critical 
(may have an impact on “go-live”) – 2 defects; Major (do not 
impact on “go-live” but would impact the day to day use of the 
system) – 9 defects; Minor (may have some impact on the 
effectiveness of the system) – 4 defects; and Cosmetic (have 
no impact on the functionality but focus on the look and feel of 
the system) – 3 defects. 

 The original Project Scope identified 18 interfaces. 4 were de-
scoped and 2 added, therefore 16 interfaces now formed part 

Page 12



- 46 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
11 March 2021 

 

 

 

of the project. Testing of the interfaces was ongoing.  
 

 The final pre-go live phase was now underway. Over 200 
specific tasks still had to be completed, more frequent 
meetings were taking place, and a final decision on whether to 
go live would be made at board level. The Launch would take 
place between 1 April and 28 May. That time would be used to 
finalise any defects, fix issues, complete training etc.  

 
Following the presentation provided by the Head of Financial 
Services, the following issues were raised: 
 

 The Chairman questioned whether there was sufficient 
mitigation in place to avoid any issues with regard to the 
raising of invoices, purchase orders etc, when the new system 
went live. 

o Officers advised that all users had been advised to 
process as many payments as possible prior to closure 
of the old system. It was confirmed that a process 
would be in place to capture all invoices to ensure that 
payments could be made via Chaps and BACS, to 
make sure that all payments could be made.   

 

 The Chairman commented that a list of 40 enhancements had 
been raised – were  all of the outstanding issues detailed 
within the audit report being dealt with as part of this? 

o Officer responded that the vast majority were.  The 
main issue (which was not a system enhancement) was 
the ‘No Purchase Order/No Pay’ issue – it was 
essential that where a service/payment was required, a 
Purchase Order was produced. It was important that 
this requirement was incorporated into processes in 
order to have proper controls in place – although it may 
take some time to embed this, it was being addressed.    

 
AGREED: 
 
That the contents of the report be noted.  

   

40. INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN UPDATE 2021/22   

  

 Consideration was given to the report of the Head of Internal 
Audit which provided the Committee with an update on Internal 
Audit planning for 2021/22 and outlined the approach taken to 
provide adequate assurance coverage. 
 
The Internal Audit Manager advised that the results of 2021 would 
be bought back to the next meeting in June with a plan of work for 

 

Page 13



- 47 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
11 March 2021 

 

 

 

the next year. Where risks had been identified these would be 
incorporated into the plan, which would also look back at 
assurances provided over the past year.  The approach for the 
forthcoming year would be pragmatic, in view of the difficulties 
presented over the past year as a result of the Covid-19 
pandemic. 
 
The Chairman highlighted that suggested areas for review were 
detailed at section 2.7 of the report, and that if members had any 
further suggestions for areas to review, that they contact the 
Internal Audit Manager or the Democratic Services team. 
 
AGREED: 
 
That the approach to Internal Audit planning for 2021/22 be noted.  

   

41. WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY   

  

 Consideration was given to the report of the Head of Internal 
Audit which introduced the recently reviewed Whistleblowing 
Policy at South Holland District Council. 
 
The Internal Audit Manager advised that the Policy had been 
revised and updated to include Officers’ titles and telephone 
numbers.  Little overall change was needed to what had been a 
robust policy, agreed by the Committee three years ago. 
 
Since publication of the agenda, officers had been advised of the 
following additional changes – 1) to include the Chief Executive of 
PSPSL on the summary table at Appendix 1; and 2) that 
Safeguarding Policy and procedures should be reflected, and a 
paragraph added to this effect.  
 
It was noted that, when the new staffing structure was in place, 
following the separation from Breckland Council, that the 
information within the report would have to be updated.  
 
AGREED: 
 
That the Policy be noted, and the updates approved.  

 

   

42. GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE WORK 
 PROGRAMME  

 

  

 Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Manager – 
Governance (Deputy Monitoring Officer), which set out the Work 
Programme of the Governance and Audit Committee. 
 

 

Page 14



- 48 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
11 March 2021 

 

 

 

The schedule of meetings for 2021/22 was now available, and 
dates for future Governance and Audit Committee meetings had 
been added to the Work Programme. Regular items had been 
transferred from the 2020/21 municipal year to the appropriate 
meeting dates for the new municipal year. Contributors were 
requested to confirm that the reports, and the meeting dates on 
which they were to be reported, were correct. 
 
AGREED: 
 
That the report be noted.  

   

43. ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE 
 URGENT.  

 

  

 There were no urgent items.   

   

 
(The meeting ended at 5.10 pm) 
 
(End of minutes) 
 
 
 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



 
Report of: Head of Internal Audit for South Holland DC  
 
To:    Governance and Audit Committee 29 July 2021 
 
Author:  Faye Haywood, Internal Audit Manager 
 
Subject: Progress Report on Internal Audit Activity 
 
Purpose: This report examines the progress made between 2 March 2021 and 20 July 

2021 in relation to the completion of the revised Annual Internal Audit Plan for 
2020/21. 

 

 
Recommendation(s):  
 
1) That members note the completion of the internal audit plan of work for 2020/21. 
 

 
1.0 BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 The Governance and Audit Committee receive updates on progress made against the 

annual internal audit plan. This report forms part of the overall reporting requirements to 
assist the Council in discharging its responsibilities in relation to the internal audit activity.  

 
1.2 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards require the Chief Audit Executive to report to the 

Governance and Audit Committee the performance of internal audit relative to its agreed 
plan, including any significant risk exposures and control issues. The frequency of reporting 
at South Holland is to each meeting.  

 
To comply with the above the report identifies:   

o Any significant changes to the approved Audit Plan; 
o Progress made in delivering the agreed audits for the year;  
o Any significant outcomes arising from those audits; and 
o Performance measures to date. 

 
2.0 CURRENT PROGRESS 
 
2.1 The 2020/21 Internal Audit Plan is complete.  

 
3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
3.1 The Governance and Audit Committee are requested to receive and note the final 2020/21 

Progress Report on Internal Audit Activity.  In doing so, the Committee is ensuring that the 
Internal Audit Service remains compliant with professional auditing standards and are 
fulfilling their terms of reference. 
 

4.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 Corporate Priorities 
 
4.1.1 Internal Audit helps to ensure that the service areas reviewed and ensuring that they are 

working towards the efficient and effective delivery of the Council’s corporate priorities. 
 
 

Page 17

Agenda Item 4.



4.2 Financial  
 
4.2.1 The Internal Audit Plan has been delivered within the approved budget for 2020/21. 
 
4.3 Risk Management  
 
44.3.1 Internal Audit planning starts with the Council’s key risks, which then directs the audit plan 

for the financial year. Internal Audit reports then identify risks and control weaknesses 
within the Council which are highlighted in this report, with appropriate management action 
being agreed to mitigate these risks within agreed timeframes. 

 

Background papers: - None 

 

Lead Contact Officer 
Name and Post: Faye Haywood Internal Audit Manager for South Holland DC 
Telephone Number: 01508 533873 
Email: fhaywood@s-norfolk.gov.uk 
 
Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting Faye Haywood, Internal Audit Manager for 
South Holland DC 
 
Key Decision: No 
 
Exempt Decision: No 
 
Appendices attached to this report:  Progress Report on Internal Audit Activity 
 

 

Page 18



   
 

Page 1 of 15 
 

Eastern Internal Audit Services 

 

 
South Holland District Council 

Progress Report on Internal Audit Activity 

Period Covered: 2 March 2021 to 20 July 2021 

Responsible Officer: Emma Hodds – Head of Internal Audit for South Holland District 
Council 

 

CONTENTS 

1. INTRODUCTION ............................................................................................................ 2 

2. SIGNIFICANT CHANGES TO THE APPROVED INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN ................... 2 

3. PROGRESS MADE IN DELIVERING AUDIT WORK………………………………..2 

4.  THE OUTCOMES ARISING FROM OUR WORK ........................................................... 2 

APPENDIX 1 – PROGRESS IN COMPLETING THE AGREED AUDIT WORK .................. 6 

APPENDIX 2 - EXECUTIVE SUMMARIES INTERNAL AUDIT REPORTS…………..7 

 

  

Page 19



   
 

Page 2 of 15 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1 This report is issued to assist the Authority in discharging its responsibilities in 
relation to the internal audit activity.  

1.2 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards also require the Chief Audit Executive to 
report to the Audit Committee on the performance of internal audit relative to its plan, 
including any significant risk exposures and control issues. The frequency of 
reporting and the specific content are for the Authority to determine. 

1.3 To comply with the above this report includes:  

 Any significant changes to the approved Audit Plan; 

 Progress made in delivering the agreed audits for the year; 

 Any significant outcomes arising from those audits; and 

 Performance Indicator outcomes to date. 

2. SIGNIFICANT CHANGES TO THE APPROVED INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 

2.1 The revised Annual Internal Audit Plan was approved on 26 November 2020, to 
respond to the Coronavirus Pandemic. Since then there have been no significant 
changes made to the plan.  

3.  PROGRESS MADE IN DELIVERING THE AGREED AUDIT WORK 

3.1 Appendix 1 covers progress made against the revised 2020/21 internal audit plan. A 
total of 85 days of work has been allocated to Eastern Internal Audit Services (EIAS) 
to be delivered by TIAA ltd. A total of 65 days has been allocated to Audit 
Lincolnshire (formally East Lindsay District Council).  

Audit Lincolnshire’s coverage includes the testing of key financial systems managed 
by Public Sector Partnership Services (previously Compass Point Business Services) 
on behalf of South Holland District Council.  The Head of Internal Audit places 
reliance on the work carried out by Audit Lincolnshire when concluding on the overall 
Internal Audit Opinion. Progress in relation to completion of this work is provided to 
the Committee in quarter four.    

3.2 In summary:  

A total of 145 days of programmed work has been completed by Internal Audit 
equating to 100% of the (revised) Audit Plan for 2020/21.  

4.  THE OUTCOMES ARISING FROM OUR WORK 

4.1 On completion of each individual audit an assurance level is awarded using the 
following definitions: 

 Substantial Assurance: Based upon the issues identified there is a robust series of 
suitably designed internal controls in place upon which the organisation relies to 
manage the risks to the continuous and effective achievement of the objectives of the 
process, and which at the time of our review were being consistently applied. 

 Reasonable Assurance: Based upon the issues identified there is a series of 
internal controls in place, however these could be strengthened to facilitate the 
organisation’s management of risks to the continuous and effective achievement of 
the objectives of the process. Improvements are required to enhance the controls to 
mitigate these risks. 

Page 20



   
 

Page 3 of 15 
 

 Limited Assurance: Based upon the issues identified the controls in place are 
insufficient to ensure that the organisation can rely upon them to manage the risks to 
the continuous and effective achievement of the objectives of the process. Significant 
improvements are required to improve the adequacy and effectiveness of the 
controls to mitigate these risks. 

 No Assurance: Based upon the issues identified there is a fundamental breakdown 
or absence of core internal controls such that the organisation cannot rely upon them 
to manage risk to the continuous and effective achievement of the objectives of the 
process. Immediate action is required to improve the controls required to mitigate 
these risks. 

4.2 Recommendations made on completion of audit work are prioritised using the 
following definitions: 

 Urgent (priority one): Fundamental control issue on which action to implement 
should be taken within 1 month. 

 Important (priority two): Control issue on which action to implement should be 
taken within 3 months. 

 Needs attention (priority three): Control issue on which action to implement should 
be taken within 6 months. 

4.3 In addition, on completion of audit work “Operational Effectiveness Matters” are 
proposed, these set out matters identified during the assignment where there may be 
opportunities for service enhancements to be made to increase both the operational 
efficiency and enhance the delivery of value for money services. These are for 
management to consider and are not part of the follow up process. 

4.4 During the period covered by the report Internal Audit has issued two reports, one of 
these is in draft awaiting management responses as can be seen in the table below:   

 Audit Assurance P1 
 

P2 P3 

Asset Management (DRAFT) Reasonable 0 3 3 

Remote Access Reasonable 0 2 0 

The Executive Summary of these reports are attached at Appendix 2, full copies can 
be requested by Members. 

4.5       As can be seen in the table above, as a result of these audits eight recommendations 
have been raised and agreed by management. 

4.6 In addition, one Operational Effectiveness Matter has been proposed to management 
for consideration.  

4.7        Within this period, two position statements have been issued for Procurement 
Contract Management, and Coronavirus Response and Recovery. Coronavirus 
Response and Recovery remains in draft at the time of writing this report. We have 
however provided the suggested improvement actions for all position statements 
below: 

 

 

 

Page 21



   
 

Page 4 of 15 
 

            Procurement Contract Management 

            The following actions have been suggested in relation to Procurement and Contract 
Management at South Holland District Council: 

 Take into account the potential impacts of the decision of both Councils to pursue 
new strategic partners, current and future resourcing levels and updating assigned 
responsible officers, including on Pentana. 
 

 Ensure provision is put in place in the longer term for procurement and contract 
management at both Councils, with the requisite skills and knowledge of 
procurement rules and regulations and contract management.  
 

 Note the action taken for an initial review of both Councils’ Constitutions with the 
purpose of looking for references to joint working/shared arrangements between 
South Holland and Breckland and the impact of any decisions made by the 
Government (e.g. Green Paper), following the UK’s departure from the EU.  
 

 Both Councils review their Procurement and Commissioning Intentions documents to 
ensure they are reflective of current practices, including any Government guidance; 
either as a consequence of the COVID-19 Pandemic or the UK’s departure from the 
EU, and to ensure contact details are correct once the future of the procurement and 
contract management function has been determined.  
 

 Access to the In-Tend system will need to be revisited once resourcing implications 
have been agreed/implemented, following the longer-term service provision as a 
consequence of both Councils arrangements for new strategic partners.  
 

 Formal controls will need to be put in place going forward in relation to existing 
contracts – both short and longer term, to ensure that they are closely monitored so 
that any nearing expirations are being identified and correct arrangements are put in 
place for future provision.  
 

 Consideration should be given to: 
 

i. Presenting the Exemptions Register to the respective Governance and Audit 
Committees for information and oversight on all exemptions to Contract 
Standing Orders. 

ii. That all Request for Exemption Forms are signed by the delegated approving 
officers rather than being supported by emails, even if signed retrospectively.  

iii. That details of the officers approving the exemption be recorded on the 
Exemptions Register for improved audit trail.  

 
Coronavirus Response and Recovery 
 
The following actions have been suggested in relation to Coronavirus Response and 
Recovery at South Holland District Council: 
 

 A lessons learnt exercise be undertaken as to how the Council responded to COVID-
19 including determining what worked well/went well and what could have been/ 
could be done better in the future; and how things worked with third parties such as 
the Lincolnshire Resilience Forum. This could also include, for example, how the 
Council would react/respond, should a secondary event occur whilst responding to 
another pandemic. 
 

Page 22



   
 

Page 5 of 15 
 

 Undertake a review of all Business Impact Assessments and Business Continuity 
Plans in light of their effectiveness during COVID-19, and to provide copies to the 
Council’s Emergency Planning Officer. 
 

 Consider undertaking a Business Impact Survey to obtain information about the 
impacts on local businesses or understand what support businesses will need 
afterwards, to respond to further changes such as reopening at the end of the 
furlough scheme.  
 

4.8 The Audit Lincolnshire Audit reviews for 2020/21 have been completed and reviewed 
by the Head of Internal Audit for South Holland. Reliance has been placed on the 
work and the overall grading for each report is indicated below: 

Audit Report Grading 

Revenues and Benefits Substantial  

Housing Rents  Reasonable 

Accounts Payable Limited 

Accountancy Services Substantial 

 Revenues & Benefits 

One medium recommendation was raised in relation to backdate assessments. In 
one case a backdate had been applied without saving the relevant notes to 
demonstrate the decision and another case where backdated assessment was 
incorrectly assessed.   

Housing Rents 

One medium recommendation has been raised in relation to Accounts in credit. The 
audit identified that there were several accounts with large credits. Ten of which were 
over £1500 totalling more than £24,000 and, in all cases, eligible for a refund.   

Accounts Payable 

This report remains in draft at time of writing this report. Details of findings raised and 
shared with management are as follows.  

 An urgent priority finding has been raised in relation to supplier set up’s and 
changes to ensure that these are reviewed to prevent fraud from occurring. 
This recommendation has been raised in previous audits.  
 

 A urgent recommendation has been raised relating to the identification of two 

retrospective purchase orders being raised after the invoices received. A ‘no 

purchase order no pay’ policy is due to launch in January 2022.  

Accountancy Services  

 No recommendations were raised.  

 

 

 

 

Page 23



   
 

Page 6 of 15 
 

 5. PERFORMANCE MEASURES – Eastern Internal Audit Services  

5.1 The Internal Audit Services contract includes a suite of key performance measures 
against which TIAA will be reviewed on a quarterly basis.  

5.2 There are individual requirements for performance in relation to each measure; 
however, performance will be assessed on an overall basis as follows: 

 9-11 KPIs have met target = Green Status. 

 5-8 KPIs have met target = Amber Status. 

 4 or below have met target = Red Status. 

Where performance is amber or red a Performance Improvement Plan will be 
developed by TIAA and agreed with the Internal Audit Consortium Manager to ensure 
that appropriate action is taken. 

5.3 The Internal Audit Team has experienced delays in completing and finalising the 
work throughout 2020/21. However, all audits assigned have now been completed. A 
total of three reports (Coronavirus Response and Recovery Asset Management and 
Accounts Payable) from 2020/21 remain in draft at the time of writing this report.  

Whilst the delays have not caused performance to reach amber or red status, 
discussions have been held with the contractor with the aim of ensuring next year’s 
plan can be delivered by year end for 2021/22. We do recognise that 2020/21 has 
been a difficult year due to the pandemic, and late start of the revised Internal Audit 
Plan however we have received assurances that the contractor is committed to 
preventing the issues faced this year from reoccurring.  

Page 24



   
 

Page 7 of 15 
 

APPENDIX 1 – PROGRESS IN COMPLETING THE AGREED AUDIT WORK  

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 25



   
 

Page 8 of 15 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 26



   
 

Page 9 of 15 
 

APPENDIX 2 – AUDIT REPORT EXECUTIVE SUMMARIES   

DRAFT Assurance Review of the Asset Management Arrangements 

Executive Summary 

 

OVERALL ASSURANCE ASSESSMENT ACTION POINTS 

 

Control Area Urgent Important Needs Attention Operational 

Policies & Procedures 0 1 0 0 

Leases 0 0 2 0 

Access Rights 0 0 1 0 

Maintenance and 

insurance 

0 2 0 0 

Total 0 3 3 0 

 

SCOPE 

The audit reviewed the systems and controls in place within Asset Management to help confirm that these are operating adequately, effectively and 
efficiently. The scope of the audit included strategies, policies and procedures, realising social value, roles and responsibilities, acquisitions and disposals, 
lease renewals, rent, voids/re-letting and rental arrears and dilapidations, maintenance and insurance, property valuation, and asset reconciliation. 

 

 

P
age 27



   
 

Page 10 of 15 
 

RATIONALE 

 

 The systems and processes of internal control are, overall, deemed 'Reasonable’ assurance in managing the risks associated with the audit. The assurance 

opinion has been derived as a result of three 'important' and three 'needs attention' recommendations being raised upon the conclusion of our work. 

 This area was given a limited assurance grading in 2017/18 (SH/18/09) having raised five ‘Urgent’, two ‘Important’ and one ‘Needs attention’ 

recommendations. A follow up review was undertaken as part of the 2018/19 audit plan, focusing specifically on progress with the previous eight 

recommendations. The outcomes of that review were reported in a Position Statement (SH/19/04) issued April 2019. It concluded that some recommendations 

were still to be implemented including review and update of the Asset Management Strategy (AMS).  

 The overall assurance also takes in to account the fact that two previous audit recommendations remain outstanding; one with a revised implementation date 

agreed (end of May 2021) in respect of lease renewals and one superseded with an expanded recommendation in this report, in respect of further updating 

the AMS.   

 It is recognised that the overall level assurance has improved since the original review in 2017/18, with clear evidence of progress having been made, 

although further work is still required, in particular, to implement the one outstanding previous recommendation and those included as a consequence of this 

current review.        

POSITIVE FINDINGS 

 

It is acknowledged there are areas where sound controls are in place and operating consistently: 

 An Interim Recovery Management Arrangements governance structure was put in place in response to the outbreak of Covid-19. Within the current interim 

structure, the Executive Manager Property and Development has oversight of the Property, Building and Partners Mobilisation Cell, while the Place Manager 

is responsible for the Housing and Homelessness Cell, at the Council.  

 From 1
st
 May 2021, a new structure will be put in place whereby South Holland District Council (SHDC) and Breckland Council (BC) will become two separate 

entities. In the new structure, Executive Director Place and Delivery will have complete oversight of SHDC communities, operations and housing. 

P
age 28



   
 

Page 11 of 15 
 

 An Asset Register is in place which has details of the SHDC’s donated, owned, freehold, and lease own assets. The Asset Register includes details such as 

the asset purchase cost, gross book and net book values, depreciation, date purchased and date capitalised. This ensures the Council’s assets are accurately 

accounted for. 

 Rent review is included in the updated lease tenancy agreement(s) with rent review date(s) being the third anniversary of the date of commencement of the 

lease term. 

 Reminder letters are sent to tenants, thereby ensuring rent arrears are pursued.  

 A deposit is obtained from new tenants leasing the industrial units, which helps recoup any monies for rent owed or damages to the property.  

 The new Letting Policy reflects a modern standard commercial approach to letting of the industrial units with tenants no longer having automatic right of 

renewal. This makes the industrial units available for letting in accordance with the new policy thereby providing the flexibility of realising social value on new 

letting. 

 The fixed asset register is reconciled to the General Ledger annually. 

ISSUES TO BE ADDRESSED 

 

The audit has highlighted the following areas where three 'important' recommendations have been made. 

Policies and Procedures 

 The AMS be updated and this should incorporate the Asset Management Procedure, Land and Property Policy and the Land Sales Procedure thereby 

ensuring consistent approach to asset management across the Council. The completion of the AMS has been raised in the two previous audit reviews and 

although had been considered to have been implemented, along with the Corporate Land and Property policy, it required further amendment to reflect the new 

Corporate Plan and strategic aims of the Council. This included maximising support for the affordable housing programme, to fulfil the objectives of the 

Business Plan and support strategic business opportunities.   

Maintenance and Insurance 

 The overdue actions in the health and safety inspection action plan be completed.  

 A planned maintenance programme be developed for relevant assets and this be subjected to regular review, to reduce the risk of health and safety issues 

and asset deterioration. 

 

P
age 29



   
 

Page 12 of 15 
 

The audit has also highlighted the following areas where three 'needs attention' recommendations have been made. 

Leases 

 The schedule of assets be updated to include annual service charges where appropriate, to ensure adequate monitoring of lease performance.   

 Recovery report be signed off by the recovery manager to evidence that tenants in arrears have been chased by the Council reducing the risk of potential loss 

of income to the Council. 

Access Rights 

 The Asset Register be password protected with access only granted to relevant staff at the Council to reduce the risk unauthorised access to the Asset 

Register. 

Operational Effectiveness Matters  

There are no operational effectiveness matters for management to consider. 

Previous audit recommendations 

The audit reviewed the previous internal audit recommendations and confirmed that two remain outstanding. The first relates to the review of leases which had been 

extended to 31
st
 March 2021 for implementation. Following an update from the Strategic Asset and Compliance Manager, the deadline was extended to 31

st
 May 

2021. The second recommendation relates to the completion of the AMS and is referred to above with a new recommendation raised in this report.  

 

Other issues noted 

 A properties and contents insurance policy is in place covering the period of 4
th
 May 2020 to 3

rd
 May 2021. However, evidence of renewal beyond the current 

expiry date was not provided.   

 The asset register has been updated in accordance with the 31
st
 March 2020 asset valuation report. However, evidence of subsequent / ongoing valuations, 

was not provided.

P
age 30



   
 

Page 13 of 15 
 

Assurance Review of Remote Access 

Executive Summary 

 

OVERALL ASSURANCE ASSESSMENT ACTION POINTS 

Control Area Urgent Important Needs Attention Operational 

Policies and Procedures 0 1 0 0 

Remote Access 

Monitoring 

0 1 0 0 

Total 0 2 0 1 

 
No recommendations were raised in the area of Network Protection, Access Controls 

and Remote Access Change Controls 

SCOPE 

The objective of the audit is to review the adequacy, effectiveness and efficiency of the systems and controls in place within the Council, with particular focus 

on how they have changed as a result of the coronavirus pandemic.  The audit looked at the following areas: Policies and Procedures, Remote Access 

Monitoring, Remote Access Change Controls, Network Protection; and Access Controls. 

P
age 31



   
 

Page 14 of 15 
 

RATIONALE 

 

 The systems and processes of internal control are, overall, deemed 'Reasonable Assurance' in managing the risks associated with the audit. The assurance 

opinion has been derived as a result of two 'important' recommendations being raised upon the conclusion of our work. 

 The audit has also raised one 'operational effectiveness matter', which sets out matters identified during the assignment where there may be opportunities for 

service enhancements to be made to increase both the operational efficiency and enhance the delivery of value for money services. 

POSITIVE FINDINGS 

 

It is acknowledged there are areas where sound controls are in place and operating consistently: 

 We noted that Council staff are effectively agreeing to all relevant IT polices, including the Remote Access Policy, whenever they log into the Council network. 

 Logs of remote access connections are retained and are available for review on demand.  It is also noted that there is an information security function that is 

responsible for log reviews to detect potential anomalies that may require further investigation. 

 Public Sector Partnership Services Ltd. (PSPSL), who provide support for the Council’s IT infrastructure, has implemented processes whereby it is possible 

for up to 500 remote access connections to be running at the same time.  They have advised that their peak connections has been between 150 and 200.  

Hence, there is capacity to support more than twice that number. 

 We have noted the presence of appropriate change management policies and procedures and that 3rd party changes are also subject to those policies and 

procedures. 

 The firewall appliances have Intrusion Detection System (IDS) capability, although this not currently configured.  However, we are advised that this 

functionality will be deployed as part of a wider infrastructure refresh project in 2022.  The project is expected to include the procurement and implementation 

of a replacement firewall infrastructure. 

 We have noted that the Council has undertaken appropriate annual penetration testing as required by PSN.  The current PSN certification expires in February 

2022. 

 The audit noted adequate and effective processes for managing the timely disablement and deletion of leaver network accounts. 

P
age 32



   
 

Page 15 of 15 
 

 We have noted that there is testing of a new two-factor authentication service that is ongoing and progressing well.  All relevant Council devices will be 

required to use this service as part of a staged rollout once the testing has been successfully completed. 

 Third party support providers have an Active Directory network account allocated to them so that they are able to access the systems they support.  The 

accounts are disabled by default and only enabled on request when support is required.  The accounts are configured such that they automatically expire at 

the end of the day, thus disabling the accounts without having to remember to do this manually. 

ISSUES TO BE ADDRESSED 

 

The audit has highlighted the following areas where two 'important' recommendations have been made. 

Policies and Procedures 

 There is a need for PSPSL to work with Council Management to formally approve the Information Security Framework and the related policies that make up 

that framework. 

Remote Access Monitoring 

 There is a need to ensure that the risk of not implementing appropriate resilience in the firewall infrastructure and, hence, the remote access service, is 

formally documented to ensure appropriate accountability for accepting the risk has been documented and is monitored through the Council's risk 

management processes and procedures. 

Operational Effectiveness Matters 

The operational effectiveness matters, for management to consider relate to the following: 

 Consideration to be given to implementing posture checking for remote connections, in particular for devices that are not managed by PSPSL.  An example of 

this is devices used by 3rd parties that connect to the network remotely to provide support for relevant applications. 

P
age 33



T
his page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report of: Head of Internal Audit for South Holland DC 
 
To:    Governance and Audit Committee, 29 July 2021 
 
Author:  Faye Haywood, Internal Audit Manager 
 
Subject: Follow Up Report on Internal Audit Recommendations 
 
Purpose: This report provides members with the position on the progress made by 

management in implementing agreed Internal Audit recommendations as at 31 
March 2021.  

 

 
Recommendation(s):  
 
1) That members note the contents of the report. 
 

 
1.0 BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 The Governance and Audit Committee receives an update on management’s 

implementation of agreed audit recommendations. This report forms part of the overall 
reporting requirements to assist the Council in discharging the responsibilities in relation to 
its Internal Audit Service. 

1.2 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards require the Chief Audit Executive to establish a 
process to monitor and follow up management actions to ensure that they have been 
effectively implemented or that senior management have accepted the risk of not taking 
action.  

1.3 To comply with the above this report includes the status of agreed actions. 

 
2.0  CURRENT PROGRESS 
 

2.1 The Governance and Audit Committee are asked to receive and note the current position in 
relation to the completion of agreed audit recommendations. 

 
3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
3.1 The Governance and Audit Committee are requested to receive and note the Follow Up 

Report on the implementation of Internal Audit recommendations.  In doing so, the 
Committee is ensuring that it is kept up to date and informed as to the extent to which 
management has progressed Internal Audit recommendations as at 31 March 2021. 
 

4.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 Corporate Priorities 
 
4.1.1 Internal Audit helps to ensure that the service areas reviewed are working towards the 

efficient and effective delivery of the Council’s corporate priorities. 
 
 

Page 35

Agenda Item 5.



 
 
4.2 Risk Management  
 
4.2.1 Failure to implement or improve internal controls may lead to the risks associated with 

those controls materialising. 
 

Background papers: - None 

 

Lead Contact Officer 
Name and Post: Faye Haywood Internal Audit Manager 
Telephone Number: 01508 533873 
Email: fhaywood@s-norfolk.gov.uk 
 
Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting Faye Haywood, Internal Audit Manager 
 
Key Decision: No 
 
Exempt Decision: No 
 
Appendices attached to this report:  Follow Up Report on Internal Audit Recommendations 
 

 

Page 36



Page 1 of 10 

 

Eastern Internal Audit Services 

 

 
SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

Follow Up Report on Internal Audit Recommendations 

Period Covered: 2 March 2021 to 31 March 2021 

Responsible Officer: Faye Haywood, Internal Audit Manager 

CONTENTS 

1. INTRODUCTION………………………………………………………………………………..2 

2. FOLLOW UP PROCESS……………………………………………………………………….2 

3.  STATUS OF RECOMMENDATIONS…………………………………………………………2 

APPENDIX 1 – SUMMARY POSITION ALL INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS…4 

APPENDIX 2 OUTSTANDING INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS – 2017/18……5 

APPENDIX 3 OUTSTANDING INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS – 2019/20……6 

 

  

Page 37



Page 2 of 10 

 

1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1 This report is being issued to assist the Authority in discharging its responsibilities in relation 
to the internal audit activity. 

1.2 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards also require the Chief Audit Executive to 
establish a process to monitor and follow up management actions to ensure that they have 
been effectively implemented or that senior management have accepted the risk of not 
taking action. The frequency of reporting and the specific content are for the Authority to 
determine. 

1.3 To comply with the above this report includes: 

 The status of agreed actions.  

2. FOLLOW UP PROCESS  

 Eastern Internal Audit Services Recommendations  

2.1 As a result of audit recommendations raised by TIAA Ltd, management agree action to 
ensure implementation within a specific timeframe and by a responsible officer.  

2.2 EIAS recommendations are subsequently uploaded on to the Council’s performance 
management system – Pentana – with this alerting management to update progress in 
advance of the due date through email alerts. Management action to date is then input with 
internal audit then either verifying the evidence provided and closing the recommendation or 
agreeing to the extension date provided. 

2.3 Ordinarily, escalation is also in place to deal with non-responses or recommendations which 
have been overdue for a long time through the Performance, Risk and Audit Board and 
through the Finance Board as required due to the statutory requirements of the Section 151 
Officer to ensure that appropriate risk mitigation action is being taken. Ultimately further 
escalation is through the Executive Management Team and then the Committee.  

Public Sector Partnership Services (PSPS) Audit Recommendations 

2.4 Audit Lincolnshire (formally East Lindsay District Council) undertake the internal audit 
reviews of the Public Sector Partnership Services key finance functions. Recommendations 
raised are then subsequently monitored by Audit Lincolnshire, with updates provided to the 
Head of Internal Audit for South Holland on a quarterly basis. These recommendations are 
recorded on Pentana, which enables greater oversight by both PSPS and South Holland 
management.  

3.  STATUS OF RECOMMENDATIONS 

3.1 Appendix 1 to this report shows the details of the progress made to date in relation to the 
implementation of all agreed internal audit recommendations and reflects the year in which 
the audit was undertaken to enable the Committee to easily identify old outstanding 
recommendations. The table also identifies outstanding recommendations that have 
previously been reported to this Committee and then those which have become outstanding 
during this period.  

3.2 In 2017/18 a total of 85 recommendations were raised by both internal audit providers.  

Page 38



Page 3 of 10 

 

  Of those, 84 have been implemented by management, one urgent recommendation is 
outstanding.   

3.3 The management responses in relation to the outstanding urgent recommendation can be 
seen at Appendix 2 of the report.  

Number raised  85  

Complete 84 99% 

Outstanding 1 1% 

3.5 In 2019/20 a total of 84 recommendations were agreed. Of these 70 have been completed, 
12 are outstanding (one urgent, 8 important and three needs attention). A total of two are not 
yet due. Outstanding urgent and important recommendations can be seen at Appendix 3 of 
the report.  

Number raised  84  

Complete 70 84% 

Outstanding 12 14% 

Not yet due 2 2% 

3.7  In 2020/21 a total of 20 recommendations have been agreed so far. Of these ten have been 
completed, two needs attention recommendations are outstanding and eight are not yet due.  

Number raised  20  

Complete 10 50% 

Outstanding 2 10% 

Not yet due 8 40% 

3.8 We are pleased to report that good progress continues to be made in addressing historical 
outstanding recommendations. The internal audit team will continue to work with 
management to verify and close recommendations.  In addition, and at the request of the 
committee, Internal Audit continues to request management provide commentary within 
Appendix 2 to show how current risks are being mitigated if recommendations remain open 
where appropriate.  

Page 39



Page 4 of 10 

 

APPENDIX 1 – SUMMARY POSITION ALL INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS  

 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 40



Page 5 of 10 

 

APPENDIX 2 OUTSTANDING INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS – 2017/18 

Audit Area Responsible 
Officer 

Recommendations Priority Status 
Description 

Original 
Date  

Revised 
Date  

Latest Note 

SH1809 Asset 
Management 

Property Services 
Manager 

A programmed review  of all leases 
is to be undertaken, this will 
include; Lease agreements be 
entered into for existing tenants, 
Lease agreements be entered into 
for new tenants and a review of 
rent increments given to long term 
tenants on or before the expiration 
of their current lease period. 

Urgent Outstanding  21/06/2018 30/09/2021 Management update: I can confirm that we are 
now well under way with most tenants and have 
just moved the legal work over to Lincs Legal to 
ensure we can turn them around quickly. Several 
of these have proved difficult due to Covid and 
negotiations taking longer than expected. 
 
The original target date, end of March for 
completion of all new leases became unrealistic 
due to some tenants still unsure whether they 
were going to continue with renting the units. The 
Asset team identified that further resource was 
required so approached Lincs Legal to take over 
all our outstanding legal work. This includes the 
lease arrangements for all the industrial units. As 
of July, Lincs Legal are now fully instructed and 
coupled with tenant demand increasing again, 
we can start gaining significant momentum. I 
have therefore adjusted the target to allow for 
new momentum, reinstructions and revised 
leases to be implemented over the Summer.  
 

 
 
  

P
age 41



Page 6 of 10 

 

APPENDIX 3 OUTSTANDING INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS – 2019/20 

Audit Area Responsible 
Officer 

Recommendations Priority Status 
Description 

Original 
Date  

Revised 
Date  

Latest Note 

SH2002 
Private Sector 
Housing 

Housing Landlord 
Services Manager 

All licenced caravan sites due / 
overdue for inspection are subject 
to the requisite checks forthwith 
with six monthly reports submitted 
to management confirming that all 
schedule inspections have been 
completed in accordance with the 
due dates, having been agreed 
through the risk assessment 
process. 

Urgent Outstanding 31/12/2019 30/07/2021 There are currently 55 caravan sites across the 

district. 50 sites have received inspections and a 

programme approach is being undertaken to 

ensure the remaining 5 sites are inspected. All 

outstanding inspections will be complete by the 

30/07/2021.   
 

Risk Mitigation: 
Once a site is inspected a record is created 

within the Assure system and this also sets a 

reminder for when the site will next be due an 

inspection. The responsible Team Leader & 

Manager have oversight of the system to ensure 

that tasks do not become continually delayed.  

 

SH2003 
Strategic 
Housing 

Shared Strategic 
Housing Manager 

A development strategy be 
produced to define the work of the 
Strategic Housing team, in terms 
of the different development routes 
available, objectives for of 
delivering new housing, the 
considerations in choosing a 
particular development route and 
the approval process to be 
followed. 

Important Outstanding 31/07/2020 31/03/2022 Capacity to deliver this project was impacted by 
the response to the pandemic with relevant 
officers redeployed and a focus in other areas. 
An extension up to 31/03/2022 has been 
requested, with several steps being taken to 
resolve the recommendation.  
 

Risk Mitigation  
A number of key work streams have completed 

or are well underway. Consultation with relevant 

Portfolio Holders is ongoing to ensure they are 

engaged in the process. Decisions on funding 

new schemes, ahead of adoption of the 

Development Strategy, are being taken by 

Council and accordingly there is no risk to the 

authority from the delay to the adoption of the 

strategy. The next steps which are currently 

taking priority include:  

 Preparation of a Housing 

Development Framework for the HRA. 

This framework will agree the 

parameters for the spend of the 

approved capital programme for the 

HRA and will identify the types of 

delivery which should be pursued and 

the appropriate governance route.  

 A review of the SHDC property 

specification to ensure new homes are 

suitable as long-term assets.  

 A review of the shared ownership 

P
age 42



Page 7 of 10 

 

Audit Area Responsible 
Officer 

Recommendations Priority Status 
Description 

Original 
Date  

Revised 
Date  

Latest Note 

sales process to improve the customer 

journey.  

 A longer term strategy for investment 

in Welland Homes. This will include 

agreeing the strategy for reinvestment 

in existing stock (major component 

replacements); disposals strategy; and 

consideration of whether to provide 

further investment to extend the 

current Welland Homes Business Plan 

beyond 60 homes.  

 

It is proposed that a draft Development Strategy 

will be presented to Cabinet and Council in 

September 2021. 

 

SH2008 
Markets 

Environmental 
Services Manager 

Recommendation 2 - Written 
procedures to be produced 
detailing cash collection and 
banking arrangements (including 
recommendations made in this 
audit report). Procedures to also 
clearly define the roles and 
responsibilities of PSPS and the 
Council's Markets, Bus Station and 
Car Parks Inspector and Business 
Support, in the raising of invoices, 
chasing non-payers (permanent 
stall holders) and ensuring all 
income (cash) is correctly 
accounted for. (Refer also to 
recommendation 5 for refunds and 
waivers). 

Important Outstanding 30/09/2020 30/09/2021 It is requested that this recommendation 
regarding procedures be extended to Q2. This is 
because, the strategic direction of the market is 
vital to getting appropriate procedures in place. 
Alongside this, we are working on an online book 
and pay system which is still being built and no 
charges are in place for traders currently. 
Therefore we are unable to put new procedures 
in place and request this extension whilst we 
assess the market future strategic direction 
alongside the TCIP. 
 

SH2008 
Markets 

Environmental 
Services Manager 

Recommendation 5 - The Council 
to request payment in advance of 
trading for all stall holders with 
evidence provided to the Markets, 
Bus Station and Car Parks 
Inspector, to this effect. A 
documented process be put in 
place to offer a refund or waiver 
for payments received but where 
trading had not been possible e.g. 
through inclement weather or 
other justifiable cause. Rationale 
and risk: Requesting payment in 
advance will ensure income due to 
the Council is received thereby 
reducing the risk of debt recovery 

Important Outstanding 31/08/2020 30/09/2021 This recommendation has been taken forward as 
part of the book and pay system which is being 
built. This will require payment at the point of 
booking and the T&Cs will provide details of the 
exceptional circumstances where cancellation 
will be accepted and the credit process that will 
be available in these circumstances. I would 
suggest that the recommendation is extended in 
line with the other for end of Q2 whilst the build 
process is completed alongside decisions which 
are required form members about future 
charges.  

P
age 43



Page 8 of 10 

 

Audit Area Responsible 
Officer 

Recommendations Priority Status 
Description 

Original 
Date  

Revised 
Date  

Latest Note 

being required and or financial 
loss to the Council through 
irrecoverable debts. 

SH2015 
Disaster 
Recovery 

Mark Starkey Recommendation 3: The Council 
to work with PSPSL to identify 
potential opportunities for the 
relocation of the network cabinet 
that is located within the cleaner's 
store room.  

Important Complete 31/12/2020 30/07/2021 The cleaner’s store room has now been 
relocated. The water supply is in the process of 
being moved to a more suitable location and 
limited staff members have access to the locked 
room.   
 

SH2020 Car 
Parks 
 

Environmental 
Services Manager 

The Council to undertake a formal 
review of its cash collection 
services in order to ensure 
compliance with Financial 
Procedure Rules in terms of 
demonstrating value for money 
and openness with competition. In 
doing so, to include any impact 
with cash holdings following the 
introduction in card payments. 

Important  Outstanding 31/01/2021 30/09/2021 The review of this contract was delayed whilst 
we monitored for the impact of card payments 
and the potential for new paid for toilets in car 
park locations. We have recently added pay by 
app options to enable contactless payments 
during the pandemic. We agree that the contract 
needs to be reviewed given the impact that the 
pandemic has had on car park usage and cash 
payments in particular. Therefore we have 
engaged procurement to assist us with this. 
However we are requesting an extension to end 
of Q2 to enable a full review to take place with 
the help of the procurement team and using the 
data collected during the months of the 
pandemic to date, including lockdowns.  
 
 

SH2008 
Markets 

Environmental 
Services Manager 

Recommendation 1 – The Council 
to undertake a strategic review of 
its approach to markets taking in 
to account demand for 
stalls/pitches, alternative locations 
to attract more footfall, costs to the 
Council for running the service and 
levels of income. The review to 
also take in to account the current 
charging arrangements for market 
stalls/pitch rental to determine 
whether there is scope to increase 
revenue whilst at the same time, 
not to deter take up. Once 
complete, the Council to actively 
encourage take up of market 
stalls, both permanent and casual, 
through improved marketing, to 
encourage usage and improved 
footfall and generate additional 
revenue. 

Important Outstanding 31/03/2021 30/09/2021 An extension for this recommendation has been 
requested up to 30/09/2021. The year since the 
audit took place has seen may changes to the 
markets including new strategic directions of 
online applications and book and pay systems 
which are in build phases. There has also been 
a change to the offer at markets, with stalls no 
longer erected for holders in Spalding, a new 
location for Long Sutton, periods of closure and 
free rent for the duration of the pandemic. The 
impact of the pandemic is yet to be fully 
understood and therefore making lasting 
strategic decisions wouldn't seem appropriate at 
this time. Changes continue to be made to 
ensure the markets are thriving where they can 
in this time of uncertainty and ever changing 
regulations. One such piece of work is the 
current review of the handbook and a new 
welcome pack.  
 

PFINACT124a Head of Financial 1.Treasury procedures should be Important Outstanding 31/03/2021 31/08/2021 Extension requested to enable a thorough 

P
age 44



Page 9 of 10 

 

Audit Area Responsible 
Officer 

Recommendations Priority Status 
Description 

Original 
Date  

Revised 
Date  

Latest Note 

Accountancy 
Services 

Services PSPS reviewed to ensure they remain 
reflective of current practice. More 
widely, resilience should be 
considered around the Treasury 
function in the event of the event 
of any long-term absence. 

review of policies to ensure they are reflective of 
the current system and processes 
(currently working through year end closedown 
for 2 clients). They are also 
commencing reconciliations for the first time 
in U4, therefore need time for processes to 

embed.  
PFINACT124b Head of Financial 

Services PSPS 
1 General Ledger policies and 
procedures should be 
updated/documented with the 
implementation of the new 
Finance system. 

Important Outstanding 31/03/2021 31/08/2021 Please see above.   

SH2010 
Procurement 
and Contract 
Management  

Executive Manager 
Governance 

Other than the annual running of 
the aggregated spend report, 
which is a detective control, a 
preventative control be introduced 
to proactively monitor aggregated 
spend in order to ensure 
adherence to Financial Procedure 
Rules, where formal tendering is 
required. This to include 
comparing data from the Council’s 
finance systems and data in the 
Contracts Register on annual 
spend. 

Important Outstanding 01/02/2021 31/05/2021 Following the appointment of an Interim 
Contracts & Procurement Manager, the Contract 
Procedure Rules were reviewed and are now 
going through review approval processes at both 
Councils. One of these changes was to ensure 
that Contract Managers must notify the 
Contracts & Procurement Team if the contract is 
likely to exceed £75,000 (tender threshold), 
when originally it was awarded under that value.  
Also, the Contracts Register is now regularly 
reviewed and a Contracts Scheduler forward 
plan has been created so we can proactively 
discuss contracts with the relevant departments 
in a timely manner to ensure the contracted 
spend is still accurate and discuss future 
procurement requirements for the contract.  
We haven’t been given access to the SHDC 
Finance System yet so that we can view invoices 
in ‘real-time’ but this is something we are looking 
to do. We have been aware that there have been 
some teething issues with the system so we 
shall request this access in the next couple of 
months. Following all of the above, we consider 
this recommendation closed.” 
 

P
age 45



Page 10 of 10 

 

Audit Area Responsible 
Officer 

Recommendations Priority Status 
Description 

Original 
Date  

Revised 
Date  

Latest Note 

 

 

P
age 46



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report of: Head of Internal Audit  
 
To:    Governance and Audit Committee 29 July 2021 
 
Author:  Emma Hodds, Head of Internal Audit  
 
Subject: Annual Report and Opinion 2020/21 
 
Purpose: This report provides the Council with an Annual Report and Opinion for 

2020/21, drawing upon the outcomes of Internal Audit work performed over 
the course of the year. The report also concludes on the Effectiveness of 
Internal Audit.  

 
   

 
Recommendation(s):  
 
1) Receive and approve the contents of the Annual Report and Opinion of the Head of 

Internal Audit. 
 
2) Note that a Reasonable audit opinion has been given in relation to governance, risk 

management and control for the year ended 31 March 2021. 
 
3) Note that the opinions expressed together with significant matters arising from internal 

audit work and contained within this report should be given due consideration, when 
developing and reviewing the Council’s Annual Governance Statement for 2020/21. 

 
4) Note the conclusions of the Review of the Effectiveness of Internal Audit. 

 
1.0 BACKGROUND 
 

1.1 In line with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, which came into force from 1 April 
2013; an annual opinion should be generated which concludes on the overall adequacy and 
effectiveness of the organisation’s framework of governance, risk management and control; 

 A summary of the work that supports the opinion should be submitted; 

 Reliance placed on other assurance providers should be recognised; 

 Any qualifications to that opinion, together with the reason for qualification must be 
provided; 

 There should be disclosure of any impairments or restriction to the scope of the 
opinion; 

 There should be a comparison of actual audit work undertaken with planned work; 

 The performance of internal audit against its performance measures and targets 
should be summarised; and, 

 Any other issues considered relevant to the Annual Governance Statement should 
be recorded. 

1.2 This report also contains conclusions on the Review of the Effectiveness of Internal Audit, 
which includes;  

 The degree of conformance with the PSIAS and the results of any quality assurance 
and improvement programme; 

 The outcomes of the performance indicators; and, 

Page 47

Agenda Item 6.



 The degree of compliance with CIPFA’s Statement on the Role of the Head of 
Internal Audit. 

 
2.0  CURRENT PROGRESS 
 

2.1 The Annual Report and Opinion 2020/21 and the Review of the Effectiveness of Internal 
 Audit are shown in the report attached. 

 
3.0  REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 

3.1 The Governance and Audit Committee, in maintaining an overview as to the quality of 
systems of internal control in operation at the Council, is being requested to note and 
approve the assurance opinion awarded, and confirm that key information provided is 
carried across to the Council’s Annual Governance Statement, which is also considered on 
the agenda.  

3.2.1 The Governace and Audit Committee, in ensuring it fulfils its obligations is being requested 
to review the effectiveness of the Internal Audit service, and to note and approve this 
report. 

 
4.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 Corporate Priorities 
 
4.1.1 Internal Audit helps to ensure that the service areas reviewed and ensuring that they are 

working towards the efficient and effective delivery of the Council’s corporate priorities. 
 

Background papers: - None 

 

Lead Contact Officer 
Name and Post: Emma Hodds, Head of Internal Audit 
Telephone Number: 01508 533791 
Email: ehodds@s-norfolk.gov.uk 
 
Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting Faye Haywood Internal Audit Manager 
 
Key Decision: No 
 
Exempt Decision: No 
 
Appendices attached to this report:  Annual Report and Opinion 2020/21 
 

 

Page 48



   
  

Page 1 of 16 

 

Eastern Internal Audit Services 

 

 
 

SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

Annual Report and Opinion 2020/21 

Responsible Officer: Emma Hodds – Head of Internal Audit for South Holland DC 

 
CONTENTS 

 

1. INTRODUCTION ....................................................................................................... 2 

2.  ANNUAL OPINION OF THE HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT .................................... 2 

2.2  The opinion itself .................................................................................................. 3 

3.  AUDIT WORK UNDERTAKEN DURING THE YEAR ............................................... 3 

4.  THIRD PARTY ASSURANCES ................................................................................ 6 

5.  ANNUAL REVIEW OF THE EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL AUDIT ................... 6 

APPENDIX1 – AUDIT WORK UNDERTAKEN DURING 2020/21 .............................. 10 

APPENDIX 2 ASSURANCE CHART .......................................................................... 12 

APPENDIX 3 – LIMITATIONS AND RESPONSIBILITIES .......................................... 15 

 

  

Page 49



   
  

Page 2 of 16 

 

1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require that “a relevant authority must undertake 
an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, control and 
governance processes, taking into account public sector internal auditing standards or 
guidance”. 

1.2 Those standards – the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards - require the Chief Audit 
Executive to provide a written report to those charged with governance (known in this 
context as Governance and Audit Committee) to support the Annual Governance Statement 
(AGS). This report must set out:  

 The opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s framework of 
governance, risk management and control during 2020/21, together with reasons if 
the opinion is unfavourable; 

 A summary of the internal audit work carried from which the opinion is derived, the 
follow up of management action taken to ensure implementation of agreed action as 
at financial year end and any reliance placed upon third party assurances; 

 Any issues that are deemed particularly relevant to the Annual Governance 
Statement (AGS); 

 The Annual Review of the Effectiveness of Internal Audit, which includes; the level of 
compliance with the PSIAS and the results of any quality assurance and 
improvement programme, the outcomes of the performance indicators and the 
degree of compliance with CIPFA’s Statement on the Role of the Head of Internal 
Audit. 

1.3 When considering this report, the statements made therein should be viewed as key items 
which need to be used to inform the organisation’s Annual Governance Statement, but there 
are also a number of other important sources to which the Governance and Audit Committee 
and statutory officers of the Council should be looking to gain assurance.   Moreover, in the 
course of developing overarching audit opinions for the authority, it should be noted that the 
assurances provided here, can never be absolute and therefore, only reasonable assurance 
can be provided that there are no major weaknesses in the processes subject to internal 
audit review. The annual opinion is thus subject to inherent limitations (covering both the 
control environment and the assurance over controls) and these are examined more fully at 
Appendix 3. 

2.  ANNUAL OPINION OF THE HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT 

2.1  Roles and responsibilities 
 

 The Council is responsible for establishing and maintaining appropriate risk 
management processes, control systems, accounting records and governance 
arrangements. 

 The AGS is an annual statement by the Leader of the Council and the Chief 
Executive that records and publishes the Council’s governance arrangements. 

 An annual opinion is required on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the 
Council’s framework of governance, risk management and control, based upon and 
limited to the audit work performed during the year. 
 

This is achieved through the delivery of the risk based Annual Internal Audit Plan discussed 
and approved with the Management Team and key stakeholders and then approved by 
Governance and Audit Committee. 

Page 50



   
  

Page 3 of 16 

 

The original Internal Audit plan was approved at the meeting held in March 2020. As the 
Covid-19 pandemic forced the UK into lockdown at the end of March 2020, the Internal Audit 
Team revised the Internal Audit plan with senior management to ensure that the coverage 
more accurately reflected the key risks facing the Council at that time and that Officers were 
able to focus on the immediate response to the Covid-19 pandemic.  

The revised 2020/21 Internal Audit Plan was approved by the Governance and Audit 
Committee in November 2020. A reduction of 80 days was agreed, and the plan split into 
five key themes to provide adequate coverage over the Governance, Risk Management and 
Control framework informing this opinion.   

This opinion does not imply that internal audit has reviewed all risks and assurances, but it is 
one component to be considered during the preparation of the AGS. It is important to note 
that the decrease in days is in response to unprecedented circumstances and represents the 
minimum assurance required to form an opinion on the governance, risk management and 
control framework for 2020/21. We have been able to revert to our usual levels of audit 
coverage in the 2021/22 Internal Audit Plan.  

Governance and Audit Committee should consider this opinion, together with any 
assurances from management, its own knowledge of the Council and any assurances 
received throughout the year from other review bodies such as the external auditor.  

2.2  The opinion itself 

The overall opinion in relation to the framework of governance, risk management and control 
at South Holland District Council is Reasonable. This conclusion has been reached by 
considering the following points, which are further expanded in section 3.4 of the report. 

During 2020/21 a total of nine assurance reviews have been completed at South Holland 
District Council. Eight of these reports concluded in a positive assurance grading. One 
review Accounts Payable received a limited assurance grading. For three areas; Corporate 
Governance, Revenues and Benefits and Accountancy Services a Substantial assurance 
grading was given.  

A total of three reports have been issued to management for consideration but remain in 
draft at time of writing this report. They are for Asset Management, Coronavirus Response 
and Recovery, and Accounts Payable.  

In none of the areas reviewed as part of the revised 2020/21 Internal Audit Plan did the 
findings indicate that the Covid-19 pandemic had severely impacted the Council’s ability to 
deliver core services to its residents however the Council’s budgeting challenges as a direct 
result of the pandemic have been highlighted and an internal audit review of budget 
sustainability is scheduled for 2021/22 to provide assurance over this risk. 

We have been able to conclude a Reasonable assurance grading overall for the Council’s 
Governance, Risk Management and Control framework by considering that in all but one 
area audited, a positive assurance grading has been given.   

This opinion has been discussed with the Section 151 Officer, and Senior Management prior 
to publication. 

3.  AUDIT WORK UNDERTAKEN DURING THE YEAR 

Page 51



   
  

Page 4 of 16 

 

3.1 Appendix 1 records the internal audit work delivered during the year on which the opinion is 
based. In addition, Appendix 2 is attached which shows the assurances provided over 
previous financial years to provide an overall picture of the control environment. 

3.2 Internal audit was divided into five broad themes for the revised 2020/21 plan in response to 
the risks facing the Council from the Covid-19 pandemic;  

Theme  Audit  
Theme 1: Assurance 
Mapping 

A questionnaire style enquiry was carried out to gather 
information and determine any changes to the control 
environment and document any available assurance 
showing that controls are working effectively. One area of 
focus was to evaluate the strength of controls for the 
prevention of fraud and support staff with remote working. 
   

Theme 2: Key 
Controls  

In order to provide an opinion over the key financial and 
governance controls of the Council, the annual key 
controls testing regime was enhanced, and the assurance 
mapping exercise mentioned above used to develop 
testing for new controls. This review provides independent 
assurance to Senior Management and the Committee that 
governance and financial risks have been appropriately 
mitigated during the Pandemic period.  
 

Theme 3: Response 
and Recovery 

Assurance in this area evaluates whether the Council has 
where possible reacted sufficiently to the pandemic and 
considered its response to recovery. The Response and 
Recovery review was carried out across the Consortium 
comparing the approaches taken by each of our members 
in areas such as: Supporting the Local Economy, staff 
reintegration, financial modelling and business plan 
revision and preparedness for ongoing disruptions.  
 

Theme 4: 
Partnerships 

The Procurement and Contract Management position 
statement evaluates the impact of the Pandemic on the 
Council’s ability to deliver key projects and services 
through third party contracts during and in the recovery 
phase of the pandemic.  
 

Theme 5: Essential 
Assurance 

Work in this theme has provided assurances in areas from 
the originally agreed 2020/21 Internal Audit Plan that are 
integral to forming an opinion on the governance, risk and 
control framework for 2020/21. This included audits where 
limited assurance or no assurance has been given in 
previous years and where control weaknesses remain or 
have increased due to the Coronavirus Pandemic. 
 

3.2 Summary of the internal audit work 

The work undertaken by Eastern Internal Audit Services (TIAA Ltd) and Audit Lincolnshire) 
in 2020/21 has resulted in both assurance opinion reports being concluded and suggested 
improvements through position statements.  

Page 52



   
  

Page 5 of 16 

 

A total of nine assurance reports have been completed, eight of which have received a 
positive assurance grading. One report for Accounts Payable received a limited assurance.  
Three audits received a substantial grading with Accountancy Services not receiving any 
recommendations.  

Two position statements have been issued this year by TIAA Ltd providing suggested action 
and improvements relating to the Covid-19 Pandemic. These are Coronavirus Response and 
Recovery and Procurement and Contract Management.   

3.3 Follow up of management action 

In relation to the follow up of management actions to ensure that they have been effectively 
implemented the position at year end is that of the 20 recommendations agreed by 
management, 10 are now complete, two needs attention recommendations are outstanding 
and eight are within deadline. A further eight recommendations have been raised with 
management in reports that are not yet finalised and are not included in this total. 

Of the 84 recommendations agreed by TIAA Ltd and Audit Lincolnshire in 2019/20, 70 are 
now complete, 12 are outstanding (one urgent, 8 important and three needs attention) and 
two are not yet due.   

One urgent recommendation also remains outstanding from 2017/18.  

The performance module utilised by the Council (Pentana) is used to record of the audit 
recommendations, as well as all related performance information such as risk and 
performance measures. There does remain the challenge of ensuring that this is always kept 
up to date and that responses are provided as needed for corporate reporting and 
monitoring of services. Audit Lincolnshire are responsible for following up on the audit 
recommendations raised within their audits. Officers have however been engaging with 
Internal Audit to address historical recommendations. 

3.4 Issues for inclusion in the Annual Governance Statement 

Looking back over the issues raised in previous opinions, the following issues remain for the 
Council to address.  

 
A limited assurance opinion and eight recommendations were raised for Asset Management 
in 2017/18. One urgent recommendation remains outstanding. The urgent recommendation 
relates to completing a programmed review of all leases. A subsequent review of this area 
has been completed in 2020/21 and a reasonable assurance grading given, indicating a 
positive direction of travel in this area.  We recommend that this recommendation is 
referenced within the Council’s Annual Governance Statement until it is completed.    

One important recommendation remains outstanding from the 2018/19 Financial Services 
report which was given a limited assurance grading. This recommendation relates to 
ensuring accounts receivable reconciliation processes are defined within the financial 
system.  

In 2019/20, the private sector housing report was given a No Assurance grading. A total of 
28 recommendations; 16 urgent, six important and six needs attention recommendations 
were raised of which one remains outstanding. The urgent outstanding recommendation 
relates to caravan site inspections.  

We recommend that the above recommendations are referenced within the Council’s annual 
governance statement until they are completed.   

Page 53



   
  

Page 6 of 16 

 

A further two areas were given a Limited assurance grading in 2019/20. They relate to 
Markets and Car Parks. For Markets a total of four important and one needs attention 
recommendations were raised. Three important recommendations remain outstanding. For 
Car Parks three of the four important recommendations raised have now been addressed. 
Whilst a limited assurance grading was given for both areas, no urgent priority 
recommendations were raised during this review that we feel would need to be referenced in 
the Council’s Annual Governance Statement.   

Significant recommendations raised in 2020/21 

A total of two urgent priority recommendations have been raised for Accounts Payable in 
2020/21 by Audit Lincolnshire. They relate to ensuring that independent checks are 
undertaken and evidenced for supplier amendments. Due to this being a fraud related 
risk we recommend it is highlighted within the Council’s annual governance statement 
until such time that it is resolved. A further urgent priority recommendation was raised in 
relation to raising purchase orders in advance in accordance with policy.  
 

4.  THIRD PARTY ASSURANCES 

4.1 In arriving at the overall opinion reliance has been placed on third party assurances provided 
by Audit Lincolnshire, formally East Lindsay District Council. Protocols are in place to enable 
all audit work programmes to be shared with the Head of Internal Audit before the start of the 
audit and on conclusion of the audit, the summary working papers and draft report is also 
provided. This approach enables input into the scope of the audit to ensure that all pertinent 
areas are covered. It also enables a detailed review of the work that has been undertaken.  
We can therefore agree with the conclusions that are reached and the recommendations that 
are raised.   

 

5.  ANNUAL REVIEW OF THE EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL AUDIT 

5.1 Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme (QAIP) 

5.1.1 Internal Assessment 

A checklist for conformance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and the 
Local Government Application Note has been completed for 2020/21. This covers; the 
Definition of Internal Auditing, the Code of Ethics and the Standards themselves.  

The Attribute Standards address the characteristics of organisations and parties performing 
Internal Audit activities, in particular; Purpose, Authority and Responsibility, Independence 
and Objectivity, Proficiency and Due Professional Care, and Quality Assurance and 
Improvement Programme. 

The Performance Standards describe the nature of Internal Audit activities and provide 
quality criteria against which the performance of these services can be evaluated, in 
particular; Managing the Internal Audit Activity, Nature of Work, Engagement Planning, 
Performing the Engagement, Communicating Results, Monitoring Progress and 
Communicating the Acceptance of Risks. 

On conclusion of completion of the checklist conformance has been ascertained in relation 
to the Definition of Internal Auditing, the Code of Ethics and the Performance Standards. 

The detailed internal assessment checklist to be forwarded to the Section 151 Officer for 
independent scrutiny and verification. 

Page 54



   
  

Page 7 of 16 

 

 

 

5.1.2 External Assessment 

In relation to the Attribute Standards it is recognised that to achieve full conformance an 
external assessment is needed. This is required to be completed every five years, with the 
first review having been completed in January 2017. 

The external assessment was undertaken by the Institute of Internal Auditors and it has 
concluded that “the internal audit service conforms to the professional standards and 
the work has been performed in accordance with the Internal Professional Practices 
Framework”. Thus, confirming conformance to the required standards. 

The external assessment report has previously been provided to the Section 151 Officer and 
the Committee. 

5.2 Performance Indicator outcomes EIAS (TIAA) 

5.2.1 Actual performance against these targets is outlined within the following table: 

5.2.2 Performance has been impacted in 2020/21 by the Covid-19 pandemic. The Internal Audit 
contractor took the decision to furlough most of its workforce during the first lockdown as 
each Council prioritised front-line response over Internal Audit work. Following revision and 
approval of the revised Internal Audit plan in November 2020, the Internal Audit team have 
experienced delays to delivery, however the plan of work has now been completed.  

5.2.3 Performance has not been in line within the boundaries of our agreed targets in some areas 
during 2020/21 such as the issuing of draft reports 10 day after quarter end. Discussions and 
a lessons learnt exercise will be undertaken in Q1 of 2021/22 to determine the root cause of 
delays and ensure that these issues are resolved for the year ahead.   

Area / Indicator Frequency Target Actual  Comments 

Audit Committee / Senior Management 
1. Audit Committee Satisfaction – 

measured annually 
2. Chief Finance Officer Satisfaction – 

measured quarterly 

 
Annual 
 
Annual  

 
Adequate 
 
Good 

 
Adequate 
 
TBC 

 
Achieved  
 
TBC 

Page 55



   
  

Page 8 of 16 

 

Internal Audit Process 
3. Each quarters audits completed to draft 

report within 10 working days of the end 
of the quarter 

 
4. Quarterly assurance reports to the 

Contract Manager within 15 working 
days of the end of each quarter 
 
 
 

5. An audit file supporting each review and 
showing clear evidence of quality control 
review shall be completed prior to the 
issue of the draft report (a sample of 
these will be subject to quality review by 
the Contract Manager) 
 

6. Compliance with Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards 
 

7. Respond to the Contract Manager within 
3 working days where unsatisfactory 
feedback has been received. 

 
Quarterly 
 
 
 
Quarterly  

 
100% 
 
 
 
100% 
 
 
 
 
 
100% 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Generally 
conforms 
 
100% 
 
 
 

 
12.5% 
 
 
 
0% 
 
 
 
 
 
100% 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Generally 
conforms 
 
100% 

 
1/8 issued within 
deadline. Not achieved.  
 
 
Not achieved. Quarterly 
report received over the 
15 working day deadline 
in all cases. 
 
 
Achieved  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Achieved  
 
 
n/a 
 
 

Clients 
8. Average feedback score received from 

key clients (auditees) 
 

9. Percentage of recommendations 
accepted by management 

  
Adequate 
 
 
90% 

 
Excellent 
 
 
100% 

 
Achieved 
 
 
Exceeds  

Innovations and Capabilities 
10. Percentage of qualified (including 

experienced) staff working on the 
contract each quarter 

11. Number of training hours per member of 
staff completed per quarter 

  
60% 
 
 
1 day 
 

 
100% 
 
 
1 day 

 
Exceeds 
 
 
Achieved  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5.3  Effectiveness of the Head of Internal Audit (HIA) arrangements as measured against 
the CIPFA Role of the HIA 

5.3.1 This Statement sets out the five principles that define the core activities and behaviours that 
apply to the role of the Head of Internal Audit, and the organisational arrangements to 
support them. The Principles are: 

Page 56



   
  

Page 9 of 16 

 

 Champion best practice in governance, objectively assessing the adequacy of 
governance and management of risks; 

 Give an objective and evidence based opinion on all aspects of governance, risk 
management and internal control; 

 Undertake regular and open engagement across the Authority, particularly with the 
Management Team and the Audit Committee; 

 Lead and direct an Internal Audit Service that is resourced to be fit for purpose; and 

 Head of Internal Audit to be professionally qualified and suitably experienced. 

Completion of the checklist confirms full compliance with the CIPFA guidance on the Role of 
the Head of Internal Audit in relation to the 5 principles set out within. 

The detailed checklist has been forwarded to the Section 151 Officer for independent 
scrutiny and verification. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 57



 

Page 10 of 16 

 

APPENDIX1 – AUDIT WORK UNDERTAKEN DURING 2020/21 
 
Audit Area Assurance No of Recs Implemented P1 OS P2 OS P3 OS Not yet due 

Annual Opinion Audits 

Assurance Mapping Exercise N/A       

Corporate Governance  Substantial 2 0 0 0 0 2 

Coronavirus Response and 
Recovery - DRAFT 

Position 
Statement 

      

Accounts Receivable  Reasonable 5 3 0 0 0 2 

Income Reasonable 9 7 0 0 2 0 

Asset Management - DRAFT Reasonable 6 0 0 0 0 6 

Procurement Contract 
Management  

Position 
Statement 

      

IT audits 

Remote Access  Reasonable 2 0 0 0 0 2 

PSPS audits  

Housing Rents Reasonable 1 0 0 0 0 1 

Revenues and Benefits Substantial 1 0 0 0 0 1 

Accounts Payable DRAFT Limited 2 0 0 0 0 2 

Accountancy Services  Substantial 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Total 28 10 0 0 2 16 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 58



 

Page 11 of 16 

 

Assurance level definitions Number 

Substantial Assurance Based upon the issues identified there is a robust series of suitably designed controls 
in place upon which the organisation relies to manage the risks to the continuous and 
effective achievement of the objectives of the process, and which at the time of our 
audit review were being consistently applied. 

3 

Reasonable Assurance Based upon the issues identified there is a series of internal controls in place, 
however these could be strengthened to facilitate the organisations management of 
risks to the continuous and effective achievement of the objectives of the process. 
Improvements are required to enhance the controls to mitigate these risks. 

5 

Limited Assurance Based upon the issues identified the controls in place are insufficient to ensure that 
the organisation can rely upon them to manage the risks to the continuous and 
effective achievement of the objectives of the process. Significant improvements are 
required to improve the adequacy and effectiveness of the controls to mitigate these 
risks. 

1 

No Assurance Based upon the issues identified there is a fundamental breakdown or absence of 
core internal controls such that the organisation cannot rely upon them to manage risk 
to the continuous and effective achievement of the objectives of the process. 
Immediate action is required to improve the controls required to mitigate these risks. 

0 

 
Urgent – Priority 1 Fundamental control issue on which action to implement should be taken within 1 month. 

Important Priority 2 Control issue on which action to implement should be taken within 3 months. 

Needs Attention – Priority 3 Control issue on which action to implement should be taken within 6 months. 

 
 
 
 

P
age 59



 

Page 12 of 16 

 

APPENDIX 2 ASSURANCE CHART  
 

Eastern Internal Audit Services  2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 

Annual Opinion / Corporate Audits 
  

Corporate Governance Reasonable Reasonable  Reasonable Reasonable  Substantial 

Risk Management Postponed to 
2017/18 

Substantial     

Compass Point - Governance / Finance     Reasonable    

Corporate Performance and Corporate Plan   Substantial    Reasonable  

Procurement and Contract Management    Limited Reasonable  Position 
Statement 

Transformation Programme - benefits realisation Position 
Statement 

Position 
Statement 

     

Fundamental Financial Systems 
  

Housing Rents / Management   Reasonable       

Payroll & Human Resources     Reasonable   

Income     Reasonable 

Accounts Receivable     Reasonable 

Service Area Audits 
  

Strategic Housing Reasonable     Reasonable  

Housing Right to Buy Reasonable        

Welland Homes   Reasonable       

Asset Management   Limited Position 
Statement 

 Reasonable 

Delivery Unit Team     Position 
Statement 

   

Economic Development (GFG 1718)   Position 
Statement 

     

Licensing and Business Support Reasonable        

Corporate Health and Safety Reasonable        

P
age 60



 

Page 13 of 16 

 

Eastern Internal Audit Services  2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 

Environmental Protection   Limited Reasonable Reasonable  

Food, Health & Safety     Reasonable    

Legal Services          

Democratic Services    Reasonable    

Elections and Electoral Registration   Reasonable       

Branding Reasonable        

Housing needs, allocation, homelessness, 
housing register and PSH 

  Position 
Statement 

Reasonable    

Planned maintenance, major contracts and 
property services 
Responsive repairs, voids and recharges 

Postponed to 
2017/18 

Position 
Statement 

Position 
Statement 

Reasonable  

Strategic Enforcement, including Community 
Safety & ASB 

      Position 
Statement  

 

Leisure Position 
Statement 

  Substantial Reasonable  

South Holland Centre Substantial        

Ascoughfee  Reasonable        

Planning - development control, enforcement and 
land charges 

  Reasonable       

Section 106 Agreements   Limited   Reasonable  

Private Sector Housing       No Assurance  

Building Control     Substantial    

Markets         Limited  

Car Parking    Limited   

Environmental Services - waste, recycling and 
depot services 

    Reasonable    

ICT Audits 
  

Cybersecurity Limited   Reasonable    

Remote Access        Reasonable 

Disaster Recovery       Reasonable  

P
age 61



 

Page 14 of 16 

 

Eastern Internal Audit Services  2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 

IT Strategy    Position 
Statement 

 

Service Desk     Substantial    

ISO27001: 2013 Gap Analysis Position 
Statement 

       

IT Project Delivery   Reasonable       

Change and Patch Management   Reasonable       

Software Licencing     Reasonable    

 
 

Audit Lincolnshire reports 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 

Key Controls and Assurance          

Income  Reasonable Reasonable     

Housing Rents  Reasonable   Reasonable Reasonable Reasonable 

Accounts Receivable  Reasonable       

Revenues  Reasonable Limited Reasonable Substantial Substantial 

Benefits  Reasonable Reasonable Reasonable Substantial 

Financial services 
Includes AP, AR, AM, Income, Budget 

Reasonable Reasonable Limited Reasonable  

Accounts Payable    Reasonable     Limited 

Accountancy Services 
Includes General Ledger, Control Accounts, 
Treasury, Bank Rec 

    Reasonable Reasonable Substantial 

Payroll    Limited    Reasonable  

Service Area Reviews          

Accounts Payable Limited        

Payroll Reasonable        

Accounts Receivable    No assurance      

 
 

P
age 62



 

Page 15 of 16 

 

APPENDIX 3 – LIMITATIONS AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
Limitations inherent to the Internal Auditor’s work 
 
The Internal Audit Annual Report has been prepared and TIAA Ltd (the Internal Audit Services 
contractor) were engaged to undertake the agreed programme of work as approved by 
management and the Audit Committee, subject to the limitations outlined below. 
 
Opinions 
 
The opinions expressed are based solely on the work undertaken in delivering the approved 
2020/21 Annual Internal Audit Plan. The work addressed the risks and control objectives agreed for 
each individual planned assignment as set out in the corresponding audit planning memorandums 
(terms of reference) and reports. 
 
Internal Control  
 
The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to 
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve corporate/service policies, aims and objectives: it can 
therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness.   Internal control 
systems essentially rely on an ongoing process of identifying and prioritising the risks to the 
achievement of the organisation’s policies, aims and objectives, evaluating the likelihood of those 
risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, 
effectively and economically.   That said, internal control systems, no matter how well they have 
been constructed and operated, are affected by inherent limitations.   These include the possibility 
of poor judgement in decision-making, human error, control processes being deliberately 
circumvented by employees and others, management overriding controls and the occurrence of 
unforeseeable circumstances. 
 
Future Periods 
 
Internal Audit’s assessment of controls relating to South Holland District Council is for the year 
ended 31 March 2021. Historic evaluation of effectiveness may not be relevant to future periods due 
to the risk that: 

 The design of controls may become inadequate because of changes in the operating 
environment, law, regulation or other matters; or, 

 The degree of compliance with policies and procedures may deteriorate. 
 
Responsibilities of Management and Internal Auditors 
 
It is management’s responsibility to develop and maintain sound systems of risk management, 
internal control and governance and for the prevention and detection of irregularities and fraud.   
Internal Audit work should not be seen as a substitute for management’s responsibilities for the 
design and operation of these systems. 
 
The Head of Internal Audit, has sought to plan Internal Audit work, so that there is a reasonable 
expectation of detecting significant control weaknesses and, if detected, additional work will then be 
carried out which is directed towards identification of consequent fraud or other irregularities.   
However, internal audit procedures alone, even when carried out with due professional care, do not 
guarantee that fraud will be detected and TIAA’s examinations as the South Holland District 
Councils internal auditors should not be relied upon to disclose all fraud, defalcations or other 
irregularities which may exist. 
 
 
 

Page 63



 

Page 16 of 16 

 

 

Page 64



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report of:  Executive Director Strategy and Resources (S151), Christine Marshall 
 
To: Governance and Audit Committee 29 July 2021 
 Council 22 September 2021 
  
Author: Sean Howsam – Treasury & Investment Manager (PSPS) 
 
Subject:  Annual Treasury Management Review 2020/21 
 
Purpose: To consider the Annual Treasury Management Review for 2020/21 prior to it 

being submitted to Council for approval. 
 

 
Recommendation(s):  
 
1)    That the Governance and Audit Committee scrutinise the Annual Treasury Management 

Review 2020/21 and make any comments for consideration by Council when they consider 
this document for approval at their meeting on 22 September 2021.  
 

 
1.0 BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 This Council is required by regulations issued under the Local Government Act 2003 to 

produce an annual treasury management review of activities and the actual prudential and 
treasury indicators for 2020/21. This report meets the requirements of both the CIPFA 
Code of Practice on Treasury Management (the Code) and the CIPFA Prudential Code for 
Capital Finance in Local Authorities (the Prudential Code). 

 
 For 2020/21 the following reports have been submitted:  

 an annual treasury strategy in advance of the year (Council 26 February 2020); 

 a mid year (minimum) treasury update report (Council 20 January 2021); 

 An annual review following the end of the year describing the activity compared to 
the strategy (this report). 

1.2 The regulatory environment places responsibility on members for the review and scrutiny 
of treasury management policy and activities.  This report is therefore important in that 
respect, as it provides details of the outturn position for treasury activities and highlights 
compliance with the Council’s policies previously approved by members. 

 
1.3 This Council confirms that it has complied with the requirement under the Code to give 

prior scrutiny to all of the above treasury management reports by the Governance and 
Audit Committee.  Member training on treasury management was last provided on 14 
November 2019 in order to support the members’ scrutiny role. 
 

1.4 The Treasury Management function is administered by Public Sector Partnership Services 
Ltd on behalf of the Council. 

 
1.5 The Council is currently in the process of producing its financial statements for the 

2020/21 financial year and these will be subject to external audit.  The figures in this 
report are therefore subject to change and any such changes will be reflected in the report 
submitted to Council.   

Page 65

Agenda Item 7.



2.0   INTRODUCTION 
 
2.1 This report summarises the following :- 
 

 Capital activity during the year; 

 Impact of this activity on the Council’s underlying indebtedness (the Capital 
Financing Requirement); 

 The actual prudential and treasury indicators; 

 Overall treasury position identifying how the Council has borrowed in relation to its 
indebtedness, and the impact on investment balances; 

 Summary of interest rate movements in the year; 

 Borrowing and investment outturn positions; 

 Economy and interest rates. 

 
3.0 THE COUNCIL’S CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND FINANCING 2020/21  
 
3.1 The Council undertakes capital expenditure on long-term assets.  These activities may 

either be: 
 

 financed immediately through the application of capital or revenue resources 
(capital receipts, capital grants, revenue contributions etc.), which has no resultant 
impact on the Council’s borrowing need; or 

 if insufficient financing is available, or a decision is taken not to apply resources, the 
capital expenditure will give rise to a borrowing need. 

 

3.2 The actual capital expenditure forms one of the required prudential indicators.  The 
following tables show the actual capital expenditure and how this was financed. 

 

£’000 General Fund 
2019/20 
Actual 

2020/21 
Estimate 

2020/21 
Actual 

Capital expenditure 4,046 8,741 7,661 

Financed in year (2,946) (7,481) (6,760) 

Unfinanced capital expenditure 1,100 1,260 901 

 
  

£’000 Housing Revenue 
Account (HRA) 

2019/20 
Actual 

2020/21 
Estimate 

2020/21 
Actual 

Capital expenditure 8,888 6,371 4,912 

Financed in year (8,888) (6,371) (4,912) 

Unfinanced capital expenditure - - - 

 
 
4.0 THE COUNCIL’S OVERALL BORROWING NEED 

Page 66



 
4.1 The Council’s underlying need to borrow for capital expenditure is termed the Capital 

Financing Requirement (CFR).  This figure is a gauge of the Council’s indebtedness. The 
CFR results from the capital activity of the Council and resources used to pay for the 
capital spend.  It represents the 2020/21 unfinanced capital expenditure (see above 
table), and prior years’ net or unfinanced capital expenditure which has not yet been paid 
for by revenue or other resources. 

 
4.2 Part of the Council’s treasury activities is to address the funding requirements for this 

borrowing need.  Depending on the capital expenditure programme, the treasury service 
organises the Council’s cash position to ensure that sufficient cash is available to meet 
the capital plans and cash flow requirements.  This may be sourced by utilising temporary 
cash resources within the Council or through borrowing from external bodies (such as the 
Government, through the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) or the money markets). 

 
4.3 Reducing the CFR – the Council’s (non HRA) underlying borrowing need (CFR) is not 

allowed to rise indefinitely.  Statutory controls are in place to ensure that capital assets are 
broadly charged to revenue over the life of the asset.  The Council is required to make an 
annual revenue charge, called the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP), to reduce the 
CFR.  This is effectively a repayment of the non-HRA borrowing need (there is no 
statutory requirement to reduce the HRA CFR). This differs from the treasury 
management arrangements which ensure that cash is available to meet capital 
commitments.  External debt can also be borrowed or repaid at any time, but this does not 
change the CFR. 

 
The total CFR can also be reduced by: 
 
 the application of additional capital financing resources (such as unapplied capital 

receipts); or  
 

 charging more than the statutory revenue charge (MRP) each year through a 
Voluntary Revenue Provision (VRP). 
 

4.4 The Council’s 2020/21 MRP Policy as required by Ministry of Housing, Communities and 
Local Government (MHCLG) guidance was approved as part of the Treasury 
Management Strategy Report for 2020/21 on 26 February 2020. 
 

4.5 The Council’s CFR for the year is shown below, and represents a key prudential indicator: 
 

CFR (£’000): General Fund 
31 March  

2020  
Actual 

31 March 
 2021  

Budget 

31 March 
 2021  
Actual 

Opening Balance  5,451 6,565 6,565 

Add unfinanced capital expenditure 
(as above) 

1,100 1,260 901 

Other adjustments 14 - - 

Closing Balance 6,565 7,825 7,466 

 
 
 

Page 67



CFR (£’000): HRA 
31 March  

2020  
Actual 

31 March 
 2021  

Budget 

31 March 
 2021  
Actual 

Opening Balance  68,441 68,427 68,427 

Add unfinanced capital expenditure 
(as above) 

- - - 

Other adjustments (14) - - 

Closing Balance 68,427 68,427 68,427 

 
Borrowing activity is constrained by prudential indicators for net borrowing and the CFR, 
and by the authorised limit. 

 
4.6 Gross borrowing and the CFR - in order to ensure that borrowing levels are prudent over 

the medium term and only for a capital purpose, the Council should ensure that its gross 
external borrowing does not, except in the short term, exceed the total of the CFR in the 
preceding year (2019/20) plus the estimates of any additional CFR for the current 
(2020/21) and next two financial years.  This essentially means that the Council is not 
borrowing to support revenue expenditure.  This indicator allows the Council some 
flexibility to borrow in advance of its immediate capital needs in 2020/21.  The table below 
highlights the Council’s gross borrowing position against the CFR.  The Council has 
complied with this prudential indicator. 

 

 
31 March 2020  

Actual 
(£’000) 

31 March 2021  
Budget 
(£’000) 

31 March 2021  
Actual 
(£’000) 

Gross Borrowing Position  67,456 67,456 67,456 

CFR 74,992 76,252 75,893 

  
4.7 The authorised limit is the “affordable borrowing limit” required by s3 of the Local 

Government Act 2003.  Once this has been set, the Council does not have the power to 
borrow above this level.  The following table demonstrates that during 2020/21 the Council 
has maintained gross borrowing within its authorised limit. 
 
The operational boundary is the expected borrowing position of the Council during the 
year.  Periods where the actual position is either below or over the boundary is acceptable 
subject to the authorised limit not being breached. 

  

Page 68



Actual financing costs as a proportion of net revenue stream - this indicator identifies the 
trend in the cost of capital (borrowing and other long term obligation costs net of 
investment income) against the net revenue stream. 
 

 2020/21 

Authorised limit £91m 

Maximum gross borrowing position £67.456m 

Operational boundary £87m 

Average gross borrowing position £67.456m 

Financing costs as a proportion of net revenue stream – Non HRA 
                                                                                          HRA 

-1.96% 
39.85% 

 
5.0 TREASURY POSITION AS AT 31 MARCH 2021 
 
5.1 The Council’s treasury management debt and investment position is organised by the 

treasury management service in order to ensure adequate liquidity for revenue and capital 
activities, security for investments and to manage risks within all treasury management 
activities. At the beginning and the end of 2020/21 the Council’s treasury position, 
including accrued interest, was as follows: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
31/3/20 
Amount 

£’000 

Rate/ 
Return 

% 

Average 
Life 

 

31/3/21 
Amount 

£’000 

Rate/ 
Return 

% 

Average 
Life 

 

Fixed rate funding 
    PWLB 
    Leases 

 
67,456 

- 

 
3.48 
n/a 

 
42 years 

 
67,456 

- 

 
3.48 
n/a 

 
41 years 

 

Total debt 67,456 3.48 42 years 67,456 3.48 41 years 

  CFR 74,992   75,893   

  Over/(under) borrowing (7,536)   (8,437)   

Cash and investments:  

  long term equity and   
  service loans 

(7,034) n/a n/a (7,817) n/a n/a 

  short term (26,118) 0.97 138 days (34,524) 0.20 167 days 

  instant access deposits (11,192) 0.57 1 day (8,494) 0.02 1 day 

Total cash and 
investments 

(44,344) 0.85 97 days (50,835) 0.16 134 days 

Net debt 23,112   16,621   

Page 69



5.2 Investments and Cash and Cash Equivalents held as at 31 March 2021, including accrued 
interest, were as follows: 

 
  

INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO Actual 
31/03/20 
£000’s 

Actual 
31/03/20 

% 

Actual 
31/03/21 
£000’s 

Actual 
31/03/21 

% 

Treasury Investments 

Banks 26,112 70 32,491 75 

Building Societies 3,004 8 2,000 5 

Local Authorities 2,001 5 5,027 12 

Total managed in house 31,117 83 39,518 92 

Money Market Funds 6,193 17 3,500 8 

Total managed externally 6,193 17 3,500 8 

Total Treasury Investments 37,310 100 43,018 100 

Non-Treasury Investments (at fair value) 

Equity 3,664 52 3,963 51 

Service Loans (long term debtors) 3,370 48 3,854 49 

Total Non-Treasury Investments 7,034 100 7,817 100 

 
  

SUMMARY Actual 
31/03/20 
£000’s 

Actual 
31/03/20 

% 

Actual 
31/03/21 
£000’s 

Actual 
31/03/21 

% 

Total Treasury Investments 37,310 84 43,018 85 

Total Non-Treasury Investments 7,034 16 7,817 15 

Total of all Investments 44,344 100 50,835 100 

 
 

The maturity structure of the investment portfolio was as follows: 

 2019/20 
Actual 
£’000 

2020/21 
Actual 
£’000 

Investments 
  Longer than 1 year 
  Under 1 year 

Total 

 
  7,034 
37,310 
44,344 

 
  7,817 
43,018 
50,835 

 

  

Page 70



The exposure to fixed and variable rates on investments was as follows: 

 31/03/20 
Actual 
£’000 

31/03/21 
Actual 
£’000 

Fixed rate  
29,488 

(66%) 

33,384 

(66%) 

Variable rate  
14,856 

(34%) 

17,451 

(34%) 

 
6.0  THE STRATEGY FOR 2020/21 
 
6.1 Investment strategy and control of interest rate risk 
 

  
 
 Investment returns which had been low during 2019/20, plunged during 2020/21 to near 

zero or even into negative territory.  Most local authority lending managed to avoid 
negative rates and one feature of the year was the growth of inter local authority lending.  
The expectation for interest rates within the treasury management strategy for 2020/21 
was that Bank Rate would continue at the start of the year at 0.75% before rising to end 
2022/23 at 1.25%.  This forecast was invalidated by the Covid-19 pandemic bursting onto 
the scene in March 2020 which caused the Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) to cut Bank 
Rate in March, first to 0.25% and then to 0.10%, in order to counter the hugely negative 
impact of the national lockdown on large swathes of the economy.  The Bank of England 
and the Government also introduced new programmes of supplying the banking system 
and the economy with massive amounts of cheap credit so that banks could help cash-
starved businesses to survive the lockdown. The Government also supplied huge 
amounts of finance to local authorities to pass on to businesses.  This meant that for most 
of the year there was much more liquidity in financial markets than there was demand to 
borrow, with the consequent effect that investment earnings rates plummeted. 

 
 While the Council has taken a cautious approach to investing, it is also fully appreciative 

of changes to regulatory requirements for financial institutions in terms of additional capital 

Page 71



and liquidity that came about in the aftermath of the financial crisis. These requirements 
have provided a far stronger basis for financial institutions, with annual stress tests by 
regulators evidencing how institutions are now far more able to cope with extreme 
stressed market and economic conditions. 

 
 Investment balances have been kept to a minimum through the agreed strategy of using 

reserves and balances to support internal borrowing, rather than borrowing externally from 
the financial markets. External borrowing would have incurred an additional cost, due to 
the differential between borrowing and investment rates as illustrated in the charts shown 
above and below. Such an approach has also provided benefits in terms of reducing the 
counterparty risk exposure, by having fewer investments placed in the financial markets. 

 
6.2 Borrowing strategy and control of interest rate risk 
 

During 2020/21, the Council maintained an under-borrowed position.  This meant that the 
capital borrowing need, (the Capital Financing Requirement), was not fully funded with 
loan debt, as cash supporting the Council’s reserves, balances and cash flow was used 
as an interim measure. All current loan debt specifically relates to the HRA and the 
General Fund has no loan debt. This strategy was prudent as investment returns were 
very low and minimising counterparty risk on placing investments also needed to be 
considered.  
 
A cost of carry remained during the year on any new long-term borrowing that was not 
immediately used to finance capital expenditure, as it would have caused a temporary 
increase in cash balances; this would have incurred a revenue cost – the difference 
between (higher) borrowing costs and (lower) investment returns. 
 
The policy of avoiding new borrowing by running down spare cash balances, has served 
well over the last few years.  However, this was kept under review to avoid incurring 
higher borrowing costs in the future when this authority may not be able to avoid new 
borrowing to finance capital expenditure. 
 
Against this background and the risks within the economic forecast, caution was adopted 
with the treasury operations. The Section 151 Officer therefore monitored interest rates in 
financial markets and adopted a pragmatic strategy based upon the following principles to 
manage interest rate risks:  

 

 if it had been felt that there was a significant risk of a sharp FALL in long and short 
term rates, (e.g. due to a marked increase of risks around relapse into recession or 
of risks of deflation), then long term borrowings would have been postponed. 
 

 if it had been felt that there was a significant risk of a much sharper RISE in long 
and short term rates than initially expected, perhaps arising from an acceleration in 
the start date and in the rate of increase in central rates in the USA and UK, an 
increase in world economic activity or a sudden increase in inflation risks, then the 
portfolio position would have been re-appraised.  Most likely, fixed rate funding 
would have been drawn whilst interest rates were lower than they were projected 
to be in the next few years. 

 
Interest rate forecasts expected only gradual rises in medium and longer term fixed 
borrowing rates during 2020/21 and the two subsequent financial years.  Variable, or 
short-term rates, were expected to be the cheaper form of borrowing over the period.   
 

Page 72



 

 
 
 

 
 
 PWLB rates are based on, and are determined by, gilt (UK Government bonds) yields 

through H.M.Treasury determining a specified margin to add to gilt yields.  The main 
influences on gilt yields are Bank Rate, inflation expectations and movements in US 
treasury yields. Inflation targeting by the major central banks has been successful over the 
last 30 years in lowering inflation and the real equilibrium rate for central rates has fallen 
considerably due to the high level of borrowing by consumers: this means that central 
banks do not need to raise rates as much now to have a major impact on consumer 
spending, inflation, etc. This has pulled down the overall level of interest rates and bond 
yields in financial markets over the last 30 years.  We have seen over the last two years, 
many bond yields up to 10 years in the Eurozone turn negative on expectations that the 
EU would struggle to get growth rates and inflation up from low levels. In addition, there 
has, at times, been an inversion of bond yields in the US whereby 10 year yields have 
fallen below shorter term yields. In the past, this has been a precursor of a recession.   

 
 Gilt yields fell sharply from the start of 2020 and then spiked up during a financial markets 

melt down in March caused by the pandemic hitting western countries; this was rapidly 
countered by central banks flooding the markets with liquidity.  While US treasury yields 

Page 73



do exert influence on UK gilt yields so that the two often move in tandem, they have 
diverged during the first three quarters of 2020/21 but then converged in the final quarter.  
Expectations of economic recovery started earlier in the US than the UK but once the UK 
vaccination programme started making rapid progress in the new year of 2021, gilt yields 
and gilt yields and PWLB rates started rising sharply as confidence in economic recovery 
rebounded.  Financial markets also expected Bank Rate to rise quicker than in the 
forecast tables in this report. 

 
 At the close of the day on 31 March 2021, all gilt yields from 1 to 5 years were between 

0.19% – 0.58% while the 10-year and 25-year yields were at 1.11% and 1.59%.   
 
 HM Treasury imposed two changes of margins over gilt yields for PWLB rates in 2019/20 

without any prior warning. The first took place on 9th October 2019, adding an additional 
1% margin over gilts to all PWLB period rates.  That increase was then, at least partially, 
reversed for some forms of borrowing on 11th March 2020, but not for mainstream non-
HRA capital schemes. A consultation was then held with local authorities and on 25th 
November 2020, the Chancellor announced the conclusion to the review of margins over 
gilt yields for PWLB rates; the standard and certainty margins were reduced by 1% but a 
prohibition was introduced to deny access to borrowing from the PWLB for any local 
authority which had purchase of assets for yield in its three year capital programme. The 
new margins over gilt yields are as follows: - 

 
• PWLB Standard Rate is gilt plus 100 basis points (G+100bps) 
• PWLB Certainty Rate is gilt plus 80 basis points (G+80bps) 
• PWLB HRA Standard Rate is gilt plus 100 basis points (G+100bps) 
• PWLB HRA Certainty Rate is gilt plus 80bps (G+80bps) 
• Local Infrastructure Rate is gilt plus 60bps (G+60bps) 

 
There is likely to be only a gentle rise in gilt yields and PWLB rates over the next three 
years as Bank Rate is not forecast to rise from 0.10% by March 2024 as the Bank of 
England has clearly stated that it will not raise rates until inflation is sustainably above its 
target of 2%; this sets a high bar for Bank Rate to start rising. 

 
7.0 BORROWING OUTTURN FOR 2020/21 
 
7.1 Due to investment concerns with both counterparty risk and low investment returns, no 

new borrowing was undertaken during the year. 
 
7.2 No rescheduling was done during the year as the average 1% differential between PWLB 

new borrowing rates and premature repayment rates made rescheduling unviable. 
 
7.3 The Council’s external borrowing from the PWLB at 31 March 2021 remained at 

£67.456m at a fixed rate of 3.48% and matures on 28 March 2062. 
 
8.0 INVESTMENT OUTTURN FOR 2020/21 
 
8.1 Investment Policy – the Council’s investment policy is governed by MHCLG guidance, 

which has been implemented in the annual investment strategy approved by the Council 
on 26 February 2020.  This policy sets out the approach for choosing investment 
counterparties, and is based on credit ratings provided by the three main credit rating 
agencies, supplemented by additional market data (such as rating outlooks, credit default 
swaps, bank share prices etc). 

 
8.2 The investment activity during the year conformed to the approved strategy, and the 

Council had no liquidity difficulties. 

Page 74



 
8.3 Resources – the Council’s cash balances comprise revenue and capital resources and 

cash flow monies.  The Council’s core cash resources comprised as follows: 
  

Balance Sheet Resources (£’000) 31 March 2020 31 March 2021 

Balances 22,252 25,323 

Earmarked Reserves 8,213 11,085 

Major Repairs Reserve 3,586 4,356 

Capital Grants and Contributions 2,991 5,279 

Usable capital receipts 3,061 3,220 

Total 40,103 49,263 

 
8.4 The Council held average treasury investment balances of £50.7m which were mainly 

internally managed and achieved an average rate of return of 0.418% compared with the 
average 3 Month London Interbank Bid (LIBID) rate of 0.015%.  

 
The Council also held average non-treasury investment balances (excluding equity) of 
£3.37m. The Council has issued five loans totalling £3.71m to Welland Homes Limited, 
which is the Council’s wholly owned Housing Development Company. These are service 
loans (classified as long term debtors) and the Council receives interest of 3.5% on these 
loans which is payable on a quarterly basis. Total interest earned during the year was 
£113,134. 
 
The combined rate of return on all investments averaged 0.603%. 
 

8.5 Actual investment interest earned during 2020/21 was £325k which was £219k below the 
original budget of £544k.  This can be attributed to the very low level of interest rates in 
the market during the financial year resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic. 

 
9.0 THE ECONOMY AND INTEREST RATES DURING 2020-21 (commentary provided by 

Link Group - external treasury advisors) 
 
9.1 UK.  Coronavirus. The financial year 2020/21 will go down in history as being the year of 

the pandemic.  The first national lockdown in late March 2020 did huge damage to an 
economy that was unprepared for such an eventuality.  This caused an economic 
downturn that exceeded the one caused by the financial crisis of 2008/09.  A short second 
lockdown in November did relatively little damage but by the time of the third lockdown in 
January 2021, businesses and individuals had become more resilient in adapting to 
working in new ways during a three month lockdown so much less damage than was 
caused than in the first one. The advent of vaccines starting in November 2020, were a 
game changer. The way in which the UK and US have led the world in implementing a 
fast programme of vaccination which promises to lead to a return to something 
approaching normal life during the second half of 2021, has been instrumental in speeding 
economic recovery and the reopening of the economy. In addition, the household saving 
rate has been exceptionally high since the first lockdown in March 2020 and so there is 
plenty of pent-up demand and purchasing power stored up for services in the still-
depressed sectors like restaurants, travel and hotels as soon as they reopen. It is 
therefore expected that the UK economy could recover its pre-pandemic level of economic 
activity during quarter 1 of 2022. 

 

Page 75



  
Both the Government and the Bank of England took rapid action in March 2020 at the 
height of the crisis to provide support to financial markets to ensure their proper 
functioning, and to support the economy and to protect jobs. 
 
The Monetary Policy Committee cut Bank Rate from 0.75% to 0.25% and then to 0.10% 
in March 2020 and embarked on a £200bn programme of quantitative easing (QE) 
(purchase of gilts so as to reduce borrowing costs throughout the economy by lowering 
gilt yields). The MPC increased then QE by £100bn in June and by £150bn in November 
to a total of £895bn. While Bank Rate remained unchanged for the rest of the year, 
financial markets were concerned that the MPC could cut Bank Rate to a negative rate; 
this was firmly discounted at the February 2021 MPC meeting when it was established 
that commercial banks would be unable to implement negative rates for at least six 
months – by which time the economy was expected to be making a strong recovery and 
negative rates would no longer be needed. 
 
Average inflation targeting. This was the major change adopted by the Bank of England 
in terms of implementing its inflation target of 2%.   The key addition to the Bank’s forward 
guidance in August was a new phrase in the policy statement, namely that “it does not 
intend to tighten monetary policy until there is clear evidence that significant progress is 
being made in eliminating spare capacity and achieving the 2% target sustainably”. That 
seems designed to say, in effect, that even if inflation rises to 2% in a couple of years’ 
time, do not expect any action from the MPC to raise Bank Rate – until they can clearly 
see that level of inflation is going to be persistently above target if it takes no action to 
raise Bank Rate. This sets a high bar for raising Bank Rate and no increase is expected 
by March 2024, and possibly for as long as five years.  Inflation has been well under 2% 
during 2020/21; it is expected to briefly peak at just over 2% towards the end of 2021, but 
this is a temporary short lived factor and so not a concern to the MPC. 
 
Government support. The Chancellor has implemented repeated rounds of support to 
businesses by way of cheap loans and other measures, and has protected jobs by paying 
for workers to be placed on furlough. This support has come at a huge cost in terms of the 
Government’s budget deficit ballooning in 20/21 and 21/22 so that the Debt to Gross 
Domestic Product (GDP) ratio reaches around 100%.  The Budget on 3 March 2021 
increased fiscal support to the economy and employment during 2021 and 2022 followed 
by substantial tax rises in the following three years to help to pay the cost for the 
pandemic. This will help further to strengthen the economic recovery from the pandemic 

Page 76



and to return the government’s finances to a balanced budget on a current expenditure 
and income basis in 2025/26. This will stop the Debt to GDP ratio rising further from 
100%. An area of concern, though, is that the government’s debt is now twice as sensitive 
to interest rate rises as before the pandemic due to QE operations substituting fixed long-
term debt for floating rate debt; there is, therefore, much incentive for the Government to 
promote Bank Rate staying low e.g. by using fiscal policy in conjunction with the monetary 
policy action by the Bank of England to keep inflation from rising too high, and/or by 
amending the Bank’s policy mandate to allow for a higher target for inflation. 
 
BREXIT. The final agreement on 24 December 2020 eliminated a significant downside 
risk for the UK economy.  The initial agreement only covered trade so there is further work 
to be done on the services sector where temporary equivalence has been granted in both 
directions between the UK and EU; that now needs to be formalised on a permanent 
basis.  There was much disruption to trade in January as form filling has proved to be a 
formidable barrier to trade. This appears to have eased somewhat since then but is an 
area that needs further work to ease difficulties, which are still acute in some areas. 

 
9.2 USA.  The US economy did not suffer as much damage as the UK economy due to the 

pandemic. The Democrats won the presidential election in November 2020 and have 
control of both Congress and the Senate, although power is more limited in the latter. This 
enabled the Democrats to pass a $1.9trn (8.8% of GDP) stimulus package in March on 
top of the $900bn fiscal stimulus deal passed by Congress in late December. These, 
together with the vaccine rollout proceeding swiftly to hit the target of giving a first jab to 
over half of the population within the President’s first 100 days, will promote a rapid easing 
of restrictions and strong economic recovery during 2021. The Democrats are also 
planning to pass a $2trn fiscal stimulus package aimed at renewing infrastructure over the 
next decade. Although this package is longer-term, if passed, it would also help economic 
recovery in the near-term. 

 
 After Chair Jerome Powell spoke on the Fed's adoption of a flexible average inflation 

target in his Jackson Hole speech in late August 2020, the mid-September meeting of the 
Fed agreed a new inflation target - that "it would likely be appropriate to maintain the 
current target range until labour market conditions were judged to be consistent with the 
Committee's assessments of maximum employment and inflation had risen to 2% and 
was on track to moderately exceed 2% for some time." This change was aimed to provide 
more stimulus for economic growth and higher levels of employment and to avoid the 
danger of getting caught in a deflationary “trap” like Japan. It is to be noted that inflation 
has actually been under-shooting the 2% target significantly for most of the last decade, 
(and this year), so financial markets took note that higher levels of inflation are likely to be 
in the pipeline; long-term bond yields duly rose after the meeting. There is now some 
expectation that where the Fed has led in changing its policy towards implementing its 
inflation and full employment mandate, other major central banks will follow, as indeed the 
Bank of England has done so already. The Fed expects strong economic growth during 
2021 to have only a transitory impact on inflation, which explains why the majority of Fed 
officials project US interest rates to remain near-zero through to the end of 2023. The key 
message is still that policy will remain unusually accommodative – with near-zero rates 
and asset purchases – continuing for several more years. This is likely to result in keeping 
treasury yields at historically low levels.  However, financial markets in 2021 have been 
concerned that the sheer amount of fiscal stimulus, on top of highly accommodative 
monetary policy, could be over-kill leading to a rapid elimination of spare capacity in the 
economy and generating higher inflation much quicker than the Fed expects. They have 
also been concerned as to how and when the Fed will eventually wind down its 
programme of monthly QE purchases of treasuries. These concerns have pushed 
treasury yields sharply up in the US in 2021 and is likely to have also exerted some 
upward pressure on gilt yields in the UK. 

Page 77



 
9.3 EUROZONE.  Both the roll out and take up of vaccines has been disappointingly slow in 

the EU in 2021, at a time when many countries are experiencing a sharp rise in cases 
which are threatening to overwhelm hospitals in some major countries; this has led to 
renewed severe restrictions or lockdowns during March. This will inevitably put back 
economic recovery after the economy had staged a rapid rebound from the first 
lockdowns in Q3 of 2020 but contracted slightly in Q4 to end 2020 only 4.9% below its 
pre-pandemic level.  Recovery will now be delayed until Q3 of 2021 and a return to pre-
pandemic levels is expected in the second half of 2022. 

 
Inflation was well under 2% during 2020/21. The European Central Bank (ECB) did not cut 
its main rate of -0.5% further into negative territory during 2020/21.  It embarked on a 
major expansion of its QE operations (PEPP) in March 2020 and added further to that in 
its December 2020 meeting when it also greatly expanded its programme of providing 
cheap loans to banks. The total Pandemic Emergency Purchase Programme (PEPP) 
scheme of €1,850bn is providing protection to the sovereign bond yields of weaker 
countries like Italy. There is, therefore, unlikely to be a euro crisis while the ECB is able to 
maintain this level of support. 
 

9.4 CHINA. After a concerted effort to get on top of the virus outbreak in Q1 of 2020, 
economic recovery was strong in the rest of the year; this has enabled China to recover all 
of the contraction in Q1. Policy makers have both quashed the virus and implemented a 
programme of monetary and fiscal support that has been particularly effective at 
stimulating short-term growth. 

 
9.5 JAPAN - Three rounds of government fiscal support in 2020 together with Japan’s relative 

success in containing the virus without draconian measures so far, and the roll out of 
vaccines gathering momentum in 2021, should help to ensure a strong recovery in 2021 
and to get back to pre-virus levels by Q3. 

 
9.6 WORLD GROWTH.  World growth was in recession in 2020. Inflation is unlikely to be a 

problem in most countries for some years due to the creation of excess production 
capacity and depressed demand caused by the coronavirus crisis. 

 
9.7 DEGLOBALISATION. Until recent years, world growth has been boosted by increasing 

globalisation i.e. countries specialising in producing goods and commodities in which they 
have an economic advantage and which they then trade with the rest of the world. This 
has boosted worldwide productivity and growth, and, by lowering costs, has also 
depressed inflation. However, the rise of China as an economic superpower over the last 
30 years, which now accounts for nearly 20% of total world GDP, has unbalanced the 
world economy. In March 2021, western democracies implemented limited sanctions 
against a few officials in charge of government policy on the Uighurs in Xinjiang; this led to 
a much bigger retaliation by China and is likely to mean that the China / EU investment 
deal then being negotiated, will be torn up. After the pandemic exposed how frail extended 
supply lines were around the world, both factors are now likely to lead to a sharp 
retrenchment of economies into two blocs of western democracies v. autocracies. It is, 
therefore, likely that we are heading into a period where there will be a reversal of world 
globalisation and a decoupling of western countries from dependence on China to supply 
products and vice versa. This is likely to reduce world growth rates. 

 
9.8 CENTRAL BANKS’ MONETARY POLICY. During the pandemic, the governments of 

western countries have provided massive fiscal support to their economies which has 
resulted in a big increase in total government debt in each country. It is therefore very 
important that bond yields stay low while debt to GDP ratios slowly subside under the 
impact of economic growth. This provides governments with a good reason to amend the 

Page 78



mandates given to central banks to allow higher average levels of inflation than we have 
generally seen over the last couple of decades. Both the Fed and Bank of England have 
already changed their policy towards implementing their existing mandates on inflation, 
(and full employment), to hitting an average level of inflation. Greater emphasis could also 
be placed on hitting subsidiary targets e.g. full employment before raising rates. Higher 
average rates of inflation would also help to erode the real value of government debt more 
quickly. 
 

10.0 OPTIONS 
 
10.1 There are no alternative options presented. 
 
11.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
11.1 To comply with the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s Code of 

Practice on Treasury Management 2017. 
 
12.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS 
 
12.1 The report provides Members with a summary of the economy, the effect it has had on 

financial markets and the treasury activity during 2020/21. The report requires scrutiny 
prior to submitting to Council for approval. 

 
13.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 
13.1 Constitution & Legal 
 
13.1.1 This Council is required by regulations issued under the Local Government Act 2003 to 

produce an annual treasury management review of activities and the actual prudential and 
treasury indicators for 2020/21. This report meets the requirements of both the CIPFA 
Code of Practice on Treasury Management and the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital 
Finance in Local Authorities. 

 
13.1.2 The Council’s financial strategy, capital financing and borrowing all form part of the Policy 

Framework and are therefore non-executive matters that fall within the remit of the full 
Council. 

 
13.2 Financial  
 
13.2.1 The report provides details of the treasury activity for the 2020/21 financial year to inform 

members on performance and to highlight any changes in the year. 
 
13.2.2 Total interest received was £325k with £246k to the General Fund and £79k to the 

Housing Revenue Account. This was considerably below the original budget due to the 
exceptionally low interest rate environment throughout the financial year. 

 
13.3 Risk Management  
 
13.3.1  The Council’s investment policy has regard to the MHCLG Guidance on Local 

Government Investments (“the Guidance”) and the revised CIPFA Treasury Management 
in Public Services Code of Practice and Cross Sectoral Guidance Notes (“the CIPFA TM 
Code”). The Council’s investment priorities are security first, liquidity second, then return. 

 
 
 

Page 79



14.0   WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED 
 
14.1    Due to budgetary considerations all wards are affected. 
 
15.0   ACRONYMS  
 
15.1 PSPS – Public Sector Partnership Services Ltd 
15.2 CIPFA – Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 
15.3 HRA – Housing Revenue Account 
15.4 CFR – Capital Financing Requirement 
15.5 PWLB – Public Works Loan Board 
15.6 MRP – Minimum Revenue Provision 
15.7 VRP – Voluntary Revenue Provision 
15.8  MHCLG – Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government 
15.9 EU – European Union 
15.10 GDP – Gross Domestic Product 
15.11 MPC – Monetary Policy Committee 
15.12 LIBID – London Interbank Bid Rate 
15.13 QE - Quantitative Easing 
15.14 ECB – European Central Bank 
15.15 PEPP – Pandemic Emergency Purchase Programme 

Background papers: - SHDC Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2020/21  

Lead Contact Officer 
Name and Post:   Sean Howsam – Treasury and Investment Manager (PSPS) 
Telephone Number:  01507 613248 
Email:     Sean.Howsam@pspsl.co.uk 
 
Key Decision: No  
 
Exempt Decision: No 
 
This report refers to a Mandatory Service 
 
Appendices attached to this report:  None 

Page 80



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report of: Head of Internal Audit  
 
To:    Governance and Audit Committee, 29 July 2021 
 
Author:  Emma Hodds, Head of Internal Audit 
   Faye Haywood, Internal Audit Manager 
 
Subject: Strategic and Annual Internal Audit Plans 2021/22 
 
Purpose: This report provides an overview of the stages followed prior to the 

formulation of the Strategic Internal Audit Plan for 2021/22 to 2024/25 and the 
Annual Internal Audit Plan for 2021/22.  

    
  The Internal Audit Plan provides the basis for the Annual Audit Opinion on the 

overall adequacy and effectiveness of South Holland District Council’s 
framework of governance, risk management and control. 

 

 
Recommendation(s): 
 
1) That the Committee notes and approves: 
 

a) the Internal Audit Charter  
b) the Internal Audit Strategy for 2021/22; 
c) the Strategic Internal Audit Plans 2021/22 to 2024/25; and 
d) the Annual Internal Audit Plan 2021/22. 

 

 
1.0  BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require that “a relevant authority must undertake 

an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, control and 
governance processes, taking into account public sector internal auditing standards or 
guidance”. 

 
1.2 Those standards are set out in the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) which 

came into effect in April 2013. 
 
1.3 The attached report contains;  
 

o the Internal Audit Charter, covering purpose, authority and responsibility;  
 

o the Internal Audit Strategy, which is a strategic high-level statement on how the 
internal audit service will be delivered and developed in accordance with the charter 
and how it links to the organisational objectives and priorities; 
 

o the Strategic Internal Audit Plan, which details the plan of work for the next three 
financial years; and 
 

o the Annual Internal Audit Plan, which details the timing and the purpose of each 
audit agreed for inclusion in 2021/22.  

 
 

Page 81

Agenda Item 8.



2.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1 The risk-based internal audit plan will add value to the Council, ensuring a defined and 

specific scope for each review and ensure that risks in relation to the service area are being 
reviewed by Internal Audit, thus enabling best practice to be followed. 

 
3.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS 
 
3.1 The Council’s key business risks will be audited by Internal Audit, thus ensuring that 

appropriate controls are in place to mitigate key risks and ensure that the appropriate and 
proportionate level of action is taken to improve the Councils governance, risk management 
and control framework. 

 
4.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 Corporate Priorities 
 
4.1.1 Internal Audit helps to ensure that management of key risks assists in the efficient and 

effective delivery of the Council’s corporate priorities. 
 
4.2 Financial 
 
4.2.1 The Internal Audit Service is provided by way of a Partnership Agreement with South 

Norfolk Council, whereby South Norfolk Council provide the role of the Head of Internal 
Audit and Internal Audit Manager to South Holland District Council, and the service 
provision i.e. delivery of the audits, is provided through a contract with TIAA Ltd. Assurance 
on key financial controls is provided by Audit Lincolnshire. The 2021/22 plans have been 
set within the approved budget. 

 
4.3 Risk Management  
 
4.3.1 The Risk Based Internal Audit approach will ensure that the Council’s key risks are 

accurately reviewed and updated and thus the Internal Audit Service is adding value and 
auditing the key risk areas. 

 
4.4 Stakeholders / Consultation / Timescales 
 
4.4.1 The Strategic and Annual Internal Audit Plans for 2021/22 have been consulted upon with 

Senior Managers, prior to coming to the Committee. 
  

Background papers: None 

Lead Contact Officer 
Name and Post:  Emma Hodds, Head of Internal Audit 
Telephone Number: 01508 533791 
Email: ehodds@s-norfolk.gov.uk 
 
Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting: Faye Haywood, Internal Audit Manager 
 
Key Decision: No 
 
Exempt Decision:  No 
 
Appendices attached to this report: Strategic and Annual Internal Audit Plans 2021/22 

Page 82



Page 1 of 23 

 

 Eastern Internal Audit Services 

 

 
SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

Strategic and Annual Internal Audit Plans 2021/22 

Responsible Officer: Head of Internal Audit for South Holland District Council 

 
CONTENTS 

 

1. INTRODUCTION............................................................................................................ 2 

2. INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER ....................................................................................... 3 

3. INTERNAL AUDIT STRATEGY ..................................................................................... 3 

4. STRATEGIC INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN .......................................................................... 3 

5. ANNUAL INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN ................................................................................ 3 

APPENDIX 1 – INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER ..................................................................... 5 

APPENDIX 2 – INTERNAL AUDIT STRATEGY ..................................................................13 

APPENDIX 3 – STRATEGIC INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN ......................................................17 

APPENDIX 4 – ANNUAL INTENAL AUDIT PLAN 2021/22 .................................................21 

 

 

  

Page 83



Page 2 of 23 

 

1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require that “a relevant authority must undertake 
an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, control and 
governance processes, taking into account public sector internal auditing standards or 
guidance”. 

1.2 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) mandate a periodic preparation of a risk-
based plan, which must incorporate or be linked to a strategic high-level statement on how 
the internal audit service will be delivered and developed in accordance with the charter and 
how it links to the organisational objectives and priorities, this is set out in the Internal Audit 
Strategy. 

1.3 Risk is defined as 'the possibility of an event occurring that will have an impact on the 
achievement of objectives’. Risk can be a positive and negative aspect, so as well as 
managing things that could have an adverse impact (downside risk) it is also important to 
look at potential benefits (upside risk). 

1.4 The development of a risk-based plan takes into account the organisation's risk 
management framework. The process identifies the assurance (and consulting) assignments 
for a specific period, by identifying and prioritising all those areas on which objective 
assurance is required. This is then also applied when carrying out individual risk based 
assignments to provide assurance on part of the risk management framework, including the 
mitigation of individual or groups of risks.  

1.5 The 2020/21 Internal Audit plan was significantly revised in-year to respond to the Covid-19 
Pandemic. The revised plan aimed to provide assurance over key themes that were 
identified as having an impact on the Council at that time and as a result of this exercise, it 
was identified that 14 of the originally agreed internal audit areas would be replaced and 
deferred.   

1.6 A total of seven areas have been carried over into the 2021/22 plan as they are considered 
to pose a risk to the achievement of the Council’s objectives and pandemic recovery efforts. 
The remaining areas will continue to be assessed each year during internal audit planning.  

1.7 The following factors are also taken into account when developing the internal audit plan: 

 The risk profile and maturity of the Council;  

 Previous assurance gradings given in each area;   

 Any declarations to avoid conflicts of interest; 

 The requirements of the use of specialists e.g. IT auditors; 

 Striking the right balance over the range of reviews needing to be delivered, for 
example systems and risk-based reviews, specific key controls testing, value for 
money and added value reviews; 

 Allowing contingency time to undertake ad-hoc reviews or fraud investigations as 
necessary; 

 The time required to carry out the audit planning process effectively as well as 
regular reporting to and attendance at Governance and Audit Committee, the 
development of the annual report and opinion and the Quality Assurance and 
Improvement Programme. 

1.6 In accordance with best practice the Governance and Audit Committee should ‘review and 
assess the annual internal audit work plan’.  

Page 84



Page 3 of 23 

 

2. INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER 

2.1 There is an obligation under the PSIAS for the Charter to be periodically reviewed and 
presented. This Charter is therefore reviewed annually by the Head of Internal Audit to 
confirm its ongoing validity and completeness, and presented to the Section 151 Officer, 
Senior Management and the Governance and Audit Committee every two years, or as 
required for review. The Charter was approved in 2019 and is therefore provided as part of 
this report for approval at Appendix 1. Please note that no significant changes have been 
made to the Charter since its approval in 2019.  

2.2 As part of the review of the Audit Charter the Code of Ethics are also reviewed by the Head 
of Internal Audit, and it is ensured that the Internal Audit Services contractor staff, as well as 
the Head of Internal Audit and Audit Manager adhere to these, specifically with regard to; 
integrity, objectivity, confidentiality and competency. Formal sign off to acceptance of the 
Code of Ethics is retained by the Eastern Internal Audit Services.  

3. INTERNAL AUDIT STRATEGY 

3.1 The purpose of the Internal Audit Strategy Appendix 2 is to confirm: 

 How internal audit services will be delivered; 

 How internal audit services will be developed in accordance with the internal audit 
charter; 

 How internal audit services links to organisational objectives and priorities; and 

 How the internal audit resource requirements have been assessed. 

3.2 The Internal Audit Strategy has been amended this year to reference the required 
procurement of the Internal Audit services contract in consultation with all Councils across 
the Consortium.  

4. STRATEGIC INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 

4.1 The overarching objective of the Strategic Internal Audit Plan Appendix 3 is to provide a 
comprehensive programme of review work over the next three years, with each year 
providing sufficient audit coverage to give annual opinions, which can be used to inform the 
organisation’s Annual Governance Statement. 

4.2 The coverage over the forthcoming three years has been discussed with the Management 
Team to ensure audits are undertaken at the right time, at a time where value can be added, 
as well as ensuring sufficient coverage for an Annual Opinion on the framework of 
governance, risk management and control. The discussions also went into greater detail in 
relation to the scope of the audits for the forthcoming financial year. 

5. ANNUAL INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN  

5.1 Having developed the Strategic Internal Audit Plan, the Annual Internal Audit Plan is an 
extract of this for the forthcoming financial year (see Appendix 4). The plan includes the 
areas being reviewed by Internal Audit, the number of days for each review, the quarter 
during which the audit will take place and a summary and purpose of the review.   

5.2 The Annual Internal Audit Plan for 2020/21 totals 199 days, 129 of which are provided by 
Eastern Internal Audit Services and 70 days of which are for review of the services provided 

Page 85



Page 4 of 23 

 

by Public Sector Partnering Services (PSPS) Ltd, the audit of which is provided by Audit 
Lincolnshire. 

5.3 The work provided by Eastern Internal Audit Services encompasses 13 audits two of which 
covering IT processes. A total of three areas will be audited by Audit Lincolnshire. In total 16 
Internal Audit Reviews will be carried out in 2021/22.  

5.4 Audit verification work concerning audit recommendations implemented to improve the 
Council’s internal control environment will also be undertaken throughout the financial year. 

5.5 The audits of PSPS Limited by Audit Lincolnshire are planned to review the key controls 
which feed into the statement of the accounts, and to review the Housing Benefit Subsidy 
work for the external auditors. Assurance will also be provided on payroll key controls by 
Audit Lincolnshire this year following the implementation of a new system by PSPS. 

5.6 For 2021/22, the Internal Audit team intend to provide cross cutting reviews of high-risk 
areas to compare controls against best practice and the approach taken at other Council’s in 
the consortium for added value. These areas are as follows:  

 Business Strategy and Performance Management – In response to the Covid-19 
Pandemic, Strategy and Performance of the Council will need to adapt to local 
needs, increasing pressures on resources and potentially continued outbreaks of the 
virus. This consortium wide review will evaluate how the Council plans to adapt and 
measure success.  
 

 Covid relief grants – Post award assurance will be provided over the Council’s 
handling of national and discretionary Covid-19 grants and compare its approach to 
local Councils in the consortium drawing out lessons and best practice suggestions 
where appropriate.   

 
5.5 Depending on any changes to the control environment over the year, the annual internal 

audit plan may need to be revised to respond to emerging risks. The Head of Internal Audit 
will regularly review the Strategic Risk Register and report through to the Committee any 
necessary changes to the plan of work. 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 86



Page 5 of 23 

 

APPENDIX 1 – INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER  

 

 
 

EASTERN INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICES 
 

INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER FOR 2021/22 
 
1. Introduction 
 
1.1 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) came into effect from 1 April 2013, these 

provide a consolidated approach across the public sector encouraging continuity, sound 
corporate governance and transparency. 

 
1.2 The Standards require all internal audit services to implement, monitor and review an 

internal audit charter; this formally defines the internal audit’s purpose, authority and 
responsibility, and is a mandatory document.  

 
1.3 The charter also displays formal commitment to and recognises the mandatory nature of the 

Core Principles for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing, the Code of Ethics and the 
Standards, I.e. the International Professional Practices Framework (IPPF).  

 
1.4 This Internal Audit Charter is applicable to each of the following internal audit consortium 

members covered by Eastern Internal Audit Services (EIAS).  
 

 Breckland District Council; 

 Broadland District Council; 

 Great Yarmouth Borough Council; 

 North Norfolk District Council 

 South Holland District Council;  

 South Norfolk Council; and 

 Broads Authority. 
 
1.5 The term Local Authority will be used to describe the above consortium members throughout 

the Charter. 
 
1.6 Mission 

 
Standards require the Internal Audit Function to articulate its overall purpose and summarise 
the way it will provide value to the organisation. The mission statement for EIAS is as 
follows: 
 
“Protecting each of our consortium members ability to enhance value through the provision 
of independent risk-based assurance and advice” 
 

 
1.7 This charter: 

 Establishes the position and reporting lines of internal audit; 

Page 87



Page 6 of 23 

 

 Outlines provision for unrestricted access to information, officers, management and 
members as appropriate; 

 Sets the tone for internal audit activities; 

 Defines the nature and scope of internal audit services, in particular assurance and 
consultancy services; and 

 Sets out the nature and scope of assurance provided to other parties. 
 
1.8 The charter is to be periodically reviewed and presented to Senior Management and the 

Board for approval. The charter will be reviewed annually by the Chief Audit Executive and 
Internal Audit Manager to confirm its ongoing completeness and validity and presented to 
Senior Management and the Board every 2 years for review. 

 
2 Purpose, Authority and Responsibility 
 
2.1 Purpose 
 
2.1.1 Internal auditing is best summarised through its definition with the Standards, “an 

independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed to add value and improve 
an organisation’s operations. It helps an organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing a 
systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk 
management, control and governance processes”. 

 
2.1.2 Internal audit will provide reasonable assurance to each member of the Internal Audit 

Consortium, that necessary arrangements are in place and operating effectively, and to 
identify risk exposures and areas where improvements can be made. 

 
2.2 Authority 
 
2.2.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations (England) 2015, states that the relevant body must; 

“undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, 
control and governance processes, taking into account public sector internal auditing 
standards or guidance”. The statutory requirement for internal audit is recognised in the 
Constitution of each Local Authority and the internal auditing standards in this regard are the 
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. 

 
2.3 Responsibility 
 
2.3.1 The responsibility for maintaining an adequate and effective internal audit to evaluate risk 

management, control and governance processes lies with each Local Authority’s Chief 
Finance Officer (the Section 151 Officer or Section 17 Officer). 

 
2.3.2 The Local Authority and its Members must be satisfied about the adequacy of the advice and 

support it receives from internal audit. 
 
2.3.3 Internal audit is provided by Eastern Internal Audit Services, with the Chief Audit Executive 

and Internal Audit Manager responsible for ensuring the internal audit activity is undertaken 
in accordance with the definition of internal auditing, the code of ethics and the standards. 

 
2.3.4 Senior management are responsible for ensuring that internal control, risk management and 

governance arrangements are sufficient to address the risks facing the Local Authority. 
Accountability for responding to internal audit rests with senior management who either 
accept and implement the recommendations, or formally reject it. Any advice that is rejected 
will be formally reported.  

 

Page 88



Page 7 of 23 

 

3 Key Relationships and Position in the Organisation 
 
3.1 The standards require the terms ‘Chief Audit Executive’, ‘Board’ and ‘Senior Management’ to 

be defined in the context of the governance arrangements in each public sector organisation 
in order to safeguard the independence and objectivity of internal audit. The following 
interpretations are applied within Eastern Internal Audit Services. 

 
3.2 Chief Audit Executive 
 
3.2.1 The Chief Audit Executive is based at South Norfolk Council and provides the Head of 

Internal Audit role to all consortium members except for South Norfolk Council and 
Broadland District Council.  

 
At South Norfolk Council, the Chief Audit Executive undertakes the Chief of Staff role, 
administratively reporting to the Managing Director of South Norfolk and Broadland Council.  
Due to responsibilities undertaken as part of the Chief of Staff role and the Internal Audit 
Manager currently finalising qualifications, the Head of Internal Audit role for South Norfolk 
Council and Broadland District Council is undertaken by a contractor to ensure that 
independence is safeguarded. 

 
3.2.2 The Head of Internal Audit and the Internal Audit Manager also report functionally to each 

Section 151 Officer or Section 17 Officer at all other members of the consortium.  
 
3.2.3 The Head of Internal Audit and the Internal Audit Manager also have a direct line of reporting 

and unfettered access to the Chief Executive, the Senior Management Team at each Local 
Authority and the Chair of the Board at each Local Authority.  

 
3.2.4 The delivery of the Annual Audit Plans and any specified ad-hoc assignments is provided by 

an external contractor, TIAA ltd from 1 April 2015. The Internal Audit Manager manages the 
contract.  

 
3.3 Board 
 
3.3.1 In the context of overseeing the work of Internal Audit at each Local Authority, the ‘Board’ 

will be the Audit Committee (or equivalent) of the Local Authority, which has been 
established as part of the governance arrangements. The Audit Committee’s responsibilities 
are discharged through each of the Local Authority’s Constitution’s and explicitly referred to 
in each terms of reference. 

 
3.3.2 This functional reporting includes;  

 Approving the audit charter, audit strategy and risk based annual plans; 

 Receiving regular reports on the outcomes of internal audit activity and performance; 

 Receiving regular reports on management action in relation to agreed internal audit 
recommendations; 

 Receiving the Annual Report and Opinion of the Head of Internal Audit, alongside a 
conclusion as to the effectiveness of internal audit; 

 Overseeing External Assessments of the Internal Audit Service, at least once every 5 
years.   
 

3.3.3 Internal Audit work closely with the chair and members of the Audit Committee to facilitate 
and support their activities, part of which includes facilitating a self- assessment and 
providing training.   

 
3.4 Senior Management 

Page 89



Page 8 of 23 

 

 
3.4.1 ‘Senior Management’ is those individuals responsible for the leadership and direction of the 

organisation, and are responsible for specific aspects of internal control, risk management 
and governance arrangements. There is effective liaison between internal audit and senior 
management to ensure that independence remains, and provides for a critical challenge.  

 
3.4.2 The Internal Audit Manager meets regularly with the Section 151 Officer or Section 17 

Officer to ensure organisational awareness is maintained, to discuss progress with the 
agreed Internal Audit Plan and to maintain a good working relationship.  These 
arrangements facilitate discussions in relation to the current and emerging risks and issues 
to ensure that the internal audit plan of work remains reflective and also responds as 
required.  

 
3.5 External Audit 
 
3.5.1 Regular liaison is maintained with External Audit to consult on audit plans, and to discuss 

matters of mutual interest. The external auditors have the opportunity to take account of the 
work of internal audit where appropriate.  

 
3.6 Other Internal Audit Service Providers 
 
3.6.1 Where appropriate internal audit will liaise with other internal audit providers, where shared 

arrangements exist. In such cases, a dialogue will be opened with the Chief Audit Executive 
to agree a way forward regarding the auditing of such shared services. This is to ensure an 
efficient and effective approach, and enable reliance on each other’s outcomes. Where 
formal arrangements are entered into a protocol will be determined and agreed by both Chief 
Audit Executives. 

 
3.6.2 Internal audit will also co-operate with all external review and inspection bodies that are 

authorised to access and evaluate the activities of the Local Authority, to determine 
compliance with regulations and standards. Assurances arising from this work will be taken 
into account where applicable. 

 
 
4 Rights of Access 
 
4.1 Internal audit, with strict accountability for confidentiality and safeguarding records and 

information, is authorised to have the right of access to all records, assets, personnel and 
premises and has authority to obtain such information and explanations as it considers 
necessary to fulfil its responsibilities. This access is full, free and unrestricted and is set out 
in each Local Authority’s Constitution. 

 
4.2 Such access shall be granted on demand and shall not be subject to prior notice, although in 

principle, the provision of prior notice will be given wherever possible and appropriate, 
unless circumstances dictate otherwise. 

 
5 Objective and Scope 
 
5.1 The provision of assurance services is the primary role of Eastern Internal Audit Services, 

thus allowing the Head of Internal Audit to provide an annual audit opinion on the adequacy 
and effectiveness of the Local Authority’s framework of governance, risk management and 
control, together with reasons if the opinion is unfavourable.  

 

Page 90



Page 9 of 23 

 

5.2 Internal audit will also provide consultancy services, at the request of management. These 
reviews are advisory in nature and generally performed to facilitate improved governance, 
risk management and control. This work may contribute to the annual audit opinion.  

 
5.3 Whichever role / remit is carried out by internal audit the scope is to be determined by 

internal audit, through discussions with senior management, however this scope will not be 
unduly bias nor shall it be restricted.  

 
5.4 A risk based Strategic Internal Audit Plan will be developed each year to determine an 

appropriate level of risk based audit coverage required to generate an annual audit opinion. 
The plan will be derived from risk assessments, discussions with Senior Management and 
Audit Committee taking prior year’s assurance results into account.  

 
5.5 Each audit review will be designed to provide evidence based assurance over the 

management of risk and controls within that area. The results of each review will be shared 
with management so that any required improvements can be actioned to restore satisfactory 
systems of internal control.  

 
5.6 It is management’s responsibility to control the risk of fraud and corruption; however internal 

audit will be alert to such risks in all the work that is undertaken. In addition, the Head of 
Internal Audit and Internal Audit Manager are either responsible for, or is consulted on, 
related policy and strategy. These include for example; Counter Fraud, Corruption, Anti-
Bribery, Whistleblowing, Anti-Money Laundering and includes the related promotion and 
training for officers and councillors. 

 
5.7 Through the contract in place with TIAA Ltd there are other services that can be provided, 

these include: fraud investigations, grant certification and digital forensics. 
 
 

6 Independence and Objectivity  
 
6.1 Internal Audit must be sufficiently independent of the activities that are audited to enable an 

impartial, unbiased and effective professional judgement. All internal auditors working within 
Eastern Internal Audit Services, annually confirm their adherence the Code of Ethics, which 
sets out the minimum standards for performance and conduct. The four core principles are 
integrity, objectivity, confidentiality and competency. 

 
6.2 As contractors the TIAA Internal auditors have no operational responsibility or authority over 

any of the activities which they are required to review. They do not engage in any other 
activity, which would impair their judgement, objectivity or independence.  

 
6.3 The Head of Internal Audit and Internal Audit Manager have responsibility for the strategic 

direction of the Internal Audit Service. At South Norfolk and Broadland District Council where 
a shared service arrangement is in place the Chief of Staff carries out additional 
responsibilities that fall outside of internal auditing. These include; 

 

 Monitoring Officer 

 Democratic Services 

 Legal Services 

 Freedom of Information  

 General Data Protection Regulation 

 Human Resources  

 Communications and Marketing 
 

Page 91



Page 10 of 23 

 

Safeguards exist to limit any impairments that may occur to the independence and objectivity 
at Broadland and South Norfolk Council. The Internal Audit Manager assumes responsibility 
for the daily management, progress reporting and quality assurance of any internal audit 
work carried out by the contractor and does not have any involvement in the above-
mentioned activities.  
 
In line with the PSIAS requirements, until the Internal Audit Manager is CMIIA qualified, the 
Head of Internal Audit role at South Norfolk and Broadland District Council will be carried out 
by a fully qualified contractor responsible for overseeing the Annual Audit Opinion. The Head 
of Internal Audit will continue to provide the Annual Audit Opinion for all other consortium 
members.  

 
6.4 If the independence or objectivity of the Head of Internal Audit is impaired, or appears to be, 

the details of the impairment will be disclosed to the Internal Audit Manager and / or senior 
management. The nature of the disclosure will depend upon the impairment. 

 
7 Professional Standards 
 
7.1 The Internal Audit Service and all Internal Audit staff operate in accordance with all 

mandatory guidance within the PSIAS including the Core Principles for the Professional 
Practice of Internal Auditing, the Code of Ethics, the Standards and Definition of Internal 
Auditing. Internal Auditors also have regard for the principles contained within the Standards 
of Public Life.  

 
 
8 Internal Audit Resources 
 
8.1 The Head of Internal Audit will be professionally qualified (CMIIA, CCAB or equivalent) and 

have wide ranging internal audit management experience to enable them to deliver the 
responsibilities of the role.  

 
8.2 The Head of Internal Audit is supported by the Internal Audit Manager in ensuring the 

Internal Audit Service has access through the contract to a team of staff who have the 
appropriate range of knowledge, skills and experience to deliver the audit service.  

 
9 Audit Planning 
 
9.1 The Internal Audit Manager overseen by the Head of Internal Audit develops a strategy, 

alongside a strategic and annual internal audit plan, using a risk-based approach.  
 
9.2 The Internal Audit Strategy provides a clear direction for internal audit services and creates a 

link between the Charter, the strategic plan and the annual plan. 
 
9.3 The annual internal audit plan of work, developed as per the Internal Audit Strategy, is 

derived using a risk-based approach, discussed with Senior Management and approved by 
the Audit Committee. The Internal Audit Manager is responsible for the delivery of the 
internal audit plan, which will be kept under regular review and reported to the Audit 
Committee. 

 
10 Audit Reporting 
 
10.1 On conclusion of each assurance review included within the annual internal audit plan, a 

report will be provided to management giving an opinion on the adequacy of controls in place 
to manage risk. This report will provide an assurance level and associated recommendations 
to ensure that risks are appropriately addressed.  

Page 92



Page 11 of 23 

 

 
10.2 Management can choose not to accept / implement the recommendations raised, in all 

instances this will be reported through to the Audit Committee, especially in instances 
whereby there are no compensating controls justifying the course of action.  
 

10.3 A Progress Report is periodically presented to the Audit Committee which includes the 
Executive Summary of all final reports, any significant changes to the approved plan and the 
performance of the contractor relative to completing the agreed plan.  

 
10.4 A Follow Up Report is also periodically produced for the Audit Committee showing 

management progress against the implementation of agreed recommendations arising from 
internal audit assurance reports. The Internal Audit Team will verify and obtain evidence to 
demonstrate recommendation completion from responsible officers.  

 
10.5 An Internal Audit Annual Report and Opinion is produced for Senior Management and the 

Audit Committee following the completion of the annual audit plan each financial year.  
 

10.6 This report includes a summary of all Internal Audit work carried out, details of 
recommendations that have been implemented by management and the Annual Opinion.  
 

10.7 The Annual Opinion is based on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Local 
Authority’s framework of governance, risk management and control during the financial year, 
together with reasons if the opinion is unfavourable. This opinion is reached by considering 
the results from assurance reviews undertaken throughout the year.   
 

10.8 The report also highlights any issues that are deemed particularly relevant to the Annual 
Governance Statement (AGS) and the results of the review of the effectiveness of internal 
audit.  

 
10 Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme 
 
11.1 The standards require a quality assurance and improvement programme to be developed 

that covers all aspects of internal audit; including both internal and external assessments.  
 
11.2 If an improvement plan is required as a result of the internal or external assessment, the 

Internal Audit Manager will coordinate appropriate action and report this to Senior 
Management and the Audit Committee, as part of the annual report and opinion.  

 
11.3 Internal Assessment 
 
11.3.1 Internal assessment includes the ongoing monitoring of the performance of the contractor 

through the performance measures. These form a key part of service management of the 
contract and are subject to quarterly reporting to the Internal Audit Manager for review.   

 
11.3.2 On conclusion of audit reviews a feedback form is provided to the key officer identified 

during the audit process. Outcomes are reviewed and relevant improvements discussed with 
the contractor.   

 
11.3.3 The standards also require periodic self-assessment in relation to the effectiveness of 

internal audit, the detail and outcomes of which are then forwarded to the Section 151 
Officer or Section 17 Officer for their independent scrutiny, before the summary of which is 
provided to the Audit Committee as part of the annual report and opinion. This information 
enables the Committee to be assured that the internal audit service is operating in 
accordance with best practice. 

 

Page 93



Page 12 of 23 

 

11.4 External Assessment 
 
11.4.1 External assessments must be conducted at least once every five years by a qualified, 

independent assessor or assessment team from outside the Organisation. This can be in the 
form of a full external quality assessment that involves interviews with relevant stakeholders, 
supported by examination of the internal audit approach and methodology leading to the 
completion of an independent report, or a validated self-assessment, which the Internal Audit 
Manager compiles against the PSIAS assessment tool, which is then validated by an 
external assessor/team. The full external quality assessment is the chosen option for 
Eastern Internal Audit Services.  

 
 
11.4.2 An external assessment will: 

 Provide an assessment on the internal audit function’s conformance to the standards; 

 Assess the performance of the internal audit activity in light of its charter, the 
expectations of the various boards and executive management; 

 Identify opportunities and offer ideas and counsel for improving the performance of 
the internal audit activity, raising the value that internal audit provides to the 
organisation; and  

 Benchmark the activities of the internal audit function against best practice. 
 
11.4.3 In January 2017 Eastern Internal Audit Services was fully assessed by the Institute of 

Internal Auditors. The conclusion of the review was: 
 

The internal audit team fully meet most of the Standards, as well as the Definition, Core 
Principles and the Code of Ethics which form the mandatory elements of the Institute of 
Internal Auditors’ International Professional Practices Framework (IPPF), the globally 
recognised standard for quality in Internal Auditing. This is described as “Generally 
Conforms”. It means that the internal audit team may state in its audit reports that the work 
“has been performed in accordance with the IPPF” 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 94



Page 13 of 23 

 

 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX 2 – INTERNAL AUDIT STRATEGY 

 
 

EASTERN INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICES 
 

INTERNAL AUDIT STRATEGY FOR 2021/22 
 
1. Introduction 
 
1.1 The Internal Audit Strategy is a high-level statement of; 

 how the internal audit service will be delivered; 

 how internal audit services will be developed in accordance with the internal audit 
charter; 

 how internal audit services links to the organisational objectives and priorities; and 

 how the internal audit resource requirements have been assessed. 
 

The provision of such a strategy is set out in the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (the 
standards). 

 
1.2 The purpose of the strategy is to provide a clear direction for internal audit services and 

creates a link between the Charter and the annual plan. 
 
2. How the internal audit service will be delivered 
 
2.1 The Role of the Head of Internal Audit and contract management is provided by South 

Norfolk Council to; Breckland, Broadland, North Norfolk, South Holland and South Norfolk 
District Councils, Great Yarmouth Borough Council and the Broads Authority. All Authorities 
are bound by a Partnership Agreement. 

 
2.2 The delivery of the internal audit plans for each Authority is provided by an external audit 

contractor, who reports directly to the Head of Internal Audit. The current contract is with 
TIAA Ltd, and commenced on 1 April 2015, for an initial period of 5 years ending 31 March 
2020. In line with the terms of this contract an extension has been agreed which will allow 
the contract to run for a further year terminating on 31 March 2022. The Head of Internal 
Audit and Internal Audit Manager in consultation with all consortium members will be 
procuring the internal audit contract during 2021.   

 
3. How internal audit services will be developed in accordance with the internal audit 

charter 
 
3.1 Internal Audit objective and outcomes 
 
3.1.1 Internal audit is an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed to add 

value and improve the Authority’s operations. It helps the Authority accomplish its objectives 

Page 95



Page 14 of 23 

 

by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of 
risk management, control and governance processes. 

 
3.1.2 The outcomes of the internal audit service are detailed in the Internal Audit Charter and can 

be summarised as; delivering a risk based audit plan in a professional, independent manner, 
to provide the Authority with an opinion on the level of assurance it can place upon the 
internal control environment, systems of risk management and corporate governance 
arrangements, and to make recommendations to improve these provisions, where further 
development would be beneficial. 

 
3.1.3 The reporting of the outcomes from internal audit is through direct reports to senior 

management in respect of the areas reviewed under their remit, in the form of an audit 
report. The Audit and Risk Committee and the Section 17 Officer also receive: 

 The Audit Plans Report, which is risk based and forms the next financial year’s plan 
of work; and  

 The Annual Report and Opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the 
Authority’s framework of governance, risk management and control. 

 
3.2 Internal Audit Planning 
 
3.2.1 A risk-based internal audit plan (RBIA) is established in consultation with senior 

management that identifies where assurance and consultancy is required. 
 
3.2.2 The audit plan establishes a link between the proposed audit areas and the priorities and 

risks of the Authority considering: 

 Stakeholder expectations, and feedback from senior and operational managers; 

 Objectives set in the strategic plan and business plans; 

 Risk maturity in the organisation to provide an indication of the reliability of risk 
registers; 

 Management’s identification and response to risk, including risk mitigation strategies 
and levels of residual risk; 

 Legal and regulatory requirements; 

 The audit universe – all the audits that could be performed; and 

 Previous Internal Audit plans and the results of audit engagements. 
 
3.2.3 In order to ensure that the internal audit service adds value to the Authority, assurance 

should be provided that major business risks are being managed appropriately, along with 
providing assurance over the system of internal control, risk management and governance 
processes. 

 
3.2.4 Risk based internal audit planning starts with the Authority’s Business Plan, linking through 

to the priority areas and the related high-level objectives. The focus is then on the risks, and 
opportunities, that may hinder, or help, the achievement of the objectives. The approach also 
focuses on the upcoming projects and developments for the Authority. 

 
3.2.5 The approach ensures; better and earlier identification of risks and increased ability to 

control them; greater coherence with the Authority’s priorities; an opportunity to engage with 
stakeholders; the Committee and Senior Management better understand how the internal 
audit service helps to accomplish its objectives; and this ensures that best practice is 
followed. 

 
3.2.6 The key distinction with establishing plans derived from a risk based internal audit approach 

is that the focus should be to understand and analyse management’s assessment of risk and 
to base audit plans and efforts around that process. 

Page 96



Page 15 of 23 

 

 
3.2.7 Consultation with the Section 17 Officer and Senior Management takes place through 

discussion during which current and future developments, changes, risks and areas of 
concern are considered and the plan amended accordingly to take these into account.  

 
3.2.8 The outcome of this populates the annual internal audit plan, which is discussed with and 

approved by Management Team prior to these being brought to the Audit and Risk 
Committee. In addition, External Audit is also provided with details of the plans. 

 
3.3 Internal Audit Annual Opinion 
 
3.3.1 The annual opinion provides Senior Management and the Audit and Risk Committee with an 

assessment of the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Authority’s framework of 
governance, risk management and control. 

 
3.3.2 The opinion is based upon: 

 The summary of the internal audit work carried out; 

 The follow up of management action taken to ensure implementation of agreed 
action as at financial year end; 

 Any reliance placed upon third party assurances; 

 Any issues that are deemed particularly relevant to the Annual Governance 
Statement (AGS); 

 The Annual Review of the Effectiveness of Internal Audit, which includes;  
o A statement on conformance with the standards and the results of any quality 

assurance and improvement programme, 
o  the outcomes of the performance indicators and  
o the degree of compliance with CIPFA’s Statement on the Role of the Head of 

Internal Audit. 
 
3.3.3 In order to achieve the above internal audit operates within the standards and uses a risk 

based approach to audit planning and to each audit assignment undertaken. The control 
environment for each audit area reviewed is assessed for its adequacy and effectiveness of 
the controls and an assurance rating applied. 

 
4. How internal audit services links to the organisational objectives and priorities 
 
4.1 In addition to the approach taken as outlined in section 3.2 (Internal Audit Planning), which 

ensures that the service links to the organisations objectives and priorities and thereby 
through the risk based approach adds value, internal audit also ensure an awareness is 
maintained of local and national issues and risks. 

 
4.2 The annual audit planning process ensures that new or emerging risks are identified and 

considered at a local level. This strategy ensures that the planning process is all 
encompassing and reviews the records held by the Authority in respect of risks and issue 
logs and registers, reports that are taken through the Authority Committee meetings, and 
through extensive discussions with senior management. 

 
4.3 Awareness of national issues is maintained through the contract in place with the external 

internal audit provider through regular “horizon scanning” updates, and annually a particular 
focus provided on issues to be considered during the planning process. Membership and 
subscription to professional bodies such as the Institute of Internal Auditors and the CIPFA 
on-line query service, liaison with External Audit, and networking, all help to ensure 
developments are noted and incorporated where appropriate. 

 

Page 97



Page 16 of 23 

 

5. How internal audit resource requirements have been assessed 
 
5.1 Through utilising a contractor the risk based internal audit plan can be developed without 

having to take into account the existing resources, as you would with an in-house team, thus 
ensuring that audit coverage for the year is appropriate to the Authority’s needs and not tied 
to a particular resource. 

 
5.2 That said a core team of staff is provided to deliver the audit plan, and these staff bring with 

them considerable public sector knowledge and experience. These core staff can be 
supplemented with additional staff should the audit plan require it, and in addition specialists, 
e.g. information technology auditors, contract auditor, fraud specialists, can be drafted in to 
assist in completing the internal audit plan and focusing on particular areas of specialism. 

 
5.3 All audit professionals are encouraged to continually develop their skills and knowledge 

through various training routes; formal courses of study, in-house training, seminars and 
webinars. As part of the contract with TIAA Ltd the contractor needs to ensure that each 
member of staff completes a day’s training per quarter. 

 
 
 

 

 
 

 

Page 98



Page 17 of 23 

 

APPENDIX 3 – STRATEGIC INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 99



Page 18 of 23 

 

 
 

P
age 100



Page 19 of 23 

 

 
 
 
 

P
age 101



Page 20 of 23 

 

 
 

P
age 102



Page 21 of 23 

 

 
 
 
APPENDIX 4 – ANNUAL INTENAL AUDIT PLAN 2021/22  

 

 
 

 
 

P
age 103



Page 22 of 23 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 104



Page 23 of 23 

 

 
 

P
age 105



T
his page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report of:  Matthew Hogan, Executive Manager for Growth  
 
To: Governance and Audit Committee, July 29th 2021 
 
Author: Corey Gooch, Senior Change and Performance Business Partner 
 

Subject:  To provide an update on the councils strategic risk register  
 

Purpose: To provide an update to the committee on the progress of the 
Council’s identified strategic risks 

 

Recommendation(s):  
 
1) That the panel gives consideration to both the covering report and Appendix A, which 

details the latest assessment of the council’s strategic risks  
 

 
1.0   BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 This covering report and detailed Appendix A seeks to present to Governance and 

Audit Committee an overview of the key risks that the council is exposed to as of the 
time of writing this report (April 2021), the action taking place to mitigate those risks, 
and an up to date assessment of their likelihood and impact.  
 

1.2 By their very nature, strategic risks are those that have been identified as having the 
potential to cause organisational-wide impact and will often cover a number of key 
services and departments. Strategic risks are captured within the council’s risk 
management system, which is available to the council’s management team and is 
reviewed on a regular basis. 

 
1.3 The report and associated identifies that there are currently 25 recorded strategic risks 

that the authority is monitoring. These 25 risks are captured, described and scored in 
a Strategic Risk Register. This register is included in Appendix A for consideration by 
the Governance and Audit committee.     

 
1.4 In terms of methodology, the Council’s risk scoring mechanism is based on a 5x5 

matrix and is comparable with best practice in other similar organisations. The 
risk matrix provides a comprehensive assessment and understanding of risk 
likelihood and impact. The matrix results in a numerical score which combines the 
impact of the risk occurring with the likelihood of it happening. The rating for 
individual risks ranges from highest (red) to lowest (green) with categories in between, 
depending on their rating, details of likelihood and impact scoring criteria are based on 
the councils risk management policy and can be found below 

 
 
1.5 The spread of risk across the 25 recorded in the council’s latest Strategic Risk 

Register, following mitigation by services and the council’s management team, is 
as follows;  

 

Risk level Number of strategic risks by score 
(post-mitigation) 

High level (Red) 2 

Page 107

Agenda Item 9.



Medium (Amber) 20 

Low (Green and Yellow) 3 

  
1.6 Overall, the register contained within Appendix 1 demonstrates that strategic risks are 

being proactively managed by the authority, with a series of mitigations in place to 
reduce and mitigate impact and likelihood across a number of key areas. 
 

1.7 Within the strategic risk register included in Appendix A, each risk is ascribed a short 
narrative which seeks to cover the following 

 

 The risk title 

 A description of what the risk council entail 

 The approach to mitigation  
 
1.8 The risk register is presented for consideration by the Committee. Officers will be 

available at the meeting of the Committee to answer questions on the content of the 
register. 
  

1.9 The strategic risk register in Appendix A details a number of changes to risks since the 
previous quarter, a breakdown of these changes can be found below. 

 

Title Change since last quarter 

Homelessness 
 

Cyber Incident  

Parkwood Leisure Provision  

Regulatory Compliance 
 

Local Economy 
 

Council Financial Positions  

Short term impact on the council of a challenging transition in the 
UK/EU relationship 

 

Vulnerability risk  

Technology infrastructure failure  

Changes in legislation and policy in response to Covid19 
 

Changes to the strategic shared partnership  

Senior Management Capacity  

Performance of PSPS contract 
 

Waste Collections  

Reductions in council performance 
  

Retention of staff 
 

External Reputation 
  

Capacity to deal with more than one significant incident  

Page 108



Title Change since last quarter 

Outsourcing/Service provider failure  

Impact of COVID-19 upon the council  

COVID-19 Outbreak response 
 

Safeguarding  

Decision Making  

Staff Presentation (availability/turning up for work) 
 

Impact of extensive home working  

Internal communications breakdown 
 

External communications breakdown  

Impact of local government re-organisation  

 
 
2.0 Recommendation 
 
2.1 Option 1 - That the contents of the covering report and the strategic risk register, as 

captured within Appendix A, are noted (recommended) 
 

2.2 Option 2 – Do Nothing 
 
3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
3.1 To allow the Governance and Audit committee to review the strategic risks that the 

authority is exposed to, and to evaluate the council’s current plan of action in 
respect of mitigation of each.   

 
4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS 
 
4.1 To ensure that the identified Strategic Risks are properly monitored and reviewed in 

accordance with the Corporate Risk Policy.  
 
5.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1       Constitution & Legal 
 
5.1.1    This report and associated appendix has been prepared within the terms of 

reference of the Governance and Audit Committee.  
 

5.2       Corporate Priorities 

5.2.1   The strategic risk register in Appendix 1 presents an assessment of risks that have 

the potential to impact upon and shape the delivery of the council’s corporate 

priorities. 

5.3 Financial 

Page 109



5.3.1    There are no specific financial implications associated with the report 

recommendation. However, the strategic risk register in Appendix 1 presents an 

assessment of risks that have the potential to impact upon the council’s financial 

circumstances.  

 

5.4 Reputation 

 

5.4.1    There are no specific reputation implications associated with the report 

recommendation. However, the strategic risk register in Appendix 1 presents an 

assessment of risks that may create reputational risks for the council if not managed 

and mitigated appropriately. 

 

5.5  Risk Management 

  5.5.1    The strategic risk register contained within Appendix 1 is one of the council’s key 

tools for supporting the authority in managing key strategic risks.  

5.6  Staffing 

  5.6.1    The report contains information relating to staffing issues. 

6.0       WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED  

6.1       All wards 

7.0       ACRONYMS  

 PMP – Performance Monitoring Panel 

 LA – Local Authority 

 PSPS – Public Sector Partnerships Services 

 SLA’s- Service level agreements 

 GDPR- General Data Protection Regulations 

 CIP- Change, Innovation & Performance 

Background papers:- 

 
Lead Contact Officer 
Name and Post:  Corey Gooch – Senior Change & Performance Business 

Partner 
 

Telephone Number: 07766510458 
Email: corey.gooch@sholland.gov.uk 

 
 
Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting 
 
Name and Post:  Corey Gooch – Senior Change & Performance Business 

Partner 
 
Key Decision:  No 
 

Page 110



Exempt Decision: No 
 
Appendices attached to this report:  
 
Appendix A 
 

Strategic Risk Register 

 

Page 111



This page is intentionally left blank



SHDC Strategic Risk Report 
 
 

 

Title Description Controls/Mitigation  
Current Risk 
Score 

Impact Likeli-hood Trend Icon Latest Note Assigned To 

Homelessness 

The council's 
ability to meet 
the demands for 
support with 
homelessness 
and housing 
advice, 
supporting 
residents in 
preventing 
homelessness 
before it occurs, 
and when it does 
occur supporting 
residents in 
securing 

Resources in the Housing Options 
Team have been refocussed to 
concentrate on specific aspects of 
the Homelessness service- 
General Advice, Prevention, Relief 
and support for the private sector. 
The post of Housing First 
Responder has been created to 
add additional support and 
capacity to the service. This 
capacity will increase the number 
of instances where homelessness 
can be prevented. Additional 
support is in place for rough 
sleepers and those at risk of rough 
sleeping through the 
Change4Lincs project. The 
Northgate project team are 
currently progressing self-triage 
tools through My Options which 
will add additional capacity to the 
service through customer self-
service. Improvements are 
expected to be brought online in 
early 2021. 

16 

 

4 4 

 
Since March 2020 there has been an 
on-going moratorium providing 
protection for renters. This has 
essentially placed a ban on people 
being made homeless from privately 
rented accommodation; this has most 
recently been extended to the 
31/03/2021. Whilst further protection 
may be granted, it is unlikely this will 
continue beyond a short extension. 
The furlough scheme is also due to 
end on the 31/03/2021. Given that 
loss of private sector accommodation 
ordinarily accounts for 30% of cases 
the council owes a homeless duty 
towards it is highly likely the council 
will see a surge in people requiring 
advice, assistance and interim 
accommodation. The council has 
some interim resources in the form of 
Housing First Responders until the 
31/03/2021, which is contributing to 
reducing waiting times. However, it is 
likely the increase in demand for 
interim accommodation will have a 
financial impact on the council. The 
surge in demand can be mitigated at 
the current risk level if interim 
resources continue to be made 
available. 

Jason King 

P
age 113



Title Description Controls/Mitigation  
Current Risk 
Score 

Impact Likeli-hood Trend Icon Latest Note Assigned To 

Cyber Incident 

The risk of the 
council's ICT 
infrastructure 
being severally 
impact as the 
result of a cyber 
incident, both in 
terms of 
downtime of 
systems and loss 
of 
data/information. 
The threat 
landscape 
across the UK is 
continuously 
increasing and 
appears on the 
national risk 
assessment. The 
Council need to 
constantly adapt 
in its security 
mitigation and 
training to ensure 
they are both 
prepared from a 
technical and 
from a people 
aspect 

There are a range of measures in 
place including firewalls, Mimecast 
and antivirus in order to protect the 
council's ICT systems. The ICT 
team play an active part in the 
East Midlands WARP which allow 
us to have early sight of issues 
being experienced across 
neighbouring Authorities and 
Agencies. ICT is also a member of 
the CISP formed by the National 
Cyber Security Centre, this allows 
us early awareness from the 
central agency responsible for 
cyber threats across the UK as 
well as allowing them to monitor 
our environment to a degree. 
These mitigations afford ICT 
awareness of emerging threats. 

15 

 

5 3 

 

We continue to see a national trend 
for Cyber Security threats across 
Public Sector, which has almost 
doubled in the past 12 months, and 
therefore the likelihood of this risk 
remains high.  ICT continue to 
operate a Defence In Depth method 
of protection and the implementation 
of a Security Information & Events 
Management system across the ICT 
estate has improved our visibility and 
response to potential threats.  
Mimecast continues to block around 
20-30% of malicious, spam or 
inappropriate email from reaching our 
staff and members on a monthly 
basis. 

Jackie Wright 

Parkwood 
Leisure 
Provision 

The council's 
ability to provide 
leisure services 
through its 
contract with 

Working closely with leisure 
operator to ensure that their 
projected targets are being met. 
Utilising the advice of the council's 
Contracts and Procurement team, 

12 

 

4 3 

 
COVID-19 has enforced the closure 
of our leisure centres and therefore It 
will take time to gain attendance 
figures, with the recent 
announcement of the phased easing 

Emily 

Holmes 

P
age 114



Title Description Controls/Mitigation  
Current Risk 
Score 

Impact Likeli-hood Trend Icon Latest Note Assigned To 

Parkwood 
Leisure, 
including any 
financial risk 
exposure and 
service delivery 
issues as a result 
of the Covid-19 
pandemic 

alongside external advisors, 
ensuring that we are protecting the 
contract by offering financial 
support up till December 2020. 
Apply for government funding once 
the details and applications are 
announced. 

of lockdown and the re-opening of 
leisure centres we are hopeful we will 
see attendance start to increase in 
the coming months. 

Local Economy 

The risk of the 
economy of 
South Holland as 
a whole 
experiencing a 
downturn, 
resulting in both 
employment and 
business 
closures, and 
having a 
consequential 
impact on a 
range of resident 
wellbeing. 

The council regularly monitors the 
impact of the local economy 
through regular engagement with 
businesses and partners. 
Engagement with business and 
the council remains high. A large 
proportion of the economy of 
South Holland is structured around 
the agriculture, food production 
and distribution, and horticultural 
sector which continues to be 
resilient to the effects of the 
pandemic on the wider economy. 
The council's longer term 
economic strategy of supporting 
innovation and productivity in the 
food sector is intended to further 
support this resilience. In terms of 
employment and redundancies, 
the council continues to work 
closely with the DWP and local 
businesses to minimise the 
potential impacts of large scale 
redundancies if they arise. The 
Covid-19 pandemic represents a 
risk to the wider economy of the 

12 

 

4 3 

 

No change to this risk to note 

Nigel Burch 

P
age 115



Title Description Controls/Mitigation  
Current Risk 
Score 

Impact Likeli-hood Trend Icon Latest Note Assigned To 

district. The council has mobilised 
a package of support for local 
businesses during the pandemic, 
including council-administered 
grant schemes. However the 
financial support available to the 
council is finite, and therefore the 
council is unable to wholly mitigate 
the impact of the pandemic on the 
economy. The council is closely 
monitoring the impact of the end of 
the UK/EU transition arrangement 
on local businesses. 

Council 
Financial 
Positions 

The council's 
medium term 
financial strategy 
has identified a 
budget gap and 
this has been 
exacerbated by 
the Covid 
pandemic. The 
risk will be that 
this budget gap 
cannot effectively 
be bridged 
during a 
pandemic and 
sums expended 
on maintaining 
and adapting 
services through 
the pandemic are 
not fully 
recovered from 

An efficiency programme will need 
to identify where either savings 
can be made, a range of Covid 
related grant funding drawn down 
and new income sources identified 
to move the council towards a 
balanced budget. As part of the 
2020/21 budget process a number 
of efficiency opportunities were 
identified to reduce the budget 
gap. As a result of officers now 
working on the pandemic 
response, progress has been 
impacted. A task group has been 
established and now working hard 
to identify further options and 
opportunities. 

12 

 

3 4 

 

As part of the 2021/22 budget 
process an efficiency programme 
task group has been established 
which will identify new savings 
opportunities and income sources 
and monitor and report the financial 
impact of implemented savings 
project on the medium term financial 
strategy, including the in year budget 
monitoring position. We will look to 
see this risk reduce in the coming 
months as this task group and its 
deliverables are developed. 
 
  

Samantha 

Knowles 

P
age 116



Title Description Controls/Mitigation  
Current Risk 
Score 

Impact Likeli-hood Trend Icon Latest Note Assigned To 

government. 

Short term 
impact on the 
council of a 
challenging 
transition in 
the UK/EU 
relationship 

The end of the 
EU / UK 
transition period 
on January 2021, 
and the terms of 
the ongoing 
relationship 
between the two 
parties at the 
time of the 
transition, have a 
short term impact 
upon the council 

The council has £33.5k in 
government funding left from the 
previous no deal planning 
scenario, which the council has 
available to utilise for any short 
term response work required in 
respect of Brexit. The legal team 
has previously undertaken work to 
address legislation changes, and 
continues to do so. Guidance 
continues to be sought on key 
matters of importance to the 
council, including data storage and 
data handling. 

12 

 

3 4 

 Via regular interaction with 
businesses and stakeholders such as 
The Chamber of Commerce and the 
Federation of Small Businesses, the 
Council maintains a watching brief on 
the impacts on the local and wider 
economy of the UK’s withdrawal from 
the EU. At present, local business 
are reporting some problems around 
delays at the ports, and additional 
paperwork requirements, but these 
are expected to diminish as the new 
processes become embedded. 

Phil Norman 

Vulnerability 
risk 

That the council 
fails to ensure 
that vulnerable 
residents are 
supported, 
especially in 
response to the 
Covid-19 
pandemic 

During the pandemic there have 
been three 'groups' of vulnerable 
residents. 'Clinically Extremely 
Vulnerable' (shielded) 'Clinically 
vulnerable' and 'other vulnerable'. 
There are clear methods in place 
to identify and support residents 
with targeted support pathways. 
For Clinically Extremely Vulnerable 
residents, this is being monitored 
through the Lincolnshire 
Resilience Forum framework and 
outcomes reported to central 
government. Funding and 
schemes are being responded to 
to maximise the support to local 
residents. 

12 

 

4 3 

 

This risk remains high in both impact 
and likelihood as we have seen more 
negative impacts to our residents 
brought on by the COVID-19 
pandemic, these impacts are often 
amplified on vulnerable residents. 

Emily Spicer 

P
age 117



Title Description Controls/Mitigation  
Current Risk 
Score 

Impact Likeli-hood Trend Icon Latest Note Assigned To 

Technology 
infrastructure 
failure 

The loss of ICT 
impacting upon 
the organisation 
to operate 
effectively and 
deliver services 
to residents. The 
Council relies 
heavily on the 
ICT infrastructure 
for normal 
business 
operation. Whilst 
resilience is built 
into the 
environment, the 
loss of a service 
is always 
possible. 
Depending on 
the service lost, 
the impact could 
be severe 

The Council has a series of 
resilience arrangements in place 
through its service provider, PSPS. 
Work is contiunous to ensure 
these are fit for purpose across a 
range of areas. 

10 

 

5 2 

 
No significant change to this risk, any 
loss of key systems would have a 
severe impact to service delivery.  
ICT are currently investigating 
options for the improved resiliency 
around the main data and application 
storage. 
 

 
The last incident was in November. 
Since then this risk has been 
reviewed by the Head of IT and the 
Likelihood of the same incident 
occurring again is slim, the mail 
server has been restored and 
patched in line with supplier 
requirements, it has had a health 
check from VMWare and has 
undergone a number of cumulative 
updates.  No underlying issues were 
found from investigations.   
 

 

Jackie Wright 

Changes in 
legislation and 
policy in 
response to 
Covid19 

The risk of the 
council's ability to 
adapt to changes 
in legislation and 
policy, both in 
terms of pace 
and scale of 
change. The 
subsequent 
impact of the 
council in 
responding to 

The council's legal team continues 
to monitor and explore emerging 
legislation and local government 
policy and guidance. Key policy 
announcements from government 
are reviewed and interpreted on a 
daily basis. Emerging legislation is 
both a focus of the council's 
Management Team meetings and 
are considered through the 
council's governance team. The 
resourcing and operational 

9 

 

3 3 

 
There has been no significant 
changes that are not being managed 
that will impact the council at present. 
The Senior Intelligence Lead shares 
any news or upcoming changes 
relating to policy and legislation 
changes with senior management 
keeping a watching brief on any 
changes as well. Additionally 
attention is now focused on the 
government's plans to bring the 
country out of lockdown. 

Corey 

Gooch; 

Donna Hall 

P
age 118



Title Description Controls/Mitigation  
Current Risk 
Score 

Impact Likeli-hood Trend Icon Latest Note Assigned To 

both new 
statutory 
requirements 
and ensuring 
compliance 
through 
appropriate 
understanding 
and resourcing. 

impacts of legislative changes are 
also reviewed frequently through 
the council's internal governance 
structure. 

Changes to the 
strategic 
shared 
partnership 

Changes to the 
current shared 
working model 
and any impacts 
this may have on 
the services or 
shared 
management 
team 

  9 

 

3 3 

 

Risk reviewed and no changes to note 

Christine 

Marshall 

Senior 
Management 
Capacity 

The risk of a 
reduction in the 
capacity of the 
senior 
management 
capacity impacts 
upon the 
organisational 
effectiveness of 
the council, both 
in terms of its 
management but 
also in terms of 
service delivery 

Since the commencement of the 
Covid pandemic, and the 
commencment of place based 
management arrangements for 
both the council and its partner 
authority Breckland, considerable 
efforts have been made to ensure 
that the council has a resilient 
senior management team. These 
measures include creating a 'gold' 
team of four executive managers, 
operating on a rota basis to deal 
with the pandemic response, and 
the creation of a wider 
'management team' of senior 
managers, across which roles and 
responsibilities in the pandemic 

9 

 

3 3 

 

Covid-19 has provided new 
challenges to the senior 
management team in terms of 
workload management, capacity and 
the organisational level effects, whilst 
there is no significant incident to 
highlight it is felt the risk should 
remain at the same score for this 
quarter. 

Emily Spicer 

P
age 119



Title Description Controls/Mitigation  
Current Risk 
Score 

Impact Likeli-hood Trend Icon Latest Note Assigned To 

response have been shared and a 
'matrix'-style of management has 
been adopted. The council's 
management team is also focusing 
on ways and means of supporting 
other aspiring officers into 
managerial and leadership 
positions, so as to further 
strenghten the council's 
managerial resilience. 

Decision 
Making 

The risk of a 
reduction in 
council 
democratic 
decision making 
due to the Covid-
19 pandemic or 
other significant 
event. 

Mobilisation of the use of 
technology for remote meetings. 
Provision made for emergency 
powers. Regular review of 
constitutional provisions. Back up 
delegations in place for absence of 
key members and officers. 

9 

 

3 3 

 
This risk remains unchanged. The 
High Court has now determined that 
formal meetings cannot continue 
virtually. In addition, any meetings 
held physically must be open for 
physical public attendance. 
 
We have implemented mitigations. 
Plans have been put in place for the 
AGM and the approach to the 
meeting will be risk assessed with 
social distancing measures put in 
place. All remaining meetings (to 21 
June) are being rescheduled. From 
21 June we anticipate that social 
distancing requirements/gathering 
restrictions will be relaxed and will 
review this risk at that point. 

Mark Stinson 

Performance of 
PSPS contract 

The risk being 
that the services 
provided to the 
council via its 
contract with 
PSPS fails to 
meet the needs 

Daily and weekly PIs are provided 
to Management Team. A new 
contract has been completed. 
Contractural meetings are 
attended monthly with separate 
meetings as necessary. 
Performance is monitored closley. 

9 

 

3 3 

 No change in risk this month. All 
SLAs are now in place. There 
continues to be a dip in performance, 
but this is monitored and discussed 
at regular client meetings and regular 
meetings with the ELDC/BBC client. 

Mark Stinson 

P
age 120



Title Description Controls/Mitigation  
Current Risk 
Score 

Impact Likeli-hood Trend Icon Latest Note Assigned To 

and expectations 
of the council 

There remains a need for 
outstanding Service Level 
Agreements to be updated/agreed 
of which the client officer continues 
to work with PSPS closely to 
ensure the council and its partner 
work effectively together. 

Waste 
Collections 

The loss of staff 
due to sickness 
and/or the need 
to self-isolate 
could put our 
ability to deliver 
our mandatory 
collection 
services at risk. 
There is also a 
risk that our 
discretionary, 
paid for garden 
waste collections 
may also be 
impacted. 
Without proper 
communication 
to residents there 
could be a 
reputational as 
well as 
operational risk. 

Safe working practices has been 
adopted to ensure continuity of 
services. SHDC mitigate the risk 
by having good relationships with 
agencies to support with additional 
staff where required. Further to 
this the team have identified the 
service priorities and would ensure 
that our mandatory services are 
delivered. This can flex depending 
upon the number of staff absent. 
We work closely with comms to 
ensure message are shared with 
residents of 

9 

 

3 3 

 

We continue to monitor the risk 
assessment in place which supports 
the controls in place to mitigate this 
risk. We are working closely with 
partners to learn lessons from others 
in the sector that have experienced 
outbreaks and continue to watch for 
guidance from experts such as 
WISH. 

Charlotte 

Paine 

Reductions in 
council 
performance 

A decline in the 
performance of 
service delivery 
as a 
consequence of 

In recent months the council's 
internal performance monitoring 
framework has been reviewed. 
Weekly performance and 
intelligence indicators are shared 

9 

 

3 3 

  
The council continues to perform well 
in its key areas, any issues or 
concerns in performance are 
assessed and highlighted via senior 
management meetings and to Gold 

Corey Gooch 

P
age 121



Title Description Controls/Mitigation  
Current Risk 
Score 

Impact Likeli-hood Trend Icon Latest Note Assigned To 

the pandemic 
and other factors 

with members and officers. The 
council's Management team 
regularly reviews these indicies. 
Performance is reported to PMP 
on a quarterly basis for scrutiny. 
Clear objectives and outcomes are 
set, reviewed and performance 
monitored by managers. Teams 
holding monthly meetings to 
support staff pastorally and 
operationally. Managers are in 
close contact with HR colleagues 
across a range of areas 

command and any relevant 
committees as necessary 
Performance reporting is circulated 
monthly/quarterly and is monitored 
more frequently where required. As 
we move into recovery, the council’s 
performance metrics will be 
assessed in line with any 
legislative/policy changes as well as 
the council’s corporate plan to ensure 
all performance metrics are fit for 
purpose. 

Regulatory 
Compliance 

The risk of failing 
to comply with 
the Council’s 
general 
regulatory 
obligations due 
to the volume 
and pace of 
Covid-specific 
legislative 
change; 
new/amended 
guidance; and 
the diversion of 
resources into 
the Council’s 
emergency 
response. 

Management of these risks is 
spread across the authority – with 
many service areas having their 
own professional resources, 
systems, processes and 
professional body membership 
with associated information 
resources. Daily updates on key 
policy and legislative matters is 
wider than just a Covid update. 
The Council’s Legal Team receive 
regular legal updates which are 
shared as appropriate. Officers in 
the Legal Team and across 
service areas have access to 
various short webinars, podcasts, 
and other online training (such as 
recent data protection training 
rolled out to all staff). 

8 

 

4 2 

 

This risk has reduced to the score it 
was at in January. It was increased 
due to the PCC/LCC election and the 
associated Covid implications along 
with reduced capacity. The elections 
were delivered successfully. In 
addition, the risk had increased as 
policy updates (previously prepared 
by Greg Pearson) had ceased. 
These have now been reintroduced 
(by Corey Gooch) 

Mark Stinson 

P
age 122



Title Description Controls/Mitigation  
Current Risk 
Score 

Impact Likeli-hood Trend Icon Latest Note Assigned To 

Retention of 
staff 

The recruitment 
of new and 
retention of 
existing staff 

SHDC have a workforce strategy 
in place which includes a 
development programme to assist 
with both personal and 
professional development, both in 
terms of skills and contribution to 
the organisation. This programme 
sits alongside a package of 
personal support for staff. 
Managers are encouraged to have 
regular 'one to ones' with staff to 
ensure that they are fully 
supported in their roles 

8 

 

4 2 

 

No changes from previous 
assessment  

Judy Benson; 

Claire Burton 

Capacity to 
deal with more 
than one 
significant 
incident 

The ability and 
the capacity of 
the organisation 
to respond to 
and manage 
concurrent 
emergencies 
alongside 
responding to the 
current Covid-19 
pandemic and 
delivering critical 
business as 
usual services 

SHDC has plans in place to deal 
with additional emergencies. The 
resources to deliver on those plans 
is kept under close review through 
service managers and the 
council's Management Team. 
Through the Lincolnshire 
Resilience Forum, the council 
remains involved in planning for 
concurent exercises, including 
recent simulation exercises to test 
systems and processes. The 
Business Continuity plans of 
individual services reflect planning 
for dealing with more than one 
incident. 

6 

 

3 2 

 

As a council we have faced events 
over the winter running parallel with  
COVID and bad weather and our 
business continuity plans have stood 
up well and we have continued to 
deliver services, therefore we feel it 
is right to reduce this risk given the 
real tests we have faced. 

Emily Spicer 

Outsourcing/S
ervice provider 
failure 

Due to 
restrictions and 
reductions as a 
result of the 
pandemic, some 
sectors and 

The team are updating supplier 
risk logs to identify which contracts 
are likely to be affected. This will 
be followed with discussions with 
suppliers on business continuity 
and financial mitigations being 

6 

 

3 2 

 
This risk is unchanged. A new 
decision is being sought for April-
June in respect of the main contract 
of concern (Parkwood Leisure) but 
we have £150k remaining available 
from NLRF. 

Mark Stinson 

P
age 123



Title Description Controls/Mitigation  
Current Risk 
Score 

Impact Likeli-hood Trend Icon Latest Note Assigned To 

suppliers will be 
in a challenging 
financial position. 
This could result 
in a failure to 
provide 
contracted 
services, works 
or supplies, or 
ultimately 
insolvency; i.e. 
supplier failure. 

made. The council will monitor and 
review our supplier situation to 
ensure business continuity where 
necessary. 

 
A report is then scheduled for July 
Cabinet to consider a longer term 
approach. 

Impact of 
COVID-19 upon 
the council 

Covid-19 has a 
detrimental 
impact upon the 
function of the 
organisation 

Since the commencement of the 
Covid-19 pandemic, the council 
has put in a number of measures 
to mitigate the potential impact of 
Covid-19 upon the function of the 
organisation. These mitigations 
include service specific measures 
such as new working practices and 
procedures, alongside whole 
council-systems such as guidance 
for staff on the use of council 
premises to remain covid safe. 
The council also has its own 
procedures for managing any 
internal Covid outbreaks. 

6 

 

2 3 

  

Staff continue to work from home 

and there are small numbers of staff 

visiting the council offices.  

Matthew 

Hogan 

COVID-19 
Outbreak 
response 

The council does 
not respond 
effectively to 
local outbreaks, 
and that the 
council has 
insufficient 
competent and 

The council has established an 
internal 'outbreak management 
cell' to share intelligence and 
develop response to local 
outbreaks. The council also 
attends countywide outbreak 
management meetings (e.g. the 
Local Outbreak Engagement 

6 

 

3 2 

  

No Changes to note, this is constantly 

reviewed in line with the local picture. 

Donna Hall 

P
age 124



Title Description Controls/Mitigation  
Current Risk 
Score 

Impact Likeli-hood Trend Icon Latest Note Assigned To 

trained officers to 
deal with covid 
outbreak 
management, 
both in the 
community and 
also internally 

Board). Additional officers being 
recruited to backfill officers in 
public protection. The council have 
outbreak management funding 
from LCC to fund this. Where 
resourcing issues arise, the 
Lincolnshire Covid Management 
Outbreak Plan identifies mutual aid 
support for localised issues. 

Staff 
Presentation 
(availability/tur
ning up for 
work) 

The impact of 
staff presentation 
upon 
organisational 
arrangements 
and service 
delivery 

As a result of the Covid-19, the 
council's management team 
currently reviews staff presentation 
and sickness on a daily basis. 
Over 65% of the workforce are 
working from home and are able to 
do this effectively and efficiently. 
HR and managers are monitoring 
sickness and have a process in 
place for sickness reporting. 
SHDC are following H&S 
procedures for staff and these are 
being monitored and adhered too 
on a weekly basis. Mitigations are 
in place to support staff sickness 
levels, including health and 
wellbeing support alongside flu 
jabs. In terms of the impact of 
school closures on staff 
presentation, SHDC has 
developed a database of staff in 
the structure that have childcare 
responsibilities so that the impact 
of school closures on service 
provision can be better understood 
and modelled in advance. 

4 

 

2 2 

 

There are no changes to this risk 
from the previous scoring 

Judy Benson; 

Claire Burton 

P
age 125



Title Description Controls/Mitigation  
Current Risk 
Score 

Impact Likeli-hood Trend Icon Latest Note Assigned To 

Impact of 
extensive 
home working 

Prolonged 
periods of home 
working impact 
upon staff 
wellbeing, 
productivity, 
communication 
and our 
organisational 
effectiveness 

Since the commencement of the 
Covid-19 pandemic, which has 
seen a significant increase in 
home working across staff, the 
council has undertaken a number 
of steps to ensure that any 
potential risks emerging from this 
arrangement are mitigated. This 
includes the adoption of MS 
Teams as a primary 
communication tool (to ensure that 
communication remains ongoing), 
the use of virtual workstation 
assessments and the provision of 
equipment to ensure appropriate 
home working arrangements, and 
regular staff surveys to evaluate 
staff satisfaction and wellbeing. 
The staff forum has developed a 
programme of activities to support 
staff currently working from home. 
Significant work has also been 
undertaken to ensure that Priory 
Road (and other council premises) 
are covid-secure, therefore 
enabling staff to return to the office 
if they have either a personal 
preference or a business need to 
do so. 

4 

 

2 2 

 

No change from previous 
assessment  

Judy Benson; 

Claire Burton 

Internal 
communication
s breakdown 

Poor quality 
internal 
communication 
amongst and 
between the 
staff, 

The comms team currently lead on 
regular staff and member 
engagement and communications. 
This includes regular emails to 
staff, videos from the leader and 
senior managers, and regular all-

6 

 

3 3 

  

 

 

 

 

Likelihood and impact has been 

increased as we move into a recovery 

phase for the council we need to 

considering this can be an unsettling 

time for staff and communications 

Shaun 

Gibbons 

P
age 126



Title Description Controls/Mitigation  
Current Risk 
Score 

Impact Likeli-hood Trend Icon Latest Note Assigned To 

management 
team and 
member cohort, 
impacting upon 
the function of 
the organisation 

member emails. In order to 
develop this further, the comms 
team will present a new detailed 
'comms calendar', which will help 
inform staff, members and council 
partners on key messaging, 
campaigns and information. All 
service managers to update 
comms on a regular/weekly basis. 

 

 

will play a key part in ensuring staff 

are comfortable and informed around 

large-scale impactful projects such 

as the return to the office and future 

partnership status of the Council. 

External 
communication
s breakdown 

Poor quality 
external 
communication 
with 
stakeholders, 
residents and the 
wider public 
impacts upon the 
council's 
reputation and its 
ability to 
effectively deliver 
services 

External comms are quality 
checked by Comms to ensure that 
the messaging is effective and 
relevant to our residents. The team 
also gather statistics across a 
range of areas to understand how 
much interaction is being achieved 
through social media channels for 
example and adapt messages and 
channel shift to ensure messages 
are being heard and well received. 
To further mitigate this risk, 
training is being underaken for 
both officers and members. By 
increasing the number and topics 
covered, the comms team will be 
able to in time create greater 
capacity and resilience and 
messaging will be even more 
effective. 

4 

 

2 2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Risk has been reviewed and scoring 

will remain the same for this quarter 

Shaun 

Gibbons 

 
  

P
age 127



T
his page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report of:  Matthew Hogan, Executive Manager for Growth  
 
To: Governance and Audit Committee, July 29th 2021 
 
Author: Corey Gooch, Senior Change and Performance Business Partner 
 

Subject:  To provide an update on the councils strategic risk register  
 

Purpose: To provide an update to the committee on the progress of the 
Council’s identified strategic risks 

 

Recommendation(s):  
 
1) That the panel gives consideration to both the covering report and Appendix A, which 

details the latest assessment of the council’s strategic risks  
 

 
1.0   BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 This covering report and detailed Appendix A seeks to present to Governance and 

Audit Committee an overview of the key risks that the council is exposed to as of the 
time of writing this report (July 2021),, the action taking place to mitigate those risks, 
and an up to date assessment of their likelihood and impact.  
 

1.2 By their very nature, strategic risks are those that have been identified as having the 
potential to cause organizational-wide impact and will often cover a number of key 
services and departments. Strategic risks are captured within the council’s risk 
management system, which is available to the council’s management team and is 
reviewed on a regular basis. 

 
1.3 The report and associated identifies that there are currently 25 recorded strategic risks 

that the authority is monitoring. These 25 risks are captured, described and scored in 
a Strategic Risk Register. This register is included in Appendix A for consideration by 
the Governance and Audit committee.     

 
1.4 In terms of methodology, the Council’s risk scoring mechanism is based on a 5x5 

matrix and is comparable with best practice in other similar organizations. The 
risk matrix provides a comprehensive assessment and understanding of risk 
likelihood and impact. The matrix results in a numerical score which combines the 
impact of the risk occurring with the likelihood of it happening. The rating for 
individual risks ranges from highest (red) to lowest (green) with categories in between, 
depending on their rating, details of likelihood and impact scoring criteria are based on 
the council’s risk management policy and can be found below 

 
 
1.5 The spread of risk across the 25 recorded in the council’s latest Strategic Risk 

Register, following mitigation by services and the council’s management team, is 
as follows;  

 

Risk level Number of strategic risks by score 
(post-mitigation) 

High level (Red) 3 

Page 129

Agenda Item 10.



Medium (Amber) 19 

Low (Green and Yellow) 3 

  
1.6 Overall, the register contained within Appendix 1 demonstrates that strategic risks are 

being proactively managed by the authority, with a series of mitigations in place to 
reduce and mitigate impact and likelihood across a number of key areas. 
 

1.7 Within the strategic risk register included in Appendix A, each risk is ascribed a short 
narrative which seeks to cover the following 

 

 The risk title 

 A description of what the risk council entail 

 The approach to mitigation  

 Latest update to the risk 
 
1.8 The risk register is presented for consideration by the Committee. Officers will be 

available at the meeting of the Committee to answer questions on the content of the 
register. 
  

1.9 The strategic risk register in Appendix A details a number of changes to risks since the 
previous quarter, a breakdown of these changes can be found below. 

 

Title Change since last quarter 

Housing Team Resources/Provision 
 

Cyber Incident  

Parkwood Leisure Provision  

Regulatory Compliance 
 

Local Economy 
 

Council Financial Positions  

Short term impact on the council of a challenging transition in the 
UK/EU relationship 

 

Vulnerability risk  

Technology infrastructure failure  

Changes in legislation and policy in response to Covid19 
 

Changes to the strategic shared partnership 
 

Senior Management Capacity 
 

Performance of PSPS contract  

Waste Collections 
 

Reductions in council performance 
  

Retention of staff 
 

External Reputation 
  

Capacity to deal with more than one significant incident  

Page 130



Title Change since last quarter 

Outsourcing/Service provider failure  

Impact of COVID-19 upon the council  

COVID-19 Outbreak response 
 

Safeguarding  

Decision Making  

Staff Presentation (availability/turning up for work) 
 

Impact of extensive home working  

Internal communications breakdown 
 

External communications breakdown  

Impact of local government re-organisation  

 
 
2.0 Recommendation 
 
2.1 Option 1 - That the contents of the covering report and the strategic risk register, as 

captured within Appendix A, are noted (recommended) 
 

2.2 Option 2 – Do Nothing 
 
3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
3.1 To allow the Governance and Audit committee to review the strategic risks that the 

authority is exposed to, and to evaluate the council’s current plan of action in 
respect of mitigation of each.   

 
4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS 
 
4.1 To ensure that the identified Strategic Risks are properly monitored and reviewed in 

accordance with the Corporate Risk Policy.  
 
5.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1       Constitution & Legal 
 
5.1.1    This report and associated appendix has been prepared within the terms of 

reference of the Governance and Audit Committee.  
 

5.2       Corporate Priorities 

5.2.1   The strategic risk register in Appendix 1 presents an assessment of risks that have 

the potential to impact upon and shape the delivery of the council’s corporate 

priorities. 

5.3 Financial 

Page 131



5.3.1    There are no specific financial implications associated with the report 

recommendation. However, the strategic risk register in Appendix 1 presents an 

assessment of risks that have the potential to impact upon the council’s financial 

circumstances.  

 

5.4 Reputation 

 

5.4.1    There are no specific reputation implications associated with the report 

recommendation. However, the strategic risk register in Appendix 1 presents an 

assessment of risks that may create reputational risks for the council if not managed 

and mitigated appropriately. 

 

5.5  Risk Management 

  5.5.1    The strategic risk register contained within Appendix 1 is one of the council’s key 

tools for supporting the authority in managing key strategic risks.  

5.6  Staffing 

  5.6.1    The report contains information relating to staffing issues. 

6.0       WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED  

6.1       All wards 

7.0       ACRONYMS  

 PMP – Performance Monitoring Panel 

 LA – Local Authority 

 PSPS – Public Sector Partnerships Services 

 SLA’s- Service level agreements 

 GDPR- General Data Protection Regulations 

 CIP- Change, Innovation & Performance 

Background papers:- 

 
Lead Contact Officer 
Name and Post:  Corey Gooch – Senior Change & Performance Business 

Partner 
 

Telephone Number: 07766510458 
Email: corey.gooch@sholland.gov.uk 

 
 
Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting 
 
Name and Post:  Corey Gooch – Senior Change & Performance Business 

Partner 
 
Key Decision:  No 
 

Page 132



Exempt Decision: No 
 
Appendices attached to this report:  
 
Appendix A 
 

Strategic Risk Register 

 

Page 133



This page is intentionally left blank



SHDC Strategic Risk Report 
 
 

 

Title Description Controls/Mitigation  
Current Risk 
Score 

Impact Likeli-hood Trend Icon Latest Note Assigned To 

Housing Team 
resources 

The council's 
ability to meet 
the demands for 
support within 
homelessness 
and housing 
team, supporting 
residents in 
preventing 
homelessness 
before it occurs, 
and when it does 
occur supporting 
residents in 
securing 

Resources in the Housing Options 
Team have been refocussed to 
concentrate on specific aspects of 
the Homelessness service- 
General Advice, Prevention, Relief 
and support for the private sector. 
The post of Housing First 
Responder has been created to 
add additional support and 
capacity to the service. This 
capacity will increase the number 
of instances where homelessness 
can be prevented. Additional 
support is in place for rough 
sleepers and those at risk of rough 
sleeping through the 
Change4Lincs project. The 
Northgate project team are 
currently progressing self-triage 
tools through My Options which 
will add additional capacity to the 
service through customer self-
service. Improvements are 
expected to be brought online in 
early 2021. 

20 

 

4 5 

 

The team regularly reviews this risk 
and this has recently been increased 
due resource challenges within the 
team. The team considers the holistic 
challenges of homelessness which 
encompass both customer needs 
and demand on Officers. This risk is 
likely to remain high for the next 12 
weeks during an intensive 
recruitment campaign. 

Jason King 

Cyber Incident 

The risk of the 
council's ICT 
infrastructure 
being severally 
impact as the 
result of a cyber 

There are a range of measures in 
place including firewalls, Mimecast 
and antivirus in order to protect the 
council's ICT systems. The ICT 
team play an active part in the 
East Midlands WARP which allow 

15 

 

5 3 

 
We continue to see a national trend 
for Cyber Security threats across 
Public Sector, which has almost 
doubled in the past 12 months, and 
therefore the likelihood of this risk 
remains high.  ICT continue to 

Jackie Wright 

P
age 135



Title Description Controls/Mitigation  
Current Risk 
Score 

Impact Likeli-hood Trend Icon Latest Note Assigned To 

incident, both in 
terms of 
downtime of 
systems and loss 
of 
data/information. 
The threat 
landscape 
across the UK is 
continuously 
increasing and 
appears on the 
national risk 
assessment. The 
Council need to 
constantly adapt 
in its security 
mitigation and 
training to ensure 
they are both 
prepared from a 
technical and 
from a people 
aspect 

us to have early sight of issues 
being experienced across 
neighbouring Authorities and 
Agencies. ICT is also a member of 
the CISP formed by the National 
Cyber Security Centre, this allows 
us early awareness from the 
central agency responsible for 
cyber threats across the UK as 
well as allowing them to monitor 
our environment to a degree. 
These mitigations afford ICT 
awareness of emerging threats. 

operate a Defence In Depth method 
of protection and the implementation 
of a Security Information & Events 
Management system across the ICT 
estate has improved our visibility and 
response to potential threats.  
Mimecast continues to block around 
20-30% of malicious, spam or 
inappropriate email from reaching our 
staff and members on a monthly 
basis. 

Parkwood 
Leisure 
Provision 

The council's 
ability to provide 
leisure services 
through its 
contract with 
Parkwood 
Leisure, 
including any 
financial risk 
exposure and 
service delivery 

Working closely with leisure 
operator to ensure that their 
projected targets are being met. 
Utilising the advice of the council's 
Contracts and Procurement team, 
alongside external advisors, 
ensuring that we are protecting the 
contract by offering financial 
support up till December 2020. 
Apply for government funding once 
the details and applications are 

12 

 

4 3 

 
COVID-19 has enforced the closure 
of our leisure centres and therefore It 
will take time to gain attendance 
figures, with the final stages of 
lockdown easing and the full re-
opening of leisure centres we are 
hopeful we will see attendance 
continue to increase in the coming 
months. 

Emily 

Holmes 

P
age 136



Title Description Controls/Mitigation  
Current Risk 
Score 

Impact Likeli-hood Trend Icon Latest Note Assigned To 

issues as a result 
of the Covid-19 
pandemic 

announced. 

Local Economy 

The risk of the 
economy of 
South Holland as 
a whole 
experiencing a 
downturn, 
resulting in both 
employment and 
business 
closures, and 
having a 
consequential 
impact on a 
range of resident 
wellbeing. 

The council regularly monitors the 
impact of the local economy 
through regular engagement with 
businesses and partners. 
Engagement with business and 
the council remains high. A large 
proportion of the economy of 
South Holland is structured around 
the agriculture, food production 
and distribution, and horticultural 
sector which continues to be 
resilient to the effects of the 
pandemic on the wider economy. 
The council's longer term 
economic strategy of supporting 
innovation and productivity in the 
food sector is intended to further 
support this resilience. In terms of 
employment and redundancies, 
the council continues to work 
closely with the DWP and local 
businesses to minimise the 
potential impacts of large scale 
redundancies if they arise. The 
Covid-19 pandemic represents a 
risk to the wider economy of the 
district. The council has mobilised 
a package of support for local 
businesses during the pandemic, 
including council-administered 
grant schemes. However the 
financial support available to the 

12 

 

4 3 

 

Risk reviewed and no changes to 

note. To review at next quarter as 

measures such as furlough start to 

roll-back.  

Nigel Burch 

P
age 137



Title Description Controls/Mitigation  
Current Risk 
Score 

Impact Likeli-hood Trend Icon Latest Note Assigned To 

council is finite, and therefore the 
council is unable to wholly mitigate 
the impact of the pandemic on the 
economy. The council is closely 
monitoring the impact of the end of 
the UK/EU transition arrangement 
on local businesses. 

Council 
Financial 
Positions 

The council's 
medium term 
financial strategy 
has identified a 
budget gap and 
this has been 
exacerbated by 
the Covid 
pandemic. The 
risk will be that 
this budget gap 
cannot effectively 
be bridged 
during a 
pandemic and 
sums expended 
on maintaining 
and adapting 
services through 
the pandemic are 
not fully 
recovered from 
government. 

An efficiency programme will need 
to identify where either savings 
can be made, a range of Covid 
related grant funding drawn down 
and new income sources identified 
to move the council towards a 
balanced budget. As part of the 
2020/21 budget process a number 
of efficiency opportunities were 
identified to reduce the budget 
gap. As a result of officers now 
working on the pandemic 
response, progress has been 
impacted. A task group has been 
established and now working hard 
to identify further options and 
opportunities. 

12 

 

3 4 

 

As part of the 2021/22 budget 
process an efficiency programme 
task group has been established 
which will identify new savings 
opportunities and income sources 
and monitor and report the financial 
impact of implemented savings 
project on the medium term financial 
strategy, including the in year budget 
monitoring position. We will look to 
see this risk reduce in the coming 
months as this task group and its 
deliverables are developed. 
 
  

Samantha 

Knowles 

Short term 
impact on the 
council of a 
challenging 
transition in 

The end of the 
EU / UK 
transition period 
on January 2021, 
and the terms of 

The council has £33.5k in 
government funding left from the 
previous no deal planning 
scenario, which the council has 
available to utilise for any short 

12 

 

3 4 

 
Via regular interaction with 
businesses and stakeholders such as 
The Chamber of Commerce and the 
Federation of Small Businesses, the 
Council maintains a watching brief on 

Phil Norman 

P
age 138



Title Description Controls/Mitigation  
Current Risk 
Score 

Impact Likeli-hood Trend Icon Latest Note Assigned To 

the UK/EU 
relationship 

the ongoing 
relationship 
between the two 
parties at the 
time of the 
transition, have a 
short term impact 
upon the council 

term response work required in 
respect of Brexit. The legal team 
has previously undertaken work to 
address legislation changes, and 
continues to do so. Guidance 
continues to be sought on key 
matters of importance to the 
council, including data storage and 
data handling. 

the impacts on the local and wider 
economy of the UK’s withdrawal from 
the EU. At present, local business 
are reporting some problems around 
delays at the ports, and additional 
paperwork requirements, but these 
are expected to diminish as the new 
processes become embedded. 

Vulnerability 
risk 

That the council 
fails to ensure 
that vulnerable 
residents are 
supported, 
especially in 
response to the 
Covid-19 
pandemic 

During the pandemic there have 
been three 'groups' of vulnerable 
residents. 'Clinically Extremely 
Vulnerable' (shielded) 'Clinically 
vulnerable' and 'other vulnerable'. 
There are clear methods in place 
to identify and support residents 
with targeted support pathways. 
For Clinically Extremely Vulnerable 
residents, this is being monitored 
through the Lincolnshire 
Resilience Forum framework and 
outcomes reported to central 
government. Funding and 
schemes are being responded to 
to maximise the support to local 
residents. 

12 

 

4 3 

 

This risk remains high in both impact 
and likelihood as we have seen more 
negative impacts to our residents 
brought on by the COVID-19 
pandemic, these impacts are often 
amplified on vulnerable residents. 

Emily Spicer 

Technology 
infrastructure 
failure 

The loss of ICT 
impacting upon 
the organisation 
to operate 
effectively and 
deliver services 
to residents. The 
Council relies 
heavily on the 

The Council has a series of 
resilience arrangements in place 
through its service provider, PSPS. 
Work is contiunous to ensure 
these are fit for purpose across a 
range of areas. 

10 

 

5 2 

 
No significant change to this risk, any 
loss of key systems would have a 
severe impact to service delivery.  
ICT are currently investigating 
options for the improved resiliency 
around the main data and application 
storage. 
 

 

Jackie Wright 

P
age 139



Title Description Controls/Mitigation  
Current Risk 
Score 

Impact Likeli-hood Trend Icon Latest Note Assigned To 

ICT infrastructure 
for normal 
business 
operation. Whilst 
resilience is built 
into the 
environment, the 
loss of a service 
is always 
possible. 
Depending on 
the service lost, 
the impact could 
be severe 

The last incident was in November. 
Since then this risk has been 
reviewed by the Head of IT and the 
Likelihood of the same incident 
occurring again is slim, the mail 
server has been restored and 
patched in line with supplier 
requirements, it has had a health 
check from VMWare and has 
undergone a number of cumulative 
updates.  No underlying issues were 
found from investigations.   
 

 

Changes in 
legislation and 
policy in 
response to 
Covid19 

The risk of the 
council's ability to 
adapt to changes 
in legislation and 
policy, both in 
terms of pace 
and scale of 
change. The 
subsequent 
impact of the 
council in 
responding to 
both new 
statutory 
requirements 
and ensuring 
compliance 
through 
appropriate 
understanding 
and resourcing. 

The council's legal team continues 
to monitor and explore emerging 
legislation and local government 
policy and guidance. Key policy 
announcements from government 
are reviewed and interpreted on a 
daily basis. Emerging legislation is 
both a focus of the council's 
Management Team meetings and 
are considered through the 
council's governance team. The 
resourcing and operational 
impacts of legislative changes are 
also reviewed frequently through 
the council's internal governance 
structure. 

9 

 

3 3 

 

There has been no significant 
changes that are not being managed 
that will impact the council at present. 
The Senior Intelligence Lead shares 
any news or upcoming changes 
relating to policy and legislation 
changes with senior management 
keeping a watching brief on any 
changes as well. Additionally 
attention is now focused on the 
government's plans as the country 
moves out of lockdown. 

Corey 

Gooch; 

Donna Hall 

P
age 140



Title Description Controls/Mitigation  
Current Risk 
Score 

Impact Likeli-hood Trend Icon Latest Note Assigned To 

Changes to the 
council’s 
strategic 
partnership 
arrangements 

Enabling and 
embedding 
changes to the 
organisation, 
linked to new 
strategic 
partnerships 

Keep stakeholders and staff 
informed using comms plans, 
support managers/staff to enable 
positive growth and change 
through the organisation. 

16 

 

4 4 

 
Plans have been announced 
concerning a proposed change to the 
council’s strategic partnership status, 
with a proposal being considered for 
SHDC to enter a new partnership 
with East Lindsey and Boston, based 
around a new shared management 
structure. This will bring about a 
period of change for the authority 
which will need appropriate focus 
and management to ensure a smooth 
transition. For these reasons, the risk 
profile associated with changes to 
the council’s strategic partnership 
status, and the need to embed those 
changes successfully, has been 
increased.   

Christine 

Marshall 

Senior 
Management 
Capacity 

The risk of a 
reduction in the 
capacity of the 
senior 
management 
capacity impacts 
upon the 
organisational 
effectiveness of 
the council, both 
in terms of its 
management but 
also in terms of 
service delivery 

Since the commencement of the 
Covid pandemic, and the 
commencement of place-based 
management arrangements for 
both the council and its partner 
authority Breckland, considerable 
efforts have been made to ensure 
that the council has a resilient 
senior management team. These 
measures include creating a 'gold' 
team of four executive managers, 
operating on a rota basis to deal 
with the pandemic response, and 
the creation of a wider 
'management team' of senior 
managers, across which roles and 
responsibilities in the pandemic 
response have been shared and a 

9 

 

3 3 

 

Covid-19 has provided new 
challenges to the senior 
management team in terms of 
workload management, capacity and 
the organisational level effects. 
Alongside the continued impacts of 
Covid-19, this risk remains under 
review in the light of the previous risk 
in respect of ensuring senior 
management capacity in the context 
of the transition period for any 
proposed new partnerships.  

Emily Spicer 

P
age 141



Title Description Controls/Mitigation  
Current Risk 
Score 

Impact Likeli-hood Trend Icon Latest Note Assigned To 

'matrix'-style of management has 
been adopted. The council's 
management team is also focusing 
on ways and means of supporting 
other aspiring officers into 
managerial and leadership 
positions, so as to further 
strengthen the council's 
managerial resilience. 

Decision 
Making 

The risk of a 
reduction in 
council 
democratic 
decision making 
due to the Covid-
19 pandemic or 
other significant 
event. 

Mobilisation of the use of 
technology for remote meetings. 
Provision made for emergency 
powers. Regular review of 
constitutional provisions. Back up 
delegations in place for absence of 
key members and officers. 

9 

 

3 3 

 
I have left the risk unchanged. The 
High Court has now determined that 
formal meetings cannot continue 
virtually. In addition, any meetings 
held physically must be open for 
physical public attendance. 
 
We have implemented mitigations. 
Springfield’s has been booked for the 
AGM and the approach to the 
meeting will be risk assessed with 
social distancing measures put in 
place. All remaining meetings (to 21 
June) are being rescheduled. From 
21 June we anticipate that social 
distancing requirements/gathering 
restrictions will be relaxed. 

Mark Stinson 

Performance of 
PSPS contract 

The risk being 
that the services 
provided to the 
council via its 
contract with 
PSPS fails to 
meet the needs 
and expectations 
of the council 

Daily and weekly PIs are provided 
to Management Team. A new 
contract has been completed. 
Contractural meetings are 
attended monthly with separate 
meetings as necessary. 
Performance is monitored closley. 
There remains a need for 
outstanding Service Level 

9 

 

3 3 

 

No change in risk this month. All 
SLAs are now in place. Performance 
is monitored and discussed at regular 
client meetings and regular meetings 
with the ELDC/BBC client. 

Mark Stinson 

P
age 142



Title Description Controls/Mitigation  
Current Risk 
Score 

Impact Likeli-hood Trend Icon Latest Note Assigned To 

Agreements to be updated/agreed 
of which the client officer continues 
to work with PSPS closely to 
ensure the council and its partner 
work effectively together. 

Waste 
Collections 

The loss of staff 
due to sickness 
and/or the need 
to self-isolate 
could put our 
ability to deliver 
our mandatory 
collection 
services at risk. 
There is also a 
risk that our 
discretionary, 
paid for garden 
waste collections 
may also be 
impacted. 
Without proper 
communication 
to residents there 
could be a 
reputational as 
well as 
operational risk. 

Safe working practices has been 
adopted to ensure continuity of 
services. SHDC mitigate the risk 
by having good relationships with 
agencies to support with additional 
staff where required. Further to 
this the team have identified the 
service priorities and would ensure 
that our mandatory services are 
delivered. This can flex depending 
upon the number of staff absent. 
We work closely with comms to 
ensure message are shared with 
residents of 

12 

 

3 4 

 

We continue to monitor the risk 
assessment in place which supports 
the controls in place to mitigate this 
risk. We are working closely with 
partners to learn lessons from others 
in the sector that have experienced 
outbreaks and continue to watch for 
guidance from experts such as 
WISH. Currently we are seeing that 
the number of HGV drivers available 
via agencies is reduced and work is 
ongoing to mitigate the risk, including 
understanding the market and terms 
of employment that will attract drivers 
to SHDC 

Charlotte 

Paine 

Reductions in 
council 
performance 

A decline in the 
performance of 
service delivery 
as a 
consequence of 
the pandemic 
and other factors 

In recent months the council's 
internal performance monitoring 
framework has been reviewed. 
Weekly performance and 
intelligence indicators are shared 
with members and officers. The 
council's Management team 

9 

 

3 3 

  
The council continues to perform well 
in its key areas, any issues or 
concerns in performance are 
assessed and highlighted via senior 
management meetings and to Gold 
command and any relevant 
committees as necessary 

Corey Gooch 

P
age 143



Title Description Controls/Mitigation  
Current Risk 
Score 

Impact Likeli-hood Trend Icon Latest Note Assigned To 

regularly reviews these indicies. 
Performance is reported to PMP 
on a quarterly basis for scrutiny. 
Clear objectives and outcomes are 
set, reviewed and performance 
monitored by managers. Teams 
holding monthly meetings to 
support staff pastorally and 
operationally. Managers are in 
close contact with HR colleagues 
across a range of areas 

Performance reporting is circulated 
monthly/quarterly and is monitored 
more frequently where required. As 
we move into recovery, the council’s 
performance metrics will be 
assessed in line with any 
legislative/policy changes as well as 
the council’s corporate plan to ensure 
all performance metrics are fit for 
purpose. 

Regulatory 
Compliance 

The risk of failing 
to comply with 
the Council’s 
general 
regulatory 
obligations due 
to the volume 
and pace of 
Covid-specific 
legislative 
change; 
new/amended 
guidance; and 
the diversion of 
resources into 
the Council’s 
emergency 
response. 

Management of these risks is 
spread across the authority – with 
many service areas having their 
own professional resources, 
systems, processes and 
professional body membership 
with associated information 
resources. Daily updates on key 
policy and legislative matters is 
wider than just a Covid update. 
The Council’s Legal Team receive 
regular legal updates which are 
shared as appropriate. Officers in 
the Legal Team and across 
service areas have access to 
various short webinars, podcasts, 
and other online training (such as 
recent data protection training 
rolled out to all staff). 

8 

 

4 2 

 

This risk has reduced to the score it 
was at in January. It was increased 
due to the PCC/LCC election and the 
associated Covid implications along 
with reduced capacity. The elections 
were delivered successfully. In 
addition, the risk had increased as 
policy updates (previously prepared 
by Greg Pearson) had ceased. 
These have now been reintroduced 
(by Corey Gooch) 

Mark Stinson 

Retention of 
staff 

The recruitment 
of new and 
retention of 
existing staff 

SHDC have a workforce strategy 
in place which includes a 
development programme to assist 
with both personal and 
professional development, both in 

8 

 

4 2 

 
A People Development Board has 
been established from May 2021 to 
ensure a strategic overview of 
People related topics.  Turnover for 
May saw 7 leavers but this reduced 

Judy Benson; 

Claire Burton 

P
age 144



Title Description Controls/Mitigation  
Current Risk 
Score 

Impact Likeli-hood Trend Icon Latest Note Assigned To 

terms of skills and contribution to 
the organisation. This programme 
sits alongside a package of 
personal support for staff. 
Managers are encouraged to have 
regular 'one to ones' with staff to 
ensure that they are fully 
supported in their roles 

back to 0 in June.  People 
Development Board in July 
discussed key risk areas where 
retention is a particular concern and 
put plans in place to mitigate the risk. 

Capacity to 
deal with more 
than one 
significant 
incident 

The ability and 
the capacity of 
the organisation 
to respond to 
and manage 
concurrent 
emergencies 
alongside 
responding to the 
current Covid-19 
pandemic and 
delivering critical 
business as 
usual services 

SHDC has plans in place to deal 
with additional emergencies. The 
resources to deliver on those plans 
is kept under close review through 
service managers and the 
council's Management Team. 
Through the Lincolnshire 
Resilience Forum, the council 
remains involved in planning for 
concurent exercises, including 
recent simulation exercises to test 
systems and processes. The 
Business Continuity plans of 
individual services reflect planning 
for dealing with more than one 
incident. 

6 

 

3 2 

 

As a council we have faced events 
over the winter running parallel with  
COVID and bad weather and our 
business continuity plans have stood 
up well and we have continued to 
deliver services. 

Emily Spicer 

Outsourcing/S
ervice provider 
failure 

Due to 
restrictions and 
reductions as a 
result of the 
pandemic, some 
sectors and 
suppliers will be 
in a challenging 
financial position. 
This could result 
in a failure to 

The team are updating supplier 
risk logs to identify which contracts 
are likely to be affected. This will 
be followed with discussions with 
suppliers on business continuity 
and financial mitigations being 
made. The council will monitor and 
review our supplier situation to 
ensure business continuity where 
necessary. 

6 

 

3 2 

 
This risk is unchanged. A new 
decision is being sought for April-
June in respect of the main contract 
of concern (Parkwood Leisure)  
 
A report is then scheduled for 
Cabinet to consider a longer term 
approach. 

Mark Stinson 

P
age 145



Title Description Controls/Mitigation  
Current Risk 
Score 

Impact Likeli-hood Trend Icon Latest Note Assigned To 

provide 
contracted 
services, works 
or supplies, or 
ultimately 
insolvency; i.e. 
supplier failure. 

Impact of 
COVID-19 upon 
the council 

Covid-19 has a 
detrimental 
impact upon the 
function of the 
organisation 

Since the commencement of the 
Covid-19 pandemic, the council 
has put in a number of measures 
to mitigate the potential impact of 
Covid-19 upon the function of the 
organisation. These mitigations 
include service specific measures 
such as new working practices and 
procedures, alongside whole 
council-systems such as guidance 
for staff on the use of council 
premises to remain covid safe. 
The council also has its own 
procedures for managing any 
internal Covid outbreaks. 

6 

 

2 3 

  

This risk has been reviewed and 
currently remains unchanged.  

Matthew 

Hogan 

COVID-19 
Outbreak 
response 

The council does 
not respond 
effectively to 
local outbreaks, 
and that the 
council has 
insufficient 
competent and 
trained officers to 
deal with covid 
outbreak 
management, 
both in the 

The council has established an 
internal 'outbreak management 
cell' to share intelligence and 
develop response to local 
outbreaks. The council also 
attends countywide outbreak 
management meetings (e.g. the 
Local Outbreak Engagement 
Board). Additional officers being 
recruited to backfill officers in 
public protection. The council have 
outbreak management funding 
from LCC to fund this. Where 

6 

 

3 2 

  
Governance of the Council response 
to Covid 19 has moved from the 
outbreak cell to the new Response 
and Recovery Board which meets 
fortnightly at present. Officers are still 
engaged in LRF and partnership 
response groups including the Covid 
Health Protection Board, the 
Lincolnshire Outbreak Engagement 
Board, and the Outbreak 
Management and Contact Tracing 
cell. Public Protection continue to 
lead on the outbreak a response as 

Donna Hall 

P
age 146



Title Description Controls/Mitigation  
Current Risk 
Score 

Impact Likeli-hood Trend Icon Latest Note Assigned To 

community and 
also internally 

resourcing issues arise, the 
Lincolnshire Covid Management 
Outbreak Plan identifies mutual aid 
support for localised issues. 

well as monitoring business 
compliance with Covid regulations. 
Additional resource funded by an 
LCC grant is still in place to assist the 
team. The Lincolnshire Covid 
Outbreak Management Plan 
identifies mutual aid between local 
authorities where there are localised 
issues. 
 

Staff 
Presentation 
(availability/tur
ning up for 
work) 

The impact of 
staff presentation 
upon 
organisational 
arrangements 
and service 
delivery 

As a result of the Covid-19, the 
council's management team 
currently reviews staff presentation 
and sickness on a daily basis. 
Over 65% of the workforce are 
working from home and are able to 
do this effectively and efficiently. 
HR and managers are monitoring 
sickness and have a process in 
place for sickness reporting. 
SHDC are following H&S 
procedures for staff and these are 
being monitored and adhered too 
on a weekly basis. Mitigations are 
in place to support staff sickness 
levels, including health and 
wellbeing support alongside flu 
jabs. In terms of the impact of 
school closures on staff 
presentation, SHDC has 
developed a database of staff in 
the structure that have childcare 
responsibilities so that the impact 
of school closures on service 
provision can be better understood 

4 

 

2 2 

 

There are no changes to this risk 
from the previous scoring, risk has 
been assessed in July. 

Judy Benson; 

Claire Burton 

P
age 147



Title Description Controls/Mitigation  
Current Risk 
Score 

Impact Likeli-hood Trend Icon Latest Note Assigned To 

and modelled in advance. 

Impact of 
extensive 
home working 

Prolonged 
periods of home 
working impact 
upon staff 
wellbeing, 
productivity, 
communication 
and our 
organisational 
effectiveness 

Since the commencement of the 
Covid-19 pandemic, which has 
seen a significant increase in 
home working across staff, the 
council has undertaken a number 
of steps to ensure that any 
potential risks emerging from this 
arrangement are mitigated. This 
includes the adoption of MS 
Teams as a primary 
communication tool (to ensure that 
communication remains ongoing), 
the use of virtual workstation 
assessments and the provision of 
equipment to ensure appropriate 
home working arrangements, and 
regular staff surveys to evaluate 
staff satisfaction and wellbeing. 
The staff forum has developed a 
programme of activities to support 
staff currently working from home. 
Significant work has also been 
undertaken to ensure that Priory 
Road (and other council premises) 
are covid-secure, therefore 
enabling staff to return to the office 
if they have either a personal 
preference or a business need to 
do so. 

4 

 

2 2 

 

The majority of office-based staff 
remain working from home due to the 
restrictions in place.  Over the next 
few weeks we will continue to 
monitor the wider situation as more 
staff look to return to the office where 
possible, the focus will be on staff 
who need to return to the office whilst 
also ensuring social distancing and 
COVID safe measures are in place.  

Judy Benson; 

Claire Burton 

Internal 
communication
s breakdown 

Poor quality 
internal 
communication 
amongst and 
between the 

The comms team currently lead on 
regular staff and member 
engagement and communications. 
This includes regular emails to 
staff, videos from the leader and 

6 

 

3 3 

  

 

 

 

Likelihood and impact has been 
increased as we move into a 
recovery phase for the council we 
need to considering this can be an 
unsettling time for staff and 

Shaun 

Gibbons 

P
age 148



Title Description Controls/Mitigation  
Current Risk 
Score 

Impact Likeli-hood Trend Icon Latest Note Assigned To 

staff, 
management 
team and 
member cohort, 
impacting upon 
the function of 
the organisation 

senior managers, and regular all-
member emails. In order to 
develop this further, the comms 
team will present a new detailed 
'comms calendar', which will help 
inform staff, members and council 
partners on key messaging, 
campaigns and information. All 
service managers to update 
comms on a regular/weekly basis. 

 

 

 

communications will play a key part 
in ensuring staff are comfortable and 
informed around large-scale 
impactful projects such as the return 
to the office and future partnership 
status of the Council. 

External 
communication
s breakdown 

Poor quality 
external 
communication 
with 
stakeholders, 
residents and the 
wider public 
impacts upon the 
council's 
reputation and its 
ability to 
effectively deliver 
services 

External comms are quality 
checked by Comms to ensure that 
the messaging is effective and 
relevant to our residents. The team 
also gather statistics across a 
range of areas to understand how 
much interaction is being achieved 
through social media channels for 
example and adapt messages and 
channel shift to ensure messages 
are being heard and well received. 
To further mitigate this risk, 
training is being underaken for 
both officers and members. By 
increasing the number and topics 
covered, the comms team will be 
able to in time create greater 
capacity and resilience and 
messaging will be even more 
effective. 

4 

 

2 2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Risk has been reviewed and scoring 
will remain the same for this quarter 

Shaun 

Gibbons 

 
  

P
age 149



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
Report of: Head of Internal Audit for South Holland DC  
 
To:    Governance and Audit Committee 29 July 2021 
 
Author:  Faye Haywood, Internal Audit Manager 
 
Subject: Counter-Fraud and Corruption Policy  
 
Purpose: This report introduces the recently reviewed Counter-Fraud and Corruption 

policy at South Holland District Council.  
 

 
Recommendation(s):  
 

1) That members review and comment on the suggested enhancements to the 
Counter Fraud and Corruption Policy.  
 

 
1.0 BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 The Counter Fraud and Corruption policy is required to be reviewed and approved by 

Governance and Audit Committee every three years. The policy was last approved by the 
Committee in December 2017 and is therefore due for update. 
  

1.2 This has been delayed allowing for an assessment of the current arrangements to be 
undertaken in comparison with the latest strategy from CIFAS – Fighting Fraud and 
Corruption Locally.     
 

1.3 A first draft of the updated policy is provided to the Committee for review prior to approval. 
It is recommended that the policy once reviewed by the committee, is endorsed for 
approval by management and stakeholders are consulted on changes before it is  
presented to the Committee for approval in September 2021.   

 
2.0 CURRENT PROGRESS 
 
2.1 The 2017 version of the Counter Fraud and Corruption policy has been reviewed to 

establish if any updates are required following the launch of the CIFAS Fighting Fraud and 
Corruption Strategy launched in October 2020. 

 
2.2 As a result of this review, the 2017 Counter Fraud and Corruption Policy remains largely 

unchanged and represents a solid foundation for the Councils approach to tackling Fraud 
Corruption and Bribery. The Council’s 2017 policy was based on the 2016 version of 
Fighting Fraud and Corruption strategy.  

 
2.3 Proposed amendments to the policy are as a result of strategy updates and following an 

assessment of the Council’s current arrangement against a checklist provided within the 
new strategy document. 

 
2.4 In preparation for Governance and Audit Committee review, a training session was 

provided by Internal Audit and attended by members of the Committee in April 2021. This 
session covered the suggested amendments to the policy and highlighted the actions 
required to bring the SDHC approach in line with the latest guidance in this area.  

 

Page 151

Agenda Item 11.



2.4 The following updates to the policy are summarised below and provided as track changes 
within the policy at Appendix 1 of this report:  
 

 Terms expanded to provide a definition of Economic Crime.  

 Table provided to detail the types of fraud and corruption that the Council is exposed to.  

 Approach to tackling Fraud, Bribery and Corruption amended in line with strategy guidance, 
3 themes expanded to 5 and now includes Govern and Protect.  

 Actions included to strengthen the Councils approach include; carrying out a fraud risk 
assessment, creating a fraud action plan, reporting details of these to both the Portfolio 
holder responsible and Governance and Audit Committee annually, ensuring that the 
results of successful investigations are publicised.  

 Officer roles and job titles updated with latest position. Please note the policy will need to 
be updated once vacant posts have been filled.  

 References to Compass Point Business Services removed and updated to Public Sector 
Partnership Services Ltd.  

 Addresses and telephone numbers for raising concerns externally.  
 
 
3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
3.1 The Governance and Audit Committee are required to review and approve the 

Whistleblowing Policy once every three years. In doing so, the Committee is ensuring that 
the policy reflects the latest best practice and contains up to date information.  

 
3.2 Due to the proposed updates requiring consultation with key stakeholders, the Governance 

and Audit Committee are requested to review the suggested enhancements ahead of 
approval in September 2021; thus enabling the Council’s Counter Fraud and Corruption 
approach to become in line with the latest guidance in this area.   
 

4.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 Corporate Priorities 
 
4.1.1 The Council is committed to maintaining an open culture with the highest standards of 

honesty and accountability. As this is demonstrated, the Council is relied upon to deliver the 
Council’s corporate priorities.  

 
4.2 Financial  
 
4.2.1 This policy provides guidance covering the reporting of misconduct or malpractice in 

managing the Councils finances and highlights that any concerns raised will be taken 
seriously and will be investigated.  

 
4.3 Risk Management  
 
4.3.1 Defining the Council’s approach to Fraud, Corruption and Bribery and providing guidance 

on how to raise concerns helps to protect the Council against significant loss and 
reputational risks. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 152



Background papers: - None 

Lead Contact Officer 
Name and Post: Faye Haywood Internal Audit Manager for South Holland DC 
Telephone Number: 01508 533873 
Email: fhaywood@s-norfolk.gov.uk 
 
Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting Faye Haywood, Internal Audit Manager for 
South Holland DC 
 
Key Decision: No 
 
Exempt Decision: No 
 
Appendices attached to this report:  Draft Counter Fraud and Corruption Policy May 2021 – 
track changes  
 

 

Page 153



This page is intentionally left blank



    
 

 

South Holland District Council 
 
 
 

Counter Fraud, Corruption and Bribery 
Policy 

 
 

February 2021 
 
 
 

Page 155



Page 2 of 15 

Document Control and History 
 
Version Control 

Issue No. Author Issue Date Reasons for Issue 

1.1 Emma 
Hodds 

December 2017 Update to 2009 policy to reflect 
changes & to compliment the 
Breckland Council version 

1.2 Faye 
Haywood 

February 2021 Refresh of 2017 policy to reflect 
new job titles, update 
terminology and to incorporate  
new guidance ‘Fighting Fraud 
and Corruption Locally 2020’. 

    

    

 
 
Approval of draft and final approval process 

Issue No. Approval 
Process 

Name Signature and Date 

1.1 Gov & 
Audit 
Committee 

  

    

    

    

    

 
 
Revision Schedule 

Issue No. Approval 
Process 

Name Signature and Date 

    

    

    

    

    

 
 
Added to Policy Register 

Yes/No Policy Officer Signature 
and Date 

Signature and Date 

   

   

   

   

   

 

Page 156



Page 3 of 15 

CONTENTS 

 

Introduction ..................................................................... 4 

Scope – Policy Aim ......................................................... 6 

Executive Summary ........................................................ 6 

Policy Consultation and Consideration ........................ 6 

Policy Statement ............................................................. 7 

Implementation .............................................................. 13 

Management Control and Organisation ...................... 13 

Monitoring ...................................................................... 13 

Related Policies and Strategies ................................... 14 

Appendices .................................................................... 14 

 

Page 157



Page 4 of 15 

Introduction 

FRAUD is a deception which is deliberate and intended to provide a direct or 

indirect personal gain. The term “fraud” can include criminal deception, 

forgery, blackmail, corruption, theft, conspiracy or the covering up of material 

facts and collusion. By using deception a fraudster can obtain an advantage, 

avoid an obligation or cause loss to another party. The Fraud Act 2006 

identifies three criminal offences: 

 false representation 

 failure to disclose information 

 abuse of position 

CORRUPTION is the deliberate misuse of your position for direct or indirect 

personal gain. 

“Corruption” includes offering, giving, requesting or accepting a bribe or 

reward, which influences your actions or the actions of someone else. 

THEFT is where someone steals cash or other property. A person is guilty of 

“theft” if he or she dishonestly takes property belonging to someone else and 

has no intention of returning it. 

BRIBERY is, if someone was to try to offer an incentive to ensure that, for 

example, a planning application was approved, or, conversely someone 

accepted or asked for something of material value from contractors, suppliers 

or persons in return for their being approved to provide services / goods to the 

Council. 

ECONOMIC CRIME is a new term introduced to cover a broader set of crimes 
that cause harm to society and the UK’s economy.  
 
Economic crime refers to a broad category of activity involving money, finance 
or assets, the purpose of which is to unlawfully obtain a profit or advantage for 
the perpetrator or cause loss to others.  
 
This poses a threat to the UK’s economy and its institutions and causes 
serious harm to society and individuals. It includes criminal activity which: 
  
• allows criminals to benefit from the proceeds of their crimes or fund further 
criminality  
• damages our financial system and harms the interests of legitimate business  
• undermines the integrity of the UK’s position as an international financial 
centre  
• poses a risk to the UK’s prosperity, national security and reputation 

We are committed to the highest possible standards of openness, probity, 

honesty, integrity and accountability. We expect all staff, councillors and 

partners to apply these standards which are included in our codes of conduct. 

We will seek to deter and prevent fraud, corruption and theft to ensure that all 

risks in these areas are reduced to the lowest level possible. Where we 

suspect or detect fraud, corruption or theft we will thoroughly investigate and 

deal with any proven fraud in a consistent and balanced way. We will apply 

Page 158



Page 5 of 15 

appropriate sanctions against those committing fraud and will attempt to 

recover all losses. 

The legal framework for fraud and corruption is defined by a number of acts. 

Primarily, the Fraud Act 2006 establishes a criminal liability for fraud through 

either false representation, failing to disclose information or abuse of position. 

Section 17 of the Theft Act 1968 creates an offence of destroying, defacing, 

concealing or falsifying any account, record or document made, or required, 

for any accounting purposes. The Bribery Act 2010 makes it an offence to 

attempt to bribe someone, or receive a bribe where that may result in 

improper discharge of a public function. 

  

Page 159



Page 6 of 15 

Scope – Policy Aim 

The key objectives of this policy are to: 

 Increase staff and member awareness of the corporate counter fraud 

culture which the Council actively supports and to encourage 

individuals to promptly report suspicions of fraudulent or corrupt 

behaviour 

 Communicate to partners, suppliers, contractors, council owned/part 

owned companies and other organisations that interact with the Council 

that it expects them to maintain standards aimed at minimising fraud 

and corruption in their dealings with the Council 

 Demonstrate the arrangements that the Council has in place to counter 

fraud and corruption 

 Minimise the likelihood and extent of losses through fraud and 

corruption 

This policy applies to: 

 All South Holland District Council Councillors 

 All South Holland District Council staff (including Public Sector 

Partnership Services Ltd, shared managers and officers providing 

services to and on behalf of the Council) 

 Council partners, contractors, suppliers, council owned/part owned 

companies and consultants 

 Any member of the public 

Executive Summary 

South Holland District Council is wholly opposed to all forms of fraud, 

corruption, theft or bribery. We will take action against anyone who attempts 

to defraud the Council, whether they are our own employees or Councillors, 

external organisations or members of the public. To deliver the aims of this 

policy we will: 

 Accurately identify the risk of fraud 

 Create and maintain a strong counter fraud culture 

 Take action to deter, prevent and detect fraud, investigate and apply 

sanctions and seek redress where fraud is proven  

 Record and report our outcomes to the Governance and Audit 

Committee 

Policy Consultation and Consideration 

The Council’s Executive Management Team and the Governance and Audit 

Committee. 

  

Page 160



Page 7 of 15 

Policy Statement 

1. The Policy  

The Council is committed to preventing and detecting and investigating all 

forms of fraud, corruption, theft and bribery. We will take action against 

anyone who attempts to defraud the Council, whether they are our own 

employees or Councillors, external organisations or members of the public.  

The Council's ambition is to continue to increase the prosperity and wellbeing 

of our residents and businesses, whilst striving to protect and enhance the 

district's environment and its unique and historic character. 

We recognise our duty to provide value for money quality services to the 

community and expect all our Councillors and staff to lead by example, 

working to the highest standards and safeguarding the public resources they 

are responsible for. We will adopt a risk based approach to tackling fraud, 

corruption, theft and bribery and promote zero tolerance ,by using tools 

identified in the Local Government Fraud Strategy, Fighting Fraud and 

Corruption Locally . 

  

2. What we mean by Fraud, Corruption and Bribery 

This policy outlines our approach to tackling  fraud, corruption, theft and 

bribery. Examples of Fraud, Corruption and Bribery are as follows but not 

limited to: 

  

 

  

Abuse of position Deliberately falsifying substituting or 

destroying records for personal gain 

Deliberate failure to declare an 

interest 

Intentional breaches of financial 

regulations and procedures 

The offer, giving or acceptance of 

inducements to influence action or 

decisions by the Council 

Abuse of position as employee to 

benefit friends, family or others 

Personally profiting from the sale of 

Council equipment 

Use of deception with the intention of 

obtaining an advantage, avoiding an 

obligation or causing loss to another 

party 

Theft of funds, services or assets 
from the Council or its partners 

Cyber Fraud Cyber attacks resulting in loss of 
Page 161



Page 8 of 15 

information diversion of funds through 
scams or spam. 

Right to buy  Fraudulent applications under the 
right to buy/acquire  

Money laundering  Exposure to suspect transactions  

Commissioning of services  Conflicts of interest, collusion, 
bribery.  
 

Tenancy  Fraudulent applications for housing or 
successions of tenancy, and 
subletting of the property  

Procurement  Tendering issues, split contracts, 
double invoicing, mandate fraud. 
 

Payroll and HR False employees, overtime claims, 
expenses, working whilst on sick 
leave. 
 

Identity fraud  False identity/fictitious persons 
applying for services/payments.  
 

Council tax and Housing Benefit Discounts and exemptions, Housing 
benefit and council tax support.  
 

Grants  Work not carried out, funds diverted, 
ineligibility not declared.  
 

Business rates  Fraudulent applications for 
exemptions and reliefs, unlisted 
properties.   
 

Insurance fraud  False claims including slips and trips.  
  

Disabled facility grants  Fraudulent applications for adaptions 
to homes aimed at the disabled.  
  

 

The act of attempted fraud will be treated as seriously as actual fraud. 

The Bribery Act 2010 makes it possible for individuals to be convicted where 

they are deemed to have given their consent or tacit approval in giving or 

receiving a bribe. It also created the corporate offence of “Failing to prevent 

bribery on behalf of a commercial organisation.” To protect itself against the 

corporate offence the Act also requires organisations to have “adequate 

procedures in place to prevent bribery.” This policy statement, the codes of 

conduct and the Whistleblowing Policy are designed to meet that requirement. 

 

Responsibilities 

Stakeholder Specific Responsibilities 

Chief Executive Accountable for the Council's overall governance 

arrangements including the procedures and 

Page 162



Page 9 of 15 

effectiveness of the Council's arrangements for 

countering fraud and corruption 

Monitoring Officer Advise Councillors and Officers on ethical issues, 

standards and powers to ensure that the Council 

operates within the law and statutory Codes of Practice. 

To promote, monitor and enforce probity and high ethical 

standards within the District Council and Town and 

Parish Councils within the district of South Holland 

Section 151 Officer To ensure that effective procedures are in place to 

investigate promptly any fraud or irregularity.  

To evaluate the adequacy and effectiveness of internal 

controls designed to secure assets and data and to 

assist management in preventing and deterring fraud 

and abuse and to examine the whole system of internal 

controls and not just the financial controls 

Governance and 

Audit Committee 

To review the Council’s arrangements to counter fraud 

and corruption, with particular regard to the policies on: 

Counter Fraud, Whistleblowing and Money Laundering. 

Policy 

Development 

Panel 

To assist the Council and the Cabinet in the 

development of its Policy Framework 

Standards Panel To promote and maintenance of high standards of 

conduct within the Council 

Councillors To support and promote the development of a strong 

counter fraud culture 

Executive 

Management 

Team  

The Executive Management Team are responsible for 

the Council’s arrangements to manage risk. 

To champion and promote the development of a strong 

counter fraud culture 

External Audit Statutory duty to ensure that the Council has in place 

adequate arrangements for the prevention and detection 

of fraud, corruption and theft 

Internal Audit Provide resources to implement the Council's counter 

fraud policy and for the prompt investigation of 

suspected fraud and irregularities 

To ensure that action is taken to improve controls and 

reduce the risk of fraud 

Managers Identify the risks to which systems, operation and 

procedures are exposed; developing and maintaining 

effective controls to prevent and detect fraud; ensuring 

controls are complied with.  

Notify the Section 151 Officer immediately of any 

suspected fraud, irregularity, improper use or 

Page 163



Page 10 of 15 

misappropriation of the Council's property or resources. 

Pending investigation and reporting, taking all necessary 

steps to prevent further loss and to secure records and 

documentation against removal or alteration 

Staff To comply with Council policies and procedures, to be 

aware of the possibility of fraud, corruption and theft, 

and to report any concerns immediately to their manager 

or the Section 151 Officer.  

Benefit Fraud 

Team 

To provide an effective and efficient benefit fraud service 

for the Council.  

Public, Partners, 

Suppliers, 

Contractors and 

Consultants 

To be aware of the possibility of fraud and corruption 

against the Council and report any concerns or 

suspicions.  

 

3. Our Approach 

We will fulfil our responsibility to reduce fraud and protect our resources by a 

strategic approach consistent with that outlined in the Local Government 

Fraud Strategy - Fighting Fraud and Corruption Locally. 

The five key themes are Govern, Acknowledge – Prevent – Pursue and 

Protect: 

GOVERN 

Tone at the top Robust arrangements and executive support to 

ensure anti-fraud, bribery and corruption 

measures are embedded holistically 

throughout the Council to support good 

governance. 

  

The Governance and Audit Committee is 

responsible for reviewing and approving 

policies for Counter Fraud and Corruption and 

is provided with results of any investigations 

that are undertaken.  

 

The Governance and Audit Committee receive 

annually the fighting fraud and corruption 

locally strategy checklist, fraud risk 

assessment and fraud action plan which 

shows how the Council manages the 

suggested actions.  

 

The relevant portfolio holder is made aware of 

fraud risks and mitigations.  

 

Page 164



Page 11 of 15 

ACKNOWLEDGE 

Committing Support The Council will have commitment to tackling 

the fraud threat.  We have robust whistle 

blowing procedures which support those who 

come forward to report suspected fraud.  All 

reports will be treated seriously and acted 

upon.  We will not, however, tolerate malicious 

allegations. 

Assessing and 

Understanding Risks 

We will continuously assess those areas most 

vulnerable to the risk of fraud in conjunction 

with our Risk Management arrangements and 

risk based Internal Audit reviews.  Through 

these assessments we can understand how 

fraud affects the Council and what we can do 

about it. 
 

A fraud risk assessment is undertaken by the 

Council to determine areas where counter 

fraud activity is required, highlighting the 

impact this may have on the local community 

which feeds into the annual fraud plan.  

Robust Response We will strengthen measures to prevent fraud 

as detailed by the annual fraud plan – the 

Internal Audit service and the Investigation 

Teams will work with managers and policy 

makers to ensure new and existing systems 

and policy initiatives are adequately fraud 

proofed. 

 

PREVENT 

Better Use of Information & 

Technology 

Working with Others 

We will make greater use of data and analytical 

software to prevent and detect fraudulent 

activity.  We will look for opportunities to share 

data and fraud intelligence to increase our 

capability to uncover potential and actual fraud. 

Our systems are designed to meet key control 

objectives and minimise the opportunity for 

fraud. We will continue to review systems and 

make sure appropriate internal controls are in 

place and adhered to and implement 

improvements. 

Anti-Fraud Culture We will promote and develop a strong counter 

fraud culture, raise awareness and provide 

information on all aspects of our counter fraud 

work.  This will include reporting the results of all 

proactive work, fraud investigations, successful 

Page 165



Page 12 of 15 

sanctions and any recovery of losses due to 

fraud. 

We will work to a corporate framework that 

identifies responsibilities for decision making 

and rules of procedure and ensures the highest 

standards of conduct are practiced by staff, 

Councillors and those we do business with. 

We will carry out due diligence when appointing 

staff, carrying out relevant checks on references 

and qualifications and providing appropriate 

training.  

Corporate approach Through the Corporate Risk Management 

framework and risk based Internal Audit reviews 

we will identify potentially vulnerable areas. 

 

PURSUE 

Fraud Recovery A crucial element of our response to tackling 

fraud is recovering any monies or assets lost 

through fraud – this is an important part of our 

strategy and will be rigorously pursued, where 

possible. 

Punishing Fraudsters We will apply realistic and effective sanctions for 

individuals or organisations where an 

investigation reveals fraudulent activity.  This 

may include legal action, criminal and/or 

disciplinary action, where appropriate. 

Enforcement Appropriately trained investigators will 

investigate any fraud detected through the 

planned proactive work, cases of suspected 

fraud referred from internal or external 

stakeholders or received via the whistle blowing 

arrangements. 

 

PROTECT 

Protecting the Council and 

its Residents 

Fraud and corruption cases are publicised and 
endorsed by the council’s communications 
team to highlight awareness in the local 
community. 
 
Cyber crime controls are regularly reviewed to 
ensure they remain adequate to new and 
increasingly sophisticated techniques from 
fraudsters.  
 
The Council’s external auditors provide 

Page 166



Page 13 of 15 

assurance within their annual review that 
public funds are protected.  
 
Weaknesses revealed by instances of proven 
fraud and corruption are scrutinised carefully 
and fed back to departments to fraud proof 
systems to prevent future occurrences.  
 

 

Implementation 

Service Managers are responsible for making sure that all staff are familiar 

with the content of this policy. Under its terms of reference it is the role of the 

Governance and Audit Committee to review the Council procedures, 

arrangements, incidences, actions for handling allegations from whistle 

blowers, and Counter fraud corruption and bribery policy.  

The Section 151 Officer is responsible for making sure that the Council has 

control systems and measures in place and is accountable for the 

implementation of this policy.  

There is a source of support for Fraud under the Council's Internal Audit 

Contract.  

Communication plans and training are very important in highlighting 

awareness and Management Team and Service Managers have a key role to 

play in making sure this happens. 

Reporting concerns of Fraud, Corruption and Bribery 

Anyone who has a concern that a potential incident of fraud, corruption or 

bribery has arisen should always attempt to raise these concerns at the 

earliest opportunity.   

The Council acknowledges that this can be difficult and challenging to do in 

some cases and the Whistleblowing Policy has been established in order to 

provide those raising concerns with a safe avenue with which to do so.   

It also offers sources of advice and guidance that they may turn to.  The 

Whistleblowing Policy can be found on the Councils intranet and internet sites.  

In addition, Appendix 1 to this policy provides details of the Council’s 

Whistleblowing contacts. 

Management Control and Organisation 

See Implementation and Monitoring sections. 

Monitoring  

This policy is to be reviewed at least every three years (or more frequently if 

required by changes to statutory legislation).  Prior to any approval, the 

following parties shall be consulted: 

 The Council’s Executive Management Team  

Page 167



Page 14 of 15 

 The Governance and Audit Committee 

On an annual basis, the policy shall be reviewed by the Head of Internal Audit 

and Section 151 Officer to ensure that details remain relevant and up-to-date.  

This review will not require re-endorsement of the policy 

 

The policy will be also monitored in the following ways: 

MONITORING ACTIVITY PERSON RESPONSIBLE 

Incidence of fraud Section 151 Officer and Governance 

and Audit Committee  

Annual Governance Statement Executive Management Team and 

Governance and Audit Committee 

Annual returns Section 151 Officer 

 

Related Policies and Strategies 

Whistle blowing – Confidential Reporting Code 

Anti-Money Laundering Policy 

Members’ Code of Conduct 

ICT Security Policy 

Financial Regulations 

Benefit Fraud Policy 

Officers’ Code of Conduct 

Appendices 

Appendix 1 – Contacts for Whistle blowing 

 

 

  

Page 168



Page 15 of 15 

Appendix 1 
Contacts for Whistle Blowing 

Raising concerns internally 

Acting Chief Executive 
Christine Marshall 
Christine.marshall@breckland-sholland.gov.uk 
01775 764567 

Executive Director Commercialisation 

(Statutory S151 Officer) 

Vacant  

Executive Manager Governance 

(Monitoring Officer) 

Mark Stinson, mark.stinson@breckland-
sholland.gov.uk  
07899061277  

Executive Director Place 
Vacant  

Head of Internal Audit 
Emma Hodds 
ehodds@s-norfolk.gov.uk 
01508 533791 

Human Resources Manager 
Nikki Harding 
nikki.harding@pspsl.co.uk  
01775 764458 

The National Benefit Fraud Hotline  

For raising suspicions concerning 

Housing Benefits Fraud 

0800 854 440 

The Council  
For raising suspicions concerning 
Council Tax Support Fraud 
 

0800 002 008 

 

Page 169

mailto:Christine.marshall@breckland-sholland.gov.uk
mailto:mark.stinson@breckland-sholland.gov.uk
mailto:mark.stinson@breckland-sholland.gov.uk
mailto:nikki.harding@pspsl.co.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



South Holland District 
Council

Annual Audit Letter for the year 
ended 31 March 2020

24 March 2021

P
age 171

A
genda Item

 13.



Page

Section 1 Executive Summary 3

Section 2 Purpose and Responsibilities 7

Section 3 Financial Statement Audit 9

Section 4 Value for Money 12

Section 5 Other Reporting Issues 14

Section 6 Audit Fees 17

Contents

South Holland District Council 2

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) have issued a ‘Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited 
bodies’. It is available from the Chief Executive of each audited body and via the PSAA website (www.psaa.co.uk). 

This Statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of engagement between appointed auditors and 
audited bodies. It summarises where the different responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies begin and end, and 
what is to be expected of the audited body in certain areas.

The ‘Terms of Appointment (updated April 2018)’ issued by PSAA sets out additional requirements that auditors 
must comply with, over and above those set out in the National Audit Office Code of Audit Practice (the Code) and 
statute, and covers matters of practice and procedure which are of a recurring nature.

This Annual Audit Letter is prepared in the context of the Statement of responsibilities. It is addressed to the 
Members of the audited body, and is prepared for their sole use. We, as appointed auditor, take no responsibility to 
any third party.

Our Complaints Procedure – If at any time you would like to discuss with us how our service to you could be 
improved, or if you are dissatisfied with the service you are receiving, you may take the issue up with your usual 
partner or director contact. If you prefer an alternative route, please contact Hywel Ball, our Managing Partner, 1 
More London Place, London SE1 2AF. We undertake to look into any complaint carefully and promptly and to do all 
we can to explain the position to you. Should you remain dissatisfied with any aspect of our service, you may of 
course take matters up with our professional institute. We can provide further information on how you may contact 
our professional institute.

P
age 172

http://www.psaa.co.uk/


Section 1

Executive Summary

3

P
age 173



We are required to issue an Annual Audit Letter to South Holland District Council following completion of our audit procedures for the year ended 31 March 2020. 

Covid-19 had an impact on a number of aspects of our 2019/20 audit. We updated our audit procedures to take account of the following issues: 

4

Executive Summary

Area of impact Commentary

Impact on the delivery of the audit

► Changes to reporting timescales As a result of Covid-19, new regulations, the Accounts and Audit (Coronavirus) (Amendment) Regulations 2020 No. 
404, were published and came into force on 30 April 2020. This announced a change to the publication date for 
final, audited accounts from 31 July to 30 November 2020 for all relevant authorities. We worked with the Council 
to deliver our audit to an appropriate timescale.

Impact on our risk assessment

► Valuation of Property Plant and Equipment 
and Investment Property 

The Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS), the body setting the standards for property valuations, issued 
guidance to valuers highlighting that the uncertain impact of Covid-19 on markets might cause a valuer to conclude 
that there is a material uncertainty over the valuations in place at the 31 March 2020. Caveats around this material 
uncertainty were included in the year-end valuation reports produced by the Council’s external valuer. 

► Disclosures on Going Concern Financial plans for 2020/21 and medium term financial plans required revision to take account of Covid-19. We 
considered the unpredictability of the current environment gave rise to a risk that the Council would not 
appropriately disclose the key factors relating to going concern, underpinned by managements assessment with 
particular reference to Covid-19. 

Impact on the scope of our audit

► Information Produced by the Entity (IPE) We identified an increased risk around the completeness, accuracy, and appropriateness of information produced by 
the entity due to the inability of the audit team to verify original documents or re-run reports on-site from the 
Council’s systems because of remote working protocols. We undertook the following to address this risk:

► Used the screen sharing function of Microsoft Teams to evidence re-running of reports used to generate the IPE 
we audited; and

► Agree IPE to scanned documents or other system screenshots.

► Consultation requirements Additional EY consultation requirements were required concerning the impact on auditor reports. 

P
age 174



The tables below set out the results and conclusions on the significant areas of the audit process. 

5

Area of Work Conclusion

► Financial statements Unqualified – the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Council as at 
31 March 2020 and of its expenditure and income for the year then ended. 

► Consistency of other information published with the 
financial statements

Other information published within the Statement of Accounts was consistent with the financial 
statements.

► Concluding on the s arrangements for securing 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness

We concluded that you have put in place proper arrangements to secure value for money in your use of 
resources. 

Area of Work Conclusion

Reports by exception:

► Consistency of Governance Statement The Governance Statement was consistent with our understanding of the Council.

► Public interest report We had no matters to report in the public interest. 

► Written recommendations to the Council, which 
should be copied to the Secretary of State

We had no matters to report. 

► Other actions taken in relation to our responsibilities 
under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014

We had no matters to report.

Executive Summary (cont’d)

Opinion on the Council’s:

Area of Work Conclusion

Reporting to the National Audit Office (NAO) on our 
review of the Council’s Whole of Government Accounts 
return (WGA). 

We had no matters to report.

P
age 175



Executive Summary (cont’d)

6

As a result of the above we have also:

Area of Work Conclusion

Issued a report to those charged with governance of 
the Council communicating significant findings 
resulting from our audit.

Our Audit Results Report was issued on 11 November 2020 which we presented to the Audit Committee 
on the 26 November 2020, with an updated and final version issued on 9 March 2021. 

Issued a certificate that we have completed the audit in 
accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit 
and Accountability Act 2014 and the National Audit 
Office’s 2015 Code of Audit Practice.

Our certificate was issued on 11 March 2021. 

We would like to take this opportunity to thank the Council’s staff for their assistance during the course of our work and, in particular given the challenging 
priorities they faced as a result of their work in responding to the Covid-19 pandemic, their collaborative approach which enabled us to complete the 2019/20 
audit by working remotely. 

Mark Hodgson 
Associate Partner
For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP

P
age 176



Section 2

Purpose and 
Responsibilities

e
Responsibilities

P
age 177



Purpose and Responsibilities

8

The Purpose of this Letter

The purpose of this annual audit letter is to communicate to the Council and external stakeholders, including members of the public, the key issues arising from our 
work, which we consider should be brought to the attention of the Council. 

We have already reported the detailed findings from our audit work in our 2019/20 Audit Results Report to the Governance and Audit Committee, representing 
those charged with governance. We do not repeat those detailed findings in this letter. The matters reported here are the most significant for the Council.

Responsibilities of the Appointed Auditor

Our 2019/20 audit work has been undertaken in accordance with the Audit Plan that we issued on 14 May 2020 and is conducted in accordance with the National 
Audit Office's 2015 Code of Audit Practice, International Standards on Auditing (UK), and other guidance issued by the National Audit Office. 

As auditors we are responsible for:

► Expressing an opinion:

► On the 2019/20 financial statements; and

► On the consistency of other information published with the financial statements.

► Forming a conclusion on the arrangements the Council has to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

► Reporting by exception:

► If the annual governance statement is misleading or not consistent with our understanding of the Council;

► Any significant matters that are in the public interest; 

► Any written recommendations to the Council, which should be copied to the Secretary of State; and

► If we have discharged our duties and responsibilities as established by the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and Code of Audit Practice. 

Alongside our work on the financial statements, we also review and report to the National Audit Office (NAO) on your Whole of Government Accounts return. The 
Council is below the specified audit threshold of £500 million. Therefore, we did not perform any audit procedures on the return.

Responsibilities of the Council

The Council is responsible for preparing and publishing its statement of accounts accompanied by an Annual Governance Statement (AGS). In the AGS, the Council 
reports publicly each year on how far it complies with its own code of governance, including how it has monitored and evaluated the effectiveness of its governance 
arrangements in year, and any changes planned in the coming period. 

The Council is also responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

P
age 178



Section 3

Financial Statement 
Audit

P
age 179



10

Key Issues

The Council’s Statement of Accounts is an important tool for the Council to show how it has used public money and how it can demonstrate its financial 
management and financial health.

We audited the Council’s Statement of Accounts in line with the National Audit Office’s 2015 Code of Audit Practice, Internat ional Standards on Auditing (UK), and 
other guidance issued by the National Audit Office and issued an unqualified audit report on 11 March 2021.

Our detailed findings were reported to the 26 November 2020 Governance and Audit Committee.

The key issues identified as part of our audit were as follows:

Financial Statement Audit

Risks Conclusion

Misstatements due to fraud or error We did not identify any matters to report to the Council.

Incorrect capitalisation of revenue expenditure We did not identify any matters to report to the Council.

Valuation of Property, Plant and Equipment We identified one misclassification of assets which was amended by the Council 
within the revised financial statements. We also identified a further misclassification 
of assets and an understatement in valuation which the Council chose not to amend. 
These unamended items were not material.

Supporting leases could not be provided for 6 items and a further 9 leases had 
expired, out of 19 relevant items tested. We recommend that the Council should 
review all assets where there are associated leases and ensure that appropriate 
supporting documentation is in place.   

Pension liability valuation Following the publication of HMT consultation on remedy for the McCloud judgement 
in July 2020, the Council obtained a revised actuarial report from the Pension Fund 
Actuary. This showed an increase in the Council’s pension fund liability of £213,000, 
which the Council chose not to adjust for on the grounds of materiality.

Omission or understatement of NDR appeals provisions We did not identify any matters to report to the Council.

Going Concern Disclosures The Council assessed the impact of Covid-19 on its income, expenditure, cash and 
reserves position into 2020/21 and 2021/22 and made an appropriate disclosure in 
the statements.

P
age 180



Financial Statement Audit (cont’d)

11

Our application of materiality

When establishing our overall audit strategy, we determined a magnitude of uncorrected misstatements that we judged would be material for the financial 
statements as a whole.

We also identified the following areas where misstatement at a level lower than our overall materiality level might influence the reader. For these areas we 
developed an audit strategy specific to these areas. The areas identified and audit strategy applied include:

► Remuneration disclosures including any severance payments, exit packages and termination benefits: We agreed all disclosures back to source data and 
approved amounts applying a reduced materiality level of £5,000 in line with bandings disclosed in the financial statements.

► Related party transactions: We tested the completeness of related party disclosures and the accuracy of all disclosures by checking back to supporting 
evidence applying a reduced materiality level equal to the reporting threshold.

We evaluate any uncorrected misstatements against both the quantitative measures of materiality discussed above and in light of other relevant qualitative 
considerations. 

Planning materiality We determined planning materiality to be £0.921 million (2018/19: £1.066 million), which is 2% of 
gross expenditure on the provision of services reported in the accounts of £53.671 million adjusted for 
the non domestic rates tariff and levy payment.  

We consider gross expenditure on the provision of services to be one of the principal considerations for 
stakeholders in assessing the financial performance of the Council.

Reporting threshold We agreed with the Governance and Audit Committee that we would report to the Committee all audit 
differences in excess of £46,088 (2018/19: £53,276) 

Item Thresholds applied

P
age 181



Section 4

Value for Money

P
age 182



13

Value for Money

We are required to consider whether the Council has put in place ‘proper arrangements’ to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. This 
is known as our value for money conclusion.

Proper arrangements are defined by statutory guidance issued by the National Audit Office. They comprise your arrangements to:

► Take informed decisions;

► Deploy resources in a sustainable manner; and

► Work with partners and other third parties.

Proper

arrangements for

securing value

for money

Informed

decision

making

Working with 

partners and 

third parties

Sustainable 

resource 

deployment

We did not identify any significant risks in relation to these criteria. 

We have performed the procedures outlined in our audit plan. We did not identify any significant 
weaknesses in the Council’s arrangements to ensure it took properly informed decisions and 
deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people. 

We therefore issued an unqualified value for money conclusion on 11 March 2021.

On 16 April 2020 the National Audit Office published an update to auditor guidance in relation to 
the 2019/20 Value for Money assessment in the light of Covid-19. This clarified that in 
undertaking the 2019/20 Value for Money assessment auditors should consider Local 
Authorities’ response to Covid-19 only as far as it relates to the 2019/20 financial year; only 
where clear evidence comes to the auditor’s attention of a significant failure in arrangements as a 
result of Covid-19 during the financial year, would it be appropriate to recognise a significant risk 
in relation to the 2019/20 VFM arrangements conclusion. 

P
age 183



Section 5

Other Reporting 
Issues

P
age 184



Whole of Government Accounts

We are required to perform the procedures specified by the National Audit Office on the accuracy of the consolidation pack prepared by the Council for Whole of 
Government Accounts purposes.

The Council is below the specified audit threshold of £500 million. Therefore, we were not required to perform any audit procedures on the consolidation pack. 

Annual Governance Statement

We are required to consider the completeness of disclosures in the Council’s Annual Governance Statement, identify any incons istencies with the other information 
of which we are aware from our work, and consider whether it is misleading.

We completed this work and did not identify any matters to report. 

Report in the Public Interest

We have a duty under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to consider whether, in the public interest, to report on any matter that comes to our attention in 
the course of the audit in order for it to be considered by the Council or brought to the attention of the public.

We did not identify any issues which required us to issue a report in the public interest.

Written Recommendations

We have a duty under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to designate any audit recommendation as one that requires the Council to consider it at a public 
meeting and to decide what action to take in response. 

We did not identify any issues which required us to issue a written recommendation.

Other Reporting Issues

15

P
age 185



Objections Received

We did not receive any objections to the 2019/20 financial statements from members of the public. 

Other Powers and Duties

We did not identify any issues during our audit that required us to use our additional powers under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. 

Independence

We communicated our assessment of independence in our Audit Results Report to the Governance and Audit Committee on 26 November 2020. In our professional 
judgement the firm is independent and the objectivity of the audit engagement partner and audit staff has not been compromised within the meaning regulatory and 
professional requirements. 

Control Themes and Observations

As part of our work, we obtained an understanding of internal control sufficient to plan our audit and determine the nature, timing and extent of testing performed. 
Although our audit was not designed to express an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control, we are required to communicate to you significant deficiencies in 
internal control identified during our audit. 

We have adopted a fully substantive audit approach and have therefore not tested the operation of controls. 

Our audit did not identify any controls issues to bring to the attention of the Council or the Governance and Audit Committee.

16

Other Reporting Issues (cont’d)

P
age 186



Audit Fees
Section 6

17

P
age 187



Our fee for 2019/20 is in line with the scale fee set by the PSAA and reported in our 11 November 2020 Audit Results Report. 

18

Audit Fees

Description

Final Fee 2019/20

£

Planned Fee 2019/20

£

Scale Fee 2019/20

£

Final Fee 2018/19 

£

Total Audit Fee – Code work 34,293 34,293 34,293 34,293

Changes in work required to address professional and 
regulatory requirements and scope associated with 
risk 

26,540 N/A

Audit of the group account consolidation 3,707 2,346

Revised Proposed Scale Fee (see Note 1) 64,540 36,639

Assessment of Going Concern in light of Covid-19 
including consultation process and documentation and 
the reassessment of materiality and identification of 
any further risks (including in relation to VFM) 

4,810 N/A

Increased Property, Plant and Equipment and 
Investment Property procedures to consider, 
challenge and respond to the basis of the valuation, 
including the RICS material uncertainty clause and 
associated increase in sample sizes – as a result of 
Covid-19.

8,067

Additional audit time in relation to delays to audit 
queries and provision of supporting documentation

4,094

Total Audit Fee 81,511 36,639

Note 1
For 2019/20 we have proposed an increase to the scale fee to reflect the increased level of audit work required which has been impacted by a range of factors, as 
detailed in our Audit Plan. This revised scale fee has been discussed with Management and is subject to review and approval by PSAA Ltd.

P
age 188



19

EY | Assurance | Tax | Transactions | Advisory

About EY
EY is a global leader in assurance, tax, transaction
and advisory services. The insights and quality
services we deliver help build trust and confidence
in the capital markets and in economies the world
over. We develop outstanding leaders who team to
deliver on our promises to all of our stakeholders.
In so doing, we play a critical role in building a better 
working world for our people, for our clients and for
our communities.

EY refers to the global organization, and may refer
to one or more, of the member firms of Ernst & Young
Global Limited, each of which is a separate legal entity.
Ernst & Young Global Limited, a UK company limited
by guarantee, does not provide services to clients.
For more information about our organization, please
visit ey.com.

© 2018 EYGM Limited.
All Rights Reserved.

ED None

EY-000070901-01 (UK) 07/18. CSG London.

In line with EY’s commitment to minimise its
impact on the environment, this document has
been printed on paper with a high recycled content.

This material has been prepared for general informational purposes
only and is not intended to be relied upon as accounting, tax, or other 
professional advice. Please refer to your advisors for specific advice.

ey.com

P
age 189



T
his page is intentionally left blank



South Holland District 
Council

Provisional Audit Plan
Year ending 31 March 2021
16 July 2021

P
age 191

A
genda Item

 14.



2

16 July 2021

Dear Governance and Audit Committee Members

Provisional Audit Plan – 2020/21

We are pleased to attach our Provisional Audit Plan which sets out how we intend to carry out our responsibilities as your auditor. 
Its purpose is to provide the Governance and Audit Committee with a basis to review our proposed audit approach and scope for the 
2020/21 audit in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, the National Audit Office’s
2015 Code of Audit Practice, the Statement of Responsibilities issued by Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) Ltd, auditing 
standards and other professional requirements. It is also to ensure that our audit is aligned with the Committee’s service 
expectations. 

This report summarises our initial assessment of the key issues which drive the development of an effective audit for the Council, 
and outlines our planned audit strategy in response to those risks. We will provide an update to the Committee if there are any 
additional audit risks and procedures that arise as we continue our work. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Governance and Audit Committee and management, and is not 
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

We welcome the opportunity to discuss this report with you on 29 July 2021 as well as understand whether there are other matters
which you consider may influence our audit.

Yours faithfully 

Mark Hodgson
Associate Partner
For and on behalf of Ernst & Young

Governance and Audit Committee

South Holland District Council
Council Offices
Priory Road
Spalding
Lincolnshire
PE11 2XE

P
age 192



3

Contents

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) issued the “Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies”. It is available from the PSAA website (https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-
quality/statement-of-responsibilities/)).The Statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of engagement between appointed auditors and audited bodies. It summarises where the different 
responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies begin and end, and what is to be expected of the audited body in certain areas. 
The “Terms of Appointment and further guidance (updated April 2018)” issued by the PSAA sets out additional requirements that auditors must comply with, over and above those set out in the National 
Audit Office Code of Audit Practice (the Code) and in legislation, and covers matters of practice and procedure which are of a recurring nature.
This report is made solely to the Governance and Audit Committee and management of the Council in accordance with the statement of responsibilities. Our work has been undertaken so that we might 
state to the Governance and Audit Committee, and management of the Council those matters we are required to state to them in this report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law 
we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Governance and Audit Committee, and management of the Council for this report or for the opinions we have formed. It should not be 
provided to any third-party without our prior written consent.

Overview of our 
2020/21 audit 
strategy

01 Audit risks02 Audit 
materiality

04 Scope of our 
audit

05

Appendices09Audit team06 Audit 
timeline07 Independence08

Value for 
Money risks

03

V
F
M

P
age 193

https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-quality/statement-of-responsibilities/


4

Overview of our 2020/21 
audit strategy

01 01

P
age 194



5

Overview of our 2020/21 audit strategy

Audit risks and areas of focus

Risk / area of focus
Risk 
identified 

Change from 
PY

Details

Misstatements due to fraud 
or error

Fraud risk
No change in 
risk or focus

As identified in ISA 240, management is in a unique position to perpetrate fraud 
because of its ability to manipulate accounting records directly or indirectly and 
prepare fraudulent financial statements by overriding controls that would otherwise 
appear to be operating effectively. 

Inappropriate capitalisation 
of revenue expenditure

Fraud risk
No change in 
risk or focus

Linking to our fraud risk identified above we have considered the capitalisation of 
revenue expenditure on property, plant, and equipment as a separate specific risk, 
given the extent of the Council’s capital programme. 

Accounting for Covid-19 
related government grants

Significant 
risk

New significant 
risk

The Council has received a significant level of government funding in relation to Covid-
19. There is a need for the Council to ensure that it accounts for these grants 
appropriately, taking into account any associated restrictions and conditions. 

Valuation of Property, 
Plant and Equipment and 
Investment Properties

Inherent Risk
No change in 
risk or focus

The fair value of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE), and Investment Properties (IP) 
represents a significant balance in the Council’s accounts and is subject to valuation 
changes, impairment reviews and depreciation charges. Management is required to 
make material judgemental inputs and apply estimation techniques to calculate the 
year-end balances recorded in the balance sheet. 

Pension Valuation and 
Disclosures

Inherent Risk
No change in 
risk or focus

The Local Authority Accounting Code of Practice and IAS19 require the Council to 
make extensive disclosures within its financial statements regarding the Local 
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) in which it is an admitted body.
The Council’s current pension fund deficit is a material and sensitive item and the Code 
requires that this liability be disclosed on the Council’s balance sheet. 

The following ‘dashboard’ summarises the significant accounting and auditing matters outlined in this report. It seeks to provide the 
Governance and Audit Committee with an overview of our initial risk identification for the upcoming audit and any changes in risks identified in 
the current year 

P
age 195



6

Overview of our 2020/21 audit strategy

Risk / area of focus
Risk 
identified 

Change from 
PY

Details

National Non-Domestic 
Rates (NNDR) Appeals 
Provision 

Inherent Risk
No change in 
risk or focus

Statistics compiled by the Ministry for Housing, Communities and Local Government, 
reveal that councils are forecasting net additions to appeal provisions totalling £927 
million this financial year, and £1.2 billion next year. The reason behind the forecast 
increase is that, due to the impact of Covid-19, businesses are likely to seek reductions 
based on a decrease in rental prices on which rateable values are based.
In light of this we consider there to be a higher inherent risk of misstatement of the 
Council’s NNDR appeals provision.  

Recoverability of 
Receivables (Debtors) 

Inherent Risk
New inherent 

risk

As a result of the impact of Covid-19, there may be increased uncertainty around the 
recoverability of receivables. The provision for these bad debts is an estimate, and 
calculation requires management judgement. We would expect the Council to revisit their 
provision for bad debt calculation in light of Covid-19 and assess the appropriateness of 
this estimation technique.

Accounting for Collection 
Fund disclosures 

Inherent Risk
New inherent 

risk

During 2020/21, in response to the financial hardship faced by individuals and 
businesses, there may be lower levels of recovery of collection fund income. There are 
also specific sectors including retail, hospitality and leisure that have received additional 
business rates relief. There is therefore a risk of incorrect accounting based on the 
significant level of change in the year.

New payroll system Inherent Risk
New inherent 

risk

The Council implemented a new payroll system during the financial year. As with any IT 
upgrade there is a risk that the relevant financial information has not been appropriately 
transferred to the new system leading to material misstatement in the 2020/21 financial 
statements.

Going Concern Compliance 
with ISA 570 

Area of 
Focus

No change in 
risk or focus

The financial landscape for the Council remains challenging and management will need to 
prepare a going concern assessment covering a period up to 12 months from the 
expected date of the financial statements authorisation. The Council will also need to 
make an appropriate disclosure in the financial statements. In addition, the revised 
auditing standard on going concern requires additional challenge from auditors on the 
assertions being made by management.

P
age 196



7

Overview of our 2020/21 audit strategy

Materiality

Planning
materiality

£0.922m

Performance 
materiality

£0.691m

Audit
differences

£0.046m

We have set materiality at £0.922 million for the financial statements which represents 2% of the prior years gross 
revenue expenditure of the Council. Materiality for the group financial statements is £0.953 million. The use of 2% of 
gross revenue expenditure is in line with the prior year and is our maximum threshold for local authorities reflecting 
the higher profile of local government financial resilience and financial reporting.

We have set performance materiality at £0.691 million for the single entity financial statements and £0.715 million 
for the group financial statements. This represents 75% of materiality reflecting the low level of errors we detected 
in the 2019/20 financial statements.

We will report all uncorrected misstatements relating to the primary statements (comprehensive income 
and expenditure statement, balance sheet, movement in reserves statement and cash flow statement) 
greater than £0.046 million for the single entity and £0.048 million for the group. We will communicate 
other misstatements identified to the extent that they merit the attention of the Governance and Audit 
Committee.

We also identify areas where misstatement at a lower level than our overall materiality level might influence the reader and develop an audit strategy 
specific to these areas, including:

• Remuneration disclosures including Member allowances: we will agree all disclosures back to source data, and Member allowances to the agreed 
and approved amounts; and

• Related party transactions: we will test the completeness of related party disclosures and the accuracy of all disclosures by checking back to 
supporting evidence.

P
age 197



8

Overview of our 2020/21 audit strategy

Audit scope

This Audit Plan covers the work that we plan to perform to provide you with our audit opinion on the Council and Group financial statements for 
2020/21. We are also required to report a commentary on your arrangements to secure value for money in your use of resources for the relevant 
period. We include further details on VFM in Section 03, highlighting the changes included in the NAO’s Code of Audit Practice 2020.

We will also review and report to the NAO, to the extent and in the form required by them, on the Whole of Government Accounts submission. We 
intend to take a substantive audit approach.  When planning the audit we take into account key inputs:

▪ Strategic, operational and financial risks relevant to the financial statements;
▪ Developments in financial reporting and auditing standards;
▪ The quality of systems and processes; 
▪ Changes in the business and regulatory environment; and
▪ Management’s views on all of the above.

Taking the above into account, and as articulated in this Audit Plan, our professional responsibilities require us to independently assess the risks 
associated with providing an audit opinion and undertake appropriate procedures in response to that. Our Terms of Appointment with PSAA allow 
them to vary the fee dependent on “the auditors assessment of risk and the work needed to meet their professional responsibil ities”. PSAA are aware 
that the setting of scale fees has not kept pace with the changing requirements of external audit with increased focus on, for example, the valuations of 
land and buildings, the auditing of groups, the valuation of pension obligations, the introduction of new accounting standards such as Going Concern 
disclosure in recent years as well as the expansion of factors impacting the Value for Money conclusion. Therefore, to the extent any of these or any 
other risks are relevant in the context of the Council’s audit, we will discuss these with management as to the impact on the scale fee.

Fees

We remain in discussion with PSAA about our proposed increase to the scale fee which we consider to be appropriate to deliver a Code compliant audit. 
We include in Appendix A, our current view of the fees required to carry out the 2020/21 audit. We will update the Committee on any determinations by
PSAA on fees.

P
age 198



9

Overview of our 2021 audit strategy

Value for money conclusion

One of the main changes in the NAO’s 2020 Code is in relation to the value for money conclusion. We include details in Section 03 but in summary:

• We are still required to consider whether the Council has put in place ‘proper arrangements’ to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness on its use 
of resources.

• Planning on VFM and the associated risk assessment is now focused on gathering sufficient evidence to enable us to document our evaluation of the 
Council’s arrangements, to enable us to draft a commentary under three reporting criteria (see below). This includes identify ing and reporting on any 
significant weaknesses in those arrangements and making appropriate recommendations. 

• We will be required to provide a commentary on the Council’s arrangements against three reporting criteria:

• Financial sustainability - How the Council plans and manages its resources to ensure it can continue to deliver its services;

• Governance - How the Council ensures that it makes informed decisions and properly manages its risks; and

• Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness - How the Council uses information about its costs and performance to improve the way it 
manages and delivers its services.

• Within the audit opinion we will still only report by exception where we are not satisfied that the Council has made proper arrangements for securing 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

• The commentary on arrangements will be included in a new Auditor’s Annual Report which we will be required to issue at a date to be determined by 
the NAO.

In addition to the above risks and areas of focus, a revised auditing standard has been issued in respect of the audit of accounting estimates. The revised 
standard requires auditors to consider inherent risks associated with the production of accounting estimates. These could relate, for example, to the 
complexity of the method applied, subjectivity in the choice of data or assumptions or a high degree of estimation uncertainty. The changes to the 
standard may affect the nature and extent of information that we may request and will likely increase the level of audit work required. See page 18 for 
further details of the revised auditing standard.

Accounting estimates

Timeline

MHCLG have provided a revised date for the Council to publish it’s draft accounts to 1 August 2021 and as part of their response to the Redmond 
Review, MHCLG have confirmed that for 2020/21 the target date for audited accounts would be 30 September 2021. We have communicated with the 
Chief Finance Officers for all local authorities in the East of England to share our proposal to phase the delivery of the 2020/21 audits by the end of the 
year. In section 07 we therefore include a provisional timeline for the audit of South Holland District Council.

P
age 199



10

Audit risks02 01

P
age 200



11

Audit risks

Our response to significant risks 

What will we do?

In order to address this risk we will carry out a range of 
procedures including:

• Identifying fraud risks during the planning stages;

• Inquiry of management about risks of fraud and the 
controls put in place to address those risks;

• Understanding the oversight given by those charged 
with governance of management’s processes over 
fraud;

• Consideration of the effectiveness of management’s 
controls designed to address the risk of fraud;

• Determining an appropriate strategy to address 
those identified risks of fraud; and

• Performing mandatory procedures regardless of 
specifically identified fraud risks, including testing of 
journal entries and other adjustments in the 
preparation of the financial statements and 
evaluating the business rationale for significant 
unusual transactions.

We have set out the significant risks (including fraud risks denoted by*) identified for the current year audit along with the rationale and expected audit approach.
The risks identified below may change to reflect any significant findings or subsequent issues we identify during the audit.

What is the risk?

The financial statements as a whole are not free of 
material misstatements whether caused by fraud or 
error.

As identified in ISA (UK and Ireland) 240, management 
is in a unique position to perpetrate fraud because of its 
ability to manipulate accounting records directly or 
indirectly and prepare fraudulent financial statements 
by overriding controls that otherwise appear to be 
operating effectively. 

We identify and respond to this fraud risk on every audit 
engagement.

One area susceptible to manipulation is the 
capitalisation of revenue expenditure on Property, Plant 
and Equipment given the extent of the Council’s capital 
programme (see below).

Misstatements due to fraud 
or error *

P
age 201



12

Audit risks

Our response to significant risks (continued) 
What is the risk?

Under ISA 240 there is a presumed risk that 
revenue may be misstated due to improper 
revenue recognition. In the public sector, this 
requirement is modified by Practice Note 10 
issued by the Financial Reporting Council, which 
states that auditors should also consider the risk 
that material misstatements may occur by the 
manipulation of expenditure recognition. 

As the Council is more focused on its financial 
position over medium term, we have considered 
the risk of manipulation to be more prevalent in 
the inappropriate capitalisation of revenue 
expenditure on Property, Plant and Equipment 
given the extent of the Council’s capital 
programme.

What will we do?

In order to address this risk we will carry out a 
range of procedures including:

• Obtaining an analysis of capital additions in 
the year, reconciling to the Fixed Assets 
Register (FAR), and reviewing the 
descriptions to identify whether there are any 
potential items that could be revenue in 
nature;

• Sample testing additions to Property, Plant 
and Equipment to ensure that they have been 
correctly classified as capital and included at 
the correct value in order to identify any 
revenue items that have been inappropriately 
capitalised; and

• Using our data analytics tool to identify and 
test journal entries that move expenditure 
into capital codes.

Financial statement impact

We have identified a risk of expenditure 
misstatements due to fraud or error that could 
affect the income and expenditure accounts. 

We consider the risk applies to the  
capitalisation of revenue expenditure and 
could result in a misstatement of ‘Cost of 
Services’ reported in the comprehensive 
income and expenditure statement. 

Inappropriate capitalisation of revenue 
expenditure*

P
age 202



13

Audit risks

Our response to significant risks (continued)
What is the risk?

In response to the Covid-19 pandemic, the 
Council have received significant levels of grant 
funding, both to support the Council and to pass 
on to local businesses. Each of these grants will 
have distinct restrictions and conditions that 
will impact the accounting treatment of these. 

Given the volume of these grants, and the new 
conditions for the Council to understand the 
accounting impact of, there is a significant risk 
that these may be misclassified in the financial 
statements or inappropriately treated from an 
accounting perspective. 

What will we do?

In order to address this risk we will carry out a 
range of procedures including:

• Sample testing Government Grant income to 
ensure that they have been correctly classified 
as specific or non-specific in nature; and

• Sample testing Government Grant income to 
ensure that they have been correctly classified 
in the financial statements based on any 
restrictions imposed by the funding body. 

Financial statement impact

The Council has received a significant level of 
government funding in relation to Covid-19. 
Whilst there is no change in the CIPFA Code or 
accounting standard (IFRS 15) in respect of 
accounting for grant funding, the emergency 
nature of some of the grants received and in 
some cases the lack of clarity on any 
associated restrictions and conditions, means 
that the Council will need to apply a greater 
degree of assessment and judgement to 
determine the appropriate accounting 
treatment in the 2020/21 statements.

Accounting for Covid-19 related grant 
funding

P
age 203



14

Audit risks

Other areas of audit focus 

What is the area of focus? What will we do?

Valuation of Property, Plant, and Equipment and 
Investment Properties – Inherent Risk

The fair value of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) and 
Investment Properties (IP) represents a significant balance in 
the Council’s accounts and is subject to valuation changes, 
impairment reviews and depreciation charges. 

At 31 March 2020 the net book value of PPE was 
£199.1 million, and the fair value of investment properties 
was £1 million. We note that within PPE, our focus is on Land 
and Buildings and Surplus Assets. 

Management is required to make material judgemental inputs 
and apply estimation techniques to calculate the year-end 
balances recorded in the balance sheet.

In order to address this risk we will carry out a range of procedures including:

• Consider the work performed by the Council’s valuers (Kier / Wilks, Head & Eve), 
including the adequacy of the scope of the work performed, their professional 
capabilities and the results of their work;

• Sample test key asset information used by the valuer in performing their valuation 
(e.g. floor plans to support valuations based on price per square metre);

• Consider the annual cycle of valuations to ensure that assets have been valued 
within a 5 year rolling programme as required by the Code for PPE. We will also 
consider if there are any specific changes to assets that have occurred and that 
these have been communicated to the valuer;

• Review assets not subject to valuation in 2020/21 to confirm that the remaining 
asset base is not materially misstated;

• Consider changes to useful economic lives as a result of the most recent valuation; 
and

• Test accounting entries have been correctly processed in the financial statements.

We have identified other areas of the audit, that have not been classified as significant risks, but are still important when considering the risks of
material misstatement to the financial statements and disclosures.

P
age 204



15

Audit risks

Other areas of audit focus (continued) 
What is the area of focus? What will we do?

Pensions valuations and disclosures – Inherent Risk

The Local Authority Accounting Code of Practice and IAS19 require the Council 
to make extensive disclosures within its financial statements regarding the Local 
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) in which it is an admitted body 

The Council’s current pension fund deficit is a material and sensitive item and 
the Code requires that this liability be disclosed on the Council’s Balance Sheet. 

Accounting for this scheme involves significant estimation and judgement. 

At 31 March 2020 the pension liability totalled £34.733 million. The information 
disclosed is based on the IAS 19 report issued to the Council by the actuary to 
the administering body.

ISAs (UK and Ireland) 500 and 540 require us to undertake procedures on the 
use of management experts and the assumptions underlying fair value 
estimates. 

In order to address this risk we will carry out a range of procedures 
including:

• Liaise with the auditors of Lincolnshire Pension Fund, to obtain 
assurances over the information supplied to the actuary in 
relation to South Holland District Council;

• Assess the work of the Pension Fund actuary (Hymans 
Robertson) including the assumptions they have used, by 
relying on the work of PWC - Consulting Actuaries 
commissioned by the National Audit Office for all local 
government sector auditors, and by considering any relevant 
reviews by the EY actuarial team; and 

• Review and test the accounting entries and disclosures made 
within the Council’s financial statements in relation to IAS19 
considering fund assets and the Council’s liability.

National Non-Domestic Rates Appeals Provision – Inherent Risk

The calculation of the NNDR Appeals Provision is estimate based. Statistics 
compiled by the Ministry for Housing, Communities and Local Government, 
reveal that councils are forecasting net additions to appeal provisions totalling 
£927m this financial year, and £1.2bn next year. The reason behind the forecast 
increase is that, due to the impact of Covid-19, businesses are likely to seek 
reductions based on a decrease in rental prices on which rateable values are 
based.

In light of this we consider there to be a risk of misstatement of the Council’s 
NNDR appeals provision. 

In order to address this risk we will carry out a range of procedures 
including:

• Review the assumptions made by the Council’s NNDR appeals 
provision specialist; and

• Assess the reasonableness of any local adjustments made by 
the Council on the NNDR appeals provision.

P
age 205



16

Audit risks

Other areas of audit focus (continued) 
What is the risk/area of focus? What will we do?

Recoverability of Receivables (Debtors) – Inherent Risk

As a result of the impact of Covid-19, there may be increased 
uncertainty around the recoverability of receivables. The provision 
for these bad debts is an estimate, and calculation requires 
management judgement. We would expect the Council to revisit 
their provision for bad debt calculation in light of Covid-19 and 
assess the appropriateness of this estimation technique. Given that 
there might be some subjectivity to the recoverability of debtors the 
Council will need to consider the level of any provision for bad debts. 
We have therefore raised as an inherent risk in our audit strategy.

In order to address this risk we will carry out a range of procedures including:

• Review the calculation of the bad debt provision for reasonableness and 
accuracy; and 

• Consider the recoverability of debts in testing a sample of trade receivables.

Accounting for Collection Fund disclosures – Inherent Risk

During 2020/21, in response to the financial hardship faced by 
individuals and businesses, there may be lower levels of recovery of 
collection fund income. 

There are also specific sectors including retail, hospitality and 
leisure that have received additional business rates relief for the 
financial year. There is therefore a risk of incorrect accounting 
based on the significant level of change in the year,

In order to address this risk we will carry out a range of procedures including:

• Performing an analytical review of collection fund income, building in any 
changes in relief as appropriate;

• Document our understanding of the process for the raising of specific 
additional reliefs; and

• Review the Collection Fund disclosures with respect to ongoing guidance in 
accounting requirements and for compliance with Code requirement.

New payroll system – Inherent Risk

The Council implemented a new payroll system during the financial 
year. As with any IT upgrade there is a risk that the relevant 
financial information has not been appropriately transferred to the 
new system leading to material misstatement in the 2020/21 
financial statements.

In order to address this risk we will carry out a range of procedures including:

• Documenting our understanding of how transactions in the new payroll 
system are initiated, recorded, processed and reported, and performing 
walk-through procedures to confirm this; and

• Reviewing the process for transferring data to the new system and ensuring  
the accuracy of this data.

P
age 206



17

Audit risks

Other areas of audit focus (continued) 
What is the risk/area of focus? What will we do?

Going Concern Compliance with ISA 570 – Area of Focus

There is a presumption that the Council will continue as a going 
concern for the foreseeable future. However, the Council is required 
to carry out a going concern assessment that is proportionate to the 
risks it faces. In light of the continued impact of Covid-19 on the 
Council’s day to day finances, its annual budget, its cashflow and its 
medium term financial strategy, there is a need for the Council to 
ensure it’s going concern assessment is thorough and appropriately 
comprehensive.

The Council is then required to ensure that its going concern 
disclosure within the statement of accounts adequately reflects its 
going concern assessment and in particular highlights any 
uncertainties it has identified.

In addition, the auditing standard in relation to going concern 
(ISA570) has been revised with effect for the 2020/21 accounts 
audit.

We will meet the requirements of the revised auditing standard on going 
concern (ISA 570) and consider the adequacy of the Council’s going concern 
assessment and its disclosure in the accounts by:

• Challenging management’s identification of events or conditions impacting 
going concern;

• Testing management’s resulting assessment of going concern by evaluating 
supporting evidence (including consideration of the risk of management 
bias);

• Reviewing the Council’s cashflow forecast covering the foreseeable future, 
to ensure that it has sufficient liquidity to continue to operate as a going 
concern;

• Undertaking a ‘stand back’ review to consider all of the evidence obtained, 
whether corroborative or contradictory, when we draw our conclusions on 
going concern; and

• Challenging the disclosure made in the accounts in respect of going concern 
and any material uncertainties.

We will discuss the detailed implications of our review with management and  
provide management with feedback on the adequacy and sufficiency of the 
proposed disclosures in relation to going concern.

P
age 207



18

Audit risks

Other areas of audit focus (Continued)

What is the risk/area of focus?

Auditing accounting estimates – Area of Focus

ISA 540 (Revised) - Auditing Accounting Estimates and Related Disclosures applies to audits of all accounting estimates in financial statements for 
periods beginning on or after December 15, 2019.

This revised ISA responds to changes in financial reporting standards and a more complex business environment which together have increased the 
importance of accounting estimates to the users of financial statements and introduced new challenges for preparers and auditors.
The revised ISA requires auditors to consider inherent risks associated with the production of accounting estimates. These could relate, for example, to 
the complexity of the method applied, subjectivity in the choice of data or assumptions or a high degree of estimation uncertainty. As part of this, 
auditors consider risk on a spectrum (from low to high inherent risk) rather than a simplified classification of whether there is a significant risk or not. At 
the same time, we expect the number of significant risks we report in respect of accounting estimates to increase as a result of the revised guidance in 
this area.

The changes to the standard may affect the nature and extent of information that we may request and will likely increase the level of audit work required, 
particularly in cases where an accounting estimate and related disclosures are higher on the spectrum of inherent risk. For example:
• We may place more emphasis on obtaining an understanding of the nature and extent of your estimation processes and key aspects of related policies 

and procedures. We will need to review whether controls over these processes have been adequately designed and implemented in a greater number 
of cases.

• We may provide increased challenge of aspects of how you derive your accounting estimates. For example, as well as undertaking procedures to 
determine whether there is evidence which supports the judgments made by management, we may also consider whether there is evidence which 
could contradict them.

• We may make more focussed requests for evidence or carry out more targeted procedures relating to components of accounting estimates. This 
might include the methods or models used, assumptions and data chosen or how disclosures (for instance on the level of uncertainty in an estimate) 
have been made, depending on our assessment of where the inherent risk lies.

• You may wish to consider retaining experts to assist with related work. You may also consider documenting key judgements and decisions in 
anticipation of auditor requests, to facilitate more efficient and effective discussions with the audit team.

• We may ask for new or changed management representations compared to prior years.

P
age 208



19

Value for Money Risks03 01V
F
M

P
age 209



20

Value for money

The Council’s responsibilities for value for money

The Council is required to maintain an effective system of internal control that supports the achievement of its policies, aims and objectives while 
safeguarding and securing value for money from the public funds and other resources at its disposal.

As part of the material published with its financial statements, the Council is required to bring together commentary on its governance framework and 
how this has operated during the period in a governance statement. In preparing its governance statement, the Council tailors the content to reflect its 
own individual circumstances, consistent with the requirements of the relevant accounting and reporting framework and having regard to any guidance 
issued in support of that framework. This includes a requirement to provide commentary on its arrangements for securing value for money from their use 
of resources.

Arrangements for

Securing value for

money 

Financial

Sustainability

Improving

Economy,

Efficiency &

effectiveness

Governance 

Auditor responsibilities under the new Code

Under the 2020 Code we are still required to consider whether the Council has put in place ‘proper 
arrangements’ to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness on its use of resources. However, 
there is no longer overall evaluation criterion which we need to conclude on. Instead the 2020 Code 
requires the auditor to design their work to provide them with sufficient assurance to enable them to 
report to the Council a commentary against specified reporting criteria (see below) on the 
arrangements the Council has in place to secure value for money through economic, efficient and 
effective use of its resources for the relevant period.

The specified reporting criteria are:

• Financial sustainability
How the Council plans and manages its resources to ensure it can continue to deliver its services;

• Governance
How the Council ensures that it makes informed decisions and properly manages its risks; and

• Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness
How the Council uses information about its costs and performance to improve the way it manages 
and delivers its services.

V
F
M

P
age 210



21

Value for money

Planning and identifying VFM risks

The NAO’s guidance notes require us to carry out a risk assessment which gathers sufficient evidence to enable us to document our evaluation of the 
Council’s arrangements, in order to enable us to draft a commentary under the three reporting criteria. This includes identifying and reporting on any 
significant weaknesses in those arrangements and making appropriate recommendations. This is a change to 2015 Code guidance notes where the NAO 
required auditors as part of planning, to consider the risk of reaching an incorrect conclusion in relation to the overall criterion.

In considering the Council’s arrangements, we are required to consider:

• The Council’s governance statement;
• Evidence that the Council’s arrangements were in place during the reporting period;
• Evidence obtained from our work on the accounts;
• The work of inspectorates (such as OfSTED) and other bodies; and
• Any other evidence source that we regard as necessary to facilitate the performance of our statutory duties.

We then consider whether there is evidence to suggest that there are significant weaknesses in arrangements. The NAO’s guidance is clear that the 
assessment of what constitutes a significant weakness and the amount of additional audit work required to adequately respond to the risk of a significant 
weakness in arrangements is a matter of professional judgement. However, the NAO states that a weakness may be said to be significant if it: 

• Exposes – or could reasonably be expected to expose – the Council to significant financial loss or risk; 
• Leads to – or could reasonably be expected to lead to – significant impact on the quality or effectiveness of service or on the Council’s reputation; 
• Leads to – or could reasonably be expected to lead to – unlawful actions; or 
• Identifies a failure to take action to address a previously identified significant weakness, such as failure to implement or achieve planned progress on 

action/improvement plans. 

We should also be informed by a consideration of: 

• The magnitude of the issue in relation to the size of the Council; 
• Financial consequences in comparison to, for example, levels of income or expenditure, levels of reserves, or impact on budgets or cashflow forecasts; 
• The impact of the weakness on the Council’s reported performance; 
• Whether the issue has been identified by the Council’s own internal arrangements and what corrective action has been taken or planned;  
• Whether any legal judgements have been made including judicial review; 
• Whether there has been any intervention by a regulator or Secretary of State; 
• Whether the weakness could be considered significant when assessed against the nature, visibility or sensitivity of the issue;  
• The impact on delivery of services to local taxpayers; and 
• The length of time the Council has had to respond to the issue. 

V
F
M

P
age 211



22

Value for money

Responding to identified risks

Where our planning work has identified a risk of significant weakness, the NAO’s guidance requires us to consider what additional evidence is needed to 
determine whether there is a significant weakness in arrangements and undertake additional procedures as necessary, including where appropriate, 
challenge of management’s assumptions. We are required to report our planned procedures to the Governance and Audit Committee.

Reporting on VFM

In addition to the commentary on arrangements, where we are not satisfied that the Council has made proper arrangements for securing economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources the 2020 Code has the same requirement as the 2015 Code in that we should refer to this by 
exception in the audit report on the financial statements.

However, a new requirement under the 2020 Code is for us to include the commentary on arrangements in a new Auditor’s Annual Report. The 2020 
Code states that the commentary should be clear, readily understandable and highlight any issues we wish to draw to the Counc il’s attention or the wider 
public. This should include details of any recommendations arising from the audit and follow-up of recommendations issued previously, along with our 
view as to whether they have been implemented satisfactorily.

Status of our 2020/21 VFM planning

We have yet to complete our detailed VFM planning. However, one area of focus will be on the arrangements that the Council has in place in relation to 
financial sustainability in light of the impact of Covid-19 on the Council’s finances. This includes arrangement with key business partners including 
subsidiary companies. We have not at the time of our issuing of the audit plan identified any significant risks in respect of Value for Money. 

We will update the Governance & Audit Committee meeting on the outcome of our VFM planning and our planned response to any identified risks of 
significant weaknesses in arrangements.

V
F
M

P
age 212



23

Audit materiality04 01

P
age 213



24

Materiality

For planning purposes, planning materiality for 2020/21 has been set at
£0.922 million for the Council’s financial statements. This represents 2% of the
Council’s prior year gross revenue expenditure (GRE) on provision of services,
It will be reassessed throughout the audit process. In an audit of a public sector
entity, we consider gross expenditure to be the appropriate basis for setting
materiality as it is the benchmark for public sector programme activities

Audit materiality

Gross expenditure
on provision of services

£53.67m
(£53.74m 

for the group) Planning 
materiality

£0.922m
(£0.953m

for the group)

Performance 
materiality

£0.691m
(£0.715m 

for the group)
Audit

differences

£0.046m
(£0.048m

for the group)

Materiality

Planning materiality – the amount over which we anticipate 
misstatements would influence the economic decisions of a user of 
the financial statements.

Performance materiality – the amount we use to determine the 
extent of our audit procedures. We have set performance materiality 
at £0.691 million for the single entity and £0.715 million for the 
group financial statements which represents 75% of planning 
materiality. This reflects the relatively low level of errors detected in 
our 2019/20 financial statements audit. 

Audit difference threshold – we propose that misstatements 
identified below this threshold of £46,000 for the single entity and 
£48,000 for the group statements are deemed clearly trivial. We will 
report to you all uncorrected misstatements over this amount 
relating to the comprehensive income and expenditure statement, 
balance sheet and collection fund that have an effect on income or 
that relate to other comprehensive income.

Other uncorrected misstatements, such as reclassifications and 
misstatements in the cashflow statement and movement in reserves 
statement or disclosures, and corrected misstatements will be 
communicated to the extent that they merit the attention of the 
Governance and Audit Committee, or are important from a 
qualitative perspective. 

Key definitions

We request that the Governance and Audit Committee confirm its 
understanding of, and agreement to, these materiality and reporting levels.

P
age 214



25

Scope of our audit05 01

P
age 215



26

Objective and scope of our audit

Under the Code of Audit Practice our principal objectives are to review and report on the Council’s financial statements and arrangements for securing 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources to the extent required by the relevant legislation and the requirements of the Code.

We issue an audit report that covers:

1. Financial statement audit 

Our objective is to form an opinion on the financial statements under International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). 

We also perform other procedures as required by auditing, ethical and independence standards, the Code and other regulations. We outline below the 
procedures we will undertake during the course of our audit.

Procedures required by standards
• Addressing the risk of fraud and error;
• Significant disclosures included in the financial statements;
• Entity-wide controls;
• Reading other information contained in the financial statements and reporting whether it is inconsistent with our understanding and the financial 

statements; and
• Auditor independence.

Procedures required by the Code
• Reviewing, and reporting on as appropriate, other information published with the financial statements, including the Annual Governance Statement; 

and
• Reviewing and reporting on the Whole of Government Accounts return, in line with the instructions issued by the NAO.

2. Arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness (value for money)

We are required to consider whether the Council has put in place ‘proper arrangements’ to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness on its use of 
resources.

Scope of our audit

P
age 216



27

Scope of our audit

Audit Process overview

Our audit involves: 
• Identifying and understanding the key processes and internal controls; and

• Substantive tests of detail of transactions and amounts.

For 2020/21 we plan to follow a substantive approach to the audit as we have concluded this is the most efficient way to obtain the level of audit 
assurance required to conclude that the financial statements are not materially misstated. Although we are therefore not intending to rely on individual 
system controls in 2020/21, the overarching control arrangements form part of our assessment of your overall control environment and will form part 
of the evidence for your Annual Governance Statement. 

Analytics

We will use our computer-based analytics tools to enable us to capture whole populations of your financial data, in particular journal entries. These 
tools:
• Help identify specific exceptions and anomalies which can then be subject to more traditional substantive audit tests; and 

• Give greater likelihood of identifying errors than random sampling techniques.

We will report the findings from our process and analytics work, including any significant weaknesses or inefficiencies identified and recommendations 
for improvement, to management and the Governance and Audit Committee. 

Internal audit

As in prior years we will review internal audit plans and the results of their work. We will reflect the findings from these reports, together with reports 
from any other work completed in the year, in our detailed audit plan, where they raise issues that could have an impact on the financial statements.

P
age 217



28

Group scoping

Our audit strategy for performing an audit of an entity with multiple locations is risk based. We identify components as:

1. Significant components: A component is significant when it is likely to include risks of material misstatement of the group financial 
statements, either because of its relative financial size to the group (quantitative criteria), or because of its specific nature or circumstances 
(qualitative criteria). We generally assign significant components a full or specific scope given their importance to the financial statements.

2. Not significant components: The number of additional components and extent of procedures performed depended primarily on: evidence 
from significant components, the effectiveness of group wide controls and the results of analytical procedures. 

For all other components we perform other procedures to confirm that there is no risk of material misstatement within those locations. These 
procedures are detailed below. 

Scope of our audit

Scoping by Entity

Our preliminary audit scopes by number of locations we have adopted 
are set out below. 

Full scope audits

Specific scope audits

Review scope audits

Specified procedures

1 A

1 B

0 C

0 D

1 E Other procedures

Scope definitions

Full scope: where a full audit is performed to the materiality levels 
assigned by the Group audit team for purposes of the consolidated audit. 

Specific scope: where the audit is limited to specific accounts or 
disclosures identified by the Group audit team based on the size and/or risk 
profile of those accounts.  

Review scope: where procedures primarily consist of analytical procedures 
and inquiries of management. On-site or desk top reviews may be 
performed, according to our assessment of risk and the availability of 
information centrally.

Specified Procedures: where the component team performs procedures 
specified by the Group audit team in order to respond to a risk identified.

Other procedures: Where we do not consider it material to the Group 
financial statements in terms of size relative to the Group and risk, we 
perform other procedures to confirm that there is no risk of material 
misstatement within those locations. 

Scoping the group audit

P
age 218



29

Scope of our audit

Scoping the group audit (continued) 
Coverage of Expenditure

We set audit scopes for each reporting unit which, when taken together, 
enable us to form an opinion on the group accounts. We take into account 
the size, risk profile, changes in the business environment, and other 
factors when assessing the level of work to be performed at each 
reporting unit.

Based on the group’s prior year results, our scoping is expected to achieve 
the following coverage of the group’s net cost of service expenditure.

Our audit approach is risk based and therefore the data above on 
coverage is provided for your information only.

of the group’s expenditure will 
be covered by specific scope 
and other procedures, with the 
remainder (99.7%) covered by 
the single entity’s audit

0.3%Expenditure

Details of specific scope and other procedures

Our approach to specific and other procedures is as follows:

• Direct testing of the material risk areas identified for Welland Homes 
Ltd;

• Review of group wide entity level controls;

• Perform analytics review procedures;

• Test consolidation procedures and journals;

• Enquiry of management about unusual transactions; and

• Review of management’s reconciliation of local statutory accounts to 
the group accounts.

Key changes in scope from last year

There are no changes in the scope from the previous year. 

The Council, as single entity, remains as our full scope audit.

Welland Homes Ltd remains a ‘significant component’, categorised as 
Specific scope.

P
age 219



30

Audit team06 01

P
age 220



31

Audit team

Audit team 

Audit team structure:

Mark Hodgson

Associate Partner

Alison Riglar

Manager

Charles Camano
Senior

We are working together with officers to 
identify continuing improvements in 
communication and processes for the 
2020/21 audit. 

We will continue to keep our audit approach 
under review to streamline it where possible.

Working together with the Council

Property 
Valuer

EY Actuaries

Pension 
Specialist

The engagement team is led by Mark Hodgson. Mark has significant public sector audit experience, with a portfolio of Local Authorities and Local Government Pension 
Funds and is a member of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA). 

Mark is supported by Alison Riglar, who is responsible for the day-to-day direction of audit work and is the key point of contact for the Finance Manager. The day to day 
audit team will be lead by Will Jupp. 

P
age 221



32

Audit team

Use of specialists
When auditing key judgements, we are often required to use the input and advice provided by specialists who have qualifications and expertise not 
possessed by the core audit team. The areas where specialists are expected to provide input for the current year audit are:

In accordance with Auditing Standards, we will evaluate each specialist’s professional competence and objectivity, considering their qualifications, 
experience and available resources, together with the independence of the individuals performing the work.

We also consider the work performed by the specialist in light of our knowledge of the Council’s business and processes and our assessment of audit risk 
in the particular area. For example, we would typically perform the following procedures:

• Analyse source data and make inquiries as to the procedures used by the specialist to establish whether the source data is relevant and reliable;

• Assess the reasonableness of the assumptions and methods used; 

• Consider the appropriateness of the timing of when the specialist carried out the work; and

• Assess whether the substance of the specialist’s findings are properly reflected in the financial statements.

Area Specialists

Pensions disclosure

EY Pensions Advisory

PwC (Consulting Actuary to the National Audit Office)

Hymans Robertson – Actuary to Lincolnshire Pension Fund

Valuation of Land and Buildings
We will consider any valuation aspects that may require EY valuation specialists to review any material 
specialist assets and the underlying assumptions used by the Council’s valuers, Kier / Wilks, Head and Eve.

Fair Value Investment Measurement
Link Asset Services (the Council’s management expert for the provision of fair value information in respect of 
financial instruments)

NDR Appeals Provision Analyse Local are engaged by the Council for support in the calculation of the NDR Appeals Provision. 

P
age 222



33

Audit timeline07 01

P
age 223



34

Audit timeline

Below is a timetable showing the key stages of the audit and the deliverables we have agreed to provide to you through the audit cycle in 2020/21.

From time to time matters may arise that require immediate communication with the Governance and Audit Committee and we will discuss them with 
the Governance and Audit Committee Chair as appropriate. We will also provide updates on corporate governance and regulatory matters as 
necessary.

Timeline

Timetable of communication and deliverables

Jun Aug DecJul OctMay Sep Nov JanApr

Initial Planning Substantive testing

Planning and 
Walkthroughs

Risk assessment and 
setting of scopes. 

Walkthroughs of key 
systems and 
processes

Audit Plan

Reporting our 
independence, risk 

assessment, planned 
audit approach and the 

scope of our audit

Auditor’s Annual Report
(timing TBC)

The Auditor’s Annual Report 
will provide a commentary 

on the Council’s 
arrangements for Value for 

Money

Audit Results Report

Reporting our conclusions 
on key judgements and 

estimates and confirmation 
of our independence

Year End Audit

Work begins on our year end 
audit. This is when we will 

complete all of our substantive 
testing

Feb

P
age 224



35

Independence08 01

P
age 225



36

Introduction

The FRC Ethical Standard and ISA (UK) 260 “Communication of audit matters with those charged with governance”, requires us to communicate with you 
on a timely basis on all significant facts and matters that bear upon our integrity, objectivity and independence. The Ethical Standard, as revised in 
December 2019, requires that we communicate formally both at the planning stage and at the conclusion of the audit, as well as during the course of the 
audit if appropriate.  The aim of these communications is to ensure full and fair disclosure by us to those charged with your governance on matters in which 
you have an interest.

In addition, during the course of the audit, we are required to communicate with you whenever any significant judgements are made about threats to 
objectivity and independence and the appropriateness of safeguards put in place, for example, when accepting an engagement to provide non-audit 
services.

We ensure that the total amount of fees that EY and our network firms have charged to you and your affiliates for the provision of services during the 
reporting period, analysed in appropriate categories, are disclosed.

Required communications

Planning stage Final stage

► The principal threats, if any, to objectivity and 
independence identified by Ernst & Young (EY) 
including consideration of all relationships 
between you, your affiliates and directors and 
us;

► The safeguards adopted and the reasons why 
they are considered to be effective, including 
any Engagement Quality review;

► The overall assessment of threats and 
safeguards;

► Information about the general policies and 
process within EY to maintain objectivity and 
independence.

► In order for you to assess the integrity, objectivity and independence of the firm and each 
covered person, we are required to provide a written disclosure of relationships (including the 
provision of non-audit services) that may bear on our integrity, objectivity and independence. 
This is required to have regard to relationships with the entity, its directors and senior 
management, its affiliates, and its connected parties and the threats to integrity or objectivity, 
including those that could compromise independence that these create.  We are also required to 
disclose any safeguards that we have put in place and why they address such threats, together 
with any other information necessary to enable our objectivity and independence to be assessed;

► Details of non-audit/additional services provided and the fees charged in relation thereto;

► Written confirmation that the firm and each covered person is  independent and, if applicable, 
that any non-EY firms used in the group audit or external experts used have confirmed their 
independence to us;

► Details of any non-audit/additional services to a UK PIE audit client where there are differences 
of professional opinion concerning the engagement between the Ethics Partner and Engagement 
Partner and where the final conclusion differs from the professional opinion of the Ethics Partner

► Details of any inconsistencies between FRC Ethical Standard and your  policy for the supply of 
non-audit services by EY and any apparent breach of that policy; 

► Details of all breaches of the IESBA Code of Ethics, the FRC Ethical Standard and professional 
standards, and of any safeguards applied and actions taken by EY to address any threats to 
independence; and

► An opportunity to discuss auditor independence issues.

P
age 226



37

Independence

We highlight the following significant facts and matters that may be reasonably considered to bear upon our objectivity and independence, including the 
principal threats, if any.  We have adopted the safeguards noted below to mitigate these threats along with the reasons why they are considered to be 
effective. However we will only perform non –audit services if the service has been pre-approved in accordance with your policy.

Self interest threats

A self interest threat arises when EY has financial or other interests in the Council.  Examples include where we receive significant fees in respect of non-
audit services; where we need to recover long outstanding fees; or where we enter into a business relationship with you.  At the time of writing, there are 
no long outstanding fees. 

We believe that it is appropriate for us to undertake those permitted non-audit/additional services set out in Section 5.40 of the FRC Ethical Standard 
2019 (FRC ES), and we will comply with the policies that you have approved 

When the ratio of non-audit fees to audit fees exceeds 1:1, we are required to discuss this with our Ethics Partner, as set out by the FRC ES, and if 
necessary agree additional safeguards or not accept the non-audit engagement.  We will also discuss this with you. 

A self interest threat may also arise if members of our audit engagement team have objectives or are rewarded in relation to sales of non-audit services 
to you.  We confirm that no member of our audit engagement team, including those from other service lines, has objectives or is rewarded in relation to 
sales to you, in compliance with Ethical Standard part 4.

There are no other self interest threats at the date of this report.

Overall Assessment

Overall, we consider that the safeguards that have been adopted appropriately mitigate the principal threats identified and we therefore confirm that EY 
is independent and the objectivity and independence of Mark Hodgson, your audit engagement partner, and the audit engagement team have not been 
compromised. 

Relationships, services and related threats and safeguards

Self review threats

Self review threats arise when the results of a non-audit service performed by EY or others within the EY network are reflected in the amounts included 
or disclosed in the financial statements.

There are no self review threats at the date of this report. 

Management threats

Partners and employees of EY are prohibited from taking decisions on behalf of management of the Council.  Management threats may also arise during 
the provision of a non-audit service in relation to which management is required to make judgements or decision based on that work.

There are no management threats at the date of this report. 

P
age 227



38

Independence

Other threats

Other threats, such as advocacy, familiarity or intimidation, may arise.

There are no other threats at the date of this report. 

Relationships, services and related threats and safeguards

EY Transparency Report 2020

Ernst & Young (EY) has policies and procedures that instil professional values as part of firm culture and ensure that the highest standards of objectivity, 
independence and integrity are maintained. 

Details of the key policies and processes in place within EY for maintaining objectivity and independence can be found in our annual Transparency Report 
which the firm is required to publish by law. The most recent version of this Report is for the year ended 1 July 2020 and can be found here: 

https://www.ey.com/uk/en/about-us/ey-uk-transparency-report-2020

Other communications

P
age 228

https://www.ey.com/uk/en/about-us/ey-uk-transparency-report-2020


39

Appendices09 01

P
age 229



40

Appendix A

Fees

Planned fee 2020/21 Scale fee 2020/21 Final Fee 2019/20

£’s £’s £’s

Total Fee – Code work 34,293 34,293 34,293

Changes in work required to address professional and regulatory requirements and 
scope associated with risk  (see Note 1)

26,540
26,540

Audit of the group account consolidation 3,707 3,707

Revised Proposed Scale Fee  64,540 34,293 64,540

Additional work:

2019/20 Additional Procedures required and as reported within the Annual Audit 
Letter (Note 2)

- - 16,971

2020/21 Additional Procedures required in response to the additional risks identified 
in this Audit Plan in respect of:
• Accounting for Covid-19 related Government Grant income, NDR Appeals 

provision, Collection Fund Accounting, Recoverability of Receivables, New Payroll 
System, Going Concern.

Note 3 -

Total fees TBC 34,293 81,511

The duty to prescribe fees is a statutory function delegated to Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) by the Secretary of State for Housing, Communities and Local 
Government.  

This is defined as the fee required by auditors to meet statutory responsibilities under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in accordance with the requirements of 
the Code of Audit Practice and supporting guidance published by the National Audit Office, the financial reporting requirements set out in the Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting published by CIPFA/LASAAC, and the professional standards applicable to auditors’ work.

All fees exclude VAT

Note 1 - For 2019/20 we have proposed an increase to the scale fee to reflect the increased level of audit work required which has been impacted by a range of 
factors, as detailed in our 2019/20 Audit Results Report. Our proposed increase has been discussed with management and is with PSAA for determination. For 
2020/21 the scale fee has again been re-assessed to take into account the same recurring risk factors as in 2019/20 and is subject to approval by PSAA Ltd.

Note 2 - The 2019/20 Additional Procedures fee was reported in our Annual Audit Letter. The fee has been discussed with Management and is subject to formal 
determination by PSAA Ltd.  

Note 3 - We cannot quantify the impact of any work resulting as a response to the C-19 audit risks set out in this plan for 2020/21 at this point. We will provide 
an update on the additional fee implications at the conclusion of the audit.

P
age 230



41

Our Reporting to you

Required 
communications

What is reported? When and where

Terms of engagement Confirmation by the Governance and Audit Committee of acceptance of terms of 
engagement as written in the engagement letter signed by both parties.

The statement of responsibilities serves as 
the formal terms of engagement between 
the PSAA’s appointed auditors and audited 
bodies. 

Our responsibilities Reminder of our responsibilities as set out in the engagement letter The statement of responsibilities serves as 
the formal terms of engagement between 
the PSAA’s appointed auditors and audited 
bodies.

Planning and audit 
approach 

Communication of the planned scope and timing of the audit, any limitations and the 
significant risks identified.

When communicating key audit matters this includes the most significant risks of 
material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) including those that have the 
greatest effect on the overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the audit 
and directing the efforts of the engagement team

Audit Plan - 29 July 2021 - Governance 
and Audit Committee

VFM Risk Assessment – September 2021 –
Governance and Audit Committee 

Significant findings from 
the audit 

• Our view about the significant qualitative aspects of accounting practices 
including accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement 
disclosures

• Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit

• Significant matters, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed with 
management

• Written representations that we are seeking

• Expected modifications to the audit report

• Other matters if any, significant to the oversight of the financial reporting 
process

Audit Results Report – 13 January 2022 -
Governance and Audit Committee

Annual Auditors Report (including VFM 
Commentary) – February 2022 –
Governance and Audit Committee 

Appendix B

Required communications with the Governance and Audit Committee

We have detailed the communications that we must provide to the Governance and Audit Committee.

P
age 231



42

Our Reporting to you

Required 
communications

What is reported? When and where

Appendix B

Required communications with the Governance and Audit Committee 
(continued)

Going concern Events or conditions identified that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability 
to continue as a going concern, including:

• Whether the events or conditions constitute a material uncertainty

• Whether the use of the going concern assumption is appropriate in the 
preparation and presentation of the financial statements

• The adequacy of related disclosures in the financial statements

Audit Results Report – 13 January 2022 -
Governance and Audit Committee

Misstatements • Uncorrected misstatements and their effect on our audit opinion, unless 
prohibited by law or regulation 

• The effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods 

• A request that any uncorrected misstatement be corrected 

• Corrected misstatements that are significant

• Material misstatements corrected by management 

Audit Results Report – 13 January 2022 -
Governance and Audit Committee

Fraud • Enquiries of the Governance and Audit Committee to determine whether they 
have knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud affecting the entity

• Any fraud that we have identified or information we have obtained that indicates 
that a fraud may exist

• A discussion of any other matters related to fraud

Audit Results Report – 13 January 2022 -
Governance and Audit Committee

Related parties Significant matters arising during the audit in connection with the entity’s related 
parties including, when applicable:

• Non-disclosure by management 

• Inappropriate authorisation and approval of transactions 

• Disagreement over disclosures 

• Non-compliance with laws and regulations 

• Difficulty in identifying the party that ultimately controls the entity 

Audit Results Report – 13 January 2022 -
Governance and Audit Committee

P
age 232



43

Appendix B

Required communications with the Governance and Audit Committee 
(continued)

Our Reporting to you

Required 
communications

What is reported? When and where

Independence Communication of all significant facts and matters that bear on EY’s, and all 
individuals involved in the audit, objectivity and independence

Communication of key elements of the audit engagement partner’s consideration of 
independence and objectivity such as:

• The principal threats

• Safeguards adopted and their effectiveness

• An overall assessment of threats and safeguards

• Information about the general policies and process within the firm to maintain 
objectivity and independence

Audit Plan - 29 July 2021 - Governance 
and Audit Committee

Audit Results Report – 13 January 2022 -
Governance and Audit Committee

External confirmations • Management’s refusal for us to request confirmations 

• Inability to obtain relevant and reliable audit evidence from other procedures

Audit Results Report – 13 January 2022 -
Governance and Audit Committee

Consideration of laws 
and regulations 

• Audit findings regarding non-compliance where the non-compliance is material 
and believed to be intentional. This communication is subject to compliance with 
legislation on tipping off

• Enquiry of the Governance and Audit Committee into possible instances of non-
compliance with laws and regulations that may have a material effect on the 
financial statements and that the Committee may be aware of

Audit Results Report – 13 January 2022 -
Governance and Audit Committee

Internal controls • Significant deficiencies in internal controls identified during the audit Audit Results Report – 13 January 2022 -
Governance and Audit Committee

Representations • Written representations we are requesting from management and/or those 
charged with governance

Audit Results Report – 13 January 2022 -
Governance and Audit Committee

Material inconsistencies 
and misstatements

• Material inconsistencies or misstatements of fact identified in other information 
which management has refused to revise

Audit Results Report – 13 January 2022 -
Governance and Audit Committee

Auditors report • Key audit matters that we will include in our auditor’s report

• Any circumstances identified that affect the form and content of our auditor’s 
report

Audit Results Report – 13 January 2022 -
Governance and Audit Committee

P
age 233



44

Appendix C

Additional audit information

Our 
responsibilities  
required by 
auditing 
standards

• Identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. 

• Obtaining an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Council’s internal control.

• Evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by management. 

• Concluding on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting. 

• Evaluating the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the 
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

• Obtaining sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the 
Council to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. Reading other information contained in the financial 
statements, including the board’s statement that the annual report is fair, balanced and understandable, the Audit Committee 
reporting appropriately addresses matters communicated by us to the Committee and reporting whether it is materially 
inconsistent with our understanding and the financial statements; and 

• Maintaining auditor independence.

Other required procedures during the course of the audit

In addition to the key areas of audit focus outlined in section 02, we have to perform other procedures as required by auditing, ethical and independence 
standards and other regulations. We outline the procedures below that we will undertake during the course of our audit.

Purpose and evaluation of materiality 

For the purposes of determining whether the accounts are free from material error, we define materiality as the magnitude of an omission or 
misstatement that, individually or in the aggregate, in light of the surrounding circumstances, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of the users of the financial statements. Our evaluation of it requires professional judgement and necessarily takes into account qualitative as 
well as quantitative considerations implicit in the definition. We would be happy to discuss with you your expectations regarding our detection of 
misstatements in the financial statements. 

Materiality determines the locations at which we conduct audit procedures to support the opinion given on the financial statements; and the level of work 
performed on individual account balances and financial statement disclosures.

The amount we consider material at the end of the audit may differ from our initial determination. At this stage, however, it is not feasible to anticipate 
all of the circumstances that may ultimately influence our judgement about materiality. At the end of the audit we will form our final opinion by reference 
to all matters that could be significant to users of the accounts, including the total effect of the audit misstatements we identify, and our evaluation of 
materiality at that date.

P
age 234



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

Report of: Assistant Director Governance (Monitoring Officer) – Mark Stinson  

 

To: Governance and Audit Committee - Thursday, 29 July 2021  

 

(Author: Christine Morgan Democratic Services Officer) 

 

Subject Governance and Audit Committee Work Programme 

 

Purpose: To set out the Work Programme of the Governance and Audit Committee 

 

Recommendation: 
 
That the Committee gives consideration to the content of this report and identifies any issues for 
discussion. 
 

 

1.0 BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 The Governance and Audit Committee regularly considers a variety of reports from Internal 

Audit, External Audit and the Section 151 Officer.  
 

1.2 Many of these reports are considered at regular intervals, the majority being annually, half-
yearly or quarterly. 

 
1.3 In addition to these reports, the Committee also considers issues on an ad-hoc basis with 

some reports arising from consideration of items at previous meetings. 
 
1.4 Attached at Appendix A to this report is the Work Programme for the Governance and Audit 

Committee.  It lays out the meeting dates for the 2021/22 municipal year. Alongside each of 
these meeting dates are issues considered by the Committee on a regular basis together 
with the author of the report, its purpose and whether it is mandatory, and the frequency 
with which it is considered. 
 

1.5 It has been agreed that this Work Programme be a regular item for consideration on the 

 Committee’s agenda, thus creating a formal document laying out the work of the 

 Committee in a clear, structured and organised way. 

1.6 The attached document contains items considered on a regular basis, and also any ad 

 hoc issues as and when they arise, for example, issues raised at a meeting to be 

 covered at a future meeting, and any one-off issues.  

2.0 OPTIONS 

2.1 To note and consider the current status of the Work Programme.  
 

2.2 To do nothing. 
 

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 

3.1 To allow Committee members to feed into the Work Programme on a regular basis, to 
ensure that it stays relevant and up to date. 

Page 235

Agenda Item 15.



 

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS 

4.1 The Work Programme is a formal document laying out the work of the Committee in a 
clear, structured and organised way, thus providing members with up to date and relevant 
information. 

 

5.0 IMPLICATIONS 

5.1  Constitution & Legal 
 

5.1.1 Constitutional and Legal implications have been considered and in the opinion of the 

author, there are none arising out of this report.   However, the Work Programme should 

assist in providing a clear programme of work for the Governance and Audit Committee in 

line with the requirements laid out in the Council’s Constitution. 

5.2  Risk Management  
 

5.2.1 Risk Management implications have been considered and in the opinion of the author, 

 there are none.  However, one of the roles of the Governance and Audit Committee is to 

 monitor the effective development and operation of risk management and corporate 

 governance in the Council, and the Work Programme should assist in keeping track of 

 risk issues. 

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED 

6.1 No wards or communities will be affected by this post. 
 

7.0 ACRONYMS  

7.1 None. 
 

Background papers:- None 

 

Lead Contact Officer 

Name and Post: Christine Morgan Democratic Services Officer 

Telephone Number  

Email: cmorgan@sholland.gov.uk 

 

Key Decision: No 

Exempt Decision: No 

 

This report refers to a Mandatory Service 

Appendices attached to this report:  

Appendix A Work Programme for the Governance and Audit Committee 

Page 236



 
APPENDIX A 

 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT – CALENDAR OF WORK PROGRAMME ITEMS 2021/22 

 
 

Date of Meeting Agenda item Author Purpose and whether mandatory Frequency 
 

29 July 2021 Audit Plan 2020/21 
 

External Audit 
(Ernst & Young) 
 

External Audit Plan – Mandatory 
Approval 
 
 

Annual 

 Annual Audit Letter 2019/20 
 

External Audit 
(Ernst & Young) 

Mandatory/Consultation requirement. 
To approve audit fees. 

Annual 

 Internal Audit – Audit Plan Progress 
Report 2020-21   

Internal Audit  To update Committee on progress of 
the plan. 
Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role. 

To each 
meeting 

 Follow up report on Internal Audit 
recommendations   

Internal Audit Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role. 
 

To each 
meeting 
 

 Annual Report and Opinion (report on the 
past year) 2020-21  

Internal Audit Internal Audit opinion to support draft 
Annual Governance Statement 
Mandatory 

Annual 
 
 

 21/22 Strategic and Annual Internal Audit 
Plans 

Internal Audit   

 Counter Fraud and Corruption Policy 
 

Internal Audit To comply with the Committee’s 
Terms of Reference, as detailed in the 
Constitution – ‘To review and approve 
all Council policies and strategies that 
relate to the prevention of fraud and 
corruption, including polices on 
counter fraud, whistleblowing, and 
money laundering’. 

Every 3 
years-next 
due March 
2024 

     

P
age 237



Date of Meeting Agenda item Author Purpose and whether mandatory Frequency 
 

 Unaudited financial statements 2020/21 
including Narrative Report and Annual 
Governance Statement 
A verbal update will be provided at the 
meeting.  Report to be presented to next 
Committee meeting 

Section 151 Officer To approve financial statements prior 
to release to External Audit. 
Mandatory 

Annual 
 
 
 

 Approval of Annual Governance 
Statement, for inclusion with the 
Council’s published financial statements 
and approval of the audited 20/21 
financial statements 
A verbal update will be provided at the 
meeting.  Report to be presented to next 
Committee meeting 

Section 151 Officer Mandatory – approval required Annual 

 Annual Treasury Management Review  Section 151 Officer To comply with Treasury 
Management Strategy. 
Mandatory 
 

Annual 

 Q4 2020-21 Risk Report  Corey Gooch Part of Governance role – not 
mandatory 
 

To each 
meeting 

 Q1 2021-22 Risk Report   Corey Gooch Part of Governance role – not 
mandatory 

To each 
meeting 

11 November 2021 SHDC Annual Audit Letter 2020/21 
 

External Audit 
(Ernst & Young) 
 

Mandatory/Consultation requirement. 
To approve audit fees. 
 

Annual 

 Audit Results Report 20/21 
 

External Audit 
(Ernst & Young) 

Mandatory report to those charged 
with Governance 

Annual 
 
 

 Internal Audit – Audit Plan Progress 
Report 2021-22 

Internal Audit To update Committee on progress of 
the plan. 
Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role. 

To each 
meeting. 
 
 

P
age 238



Date of Meeting Agenda item Author Purpose and whether mandatory Frequency 
 

 Follow up report on Internal Audit 
recommendations 

Internal Audit Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role. 

To each 
meeting. 
 

 Governance and Audit Committee Self 
Assessment 

Internal Audit For confirmation. 
Good practice. 

Annual 
 
 

 Mid Term Treasury Report 21/22 Section 151 Officer To comply with Treasury 
Management Strategy reporting 
requirements 

Half-yearly 

 Q2 2021-22 Risk Report Corey Gooch Part of Governance role – not 
mandatory 

To each 
meeting 

13 January 2022 Housing Benefit Grant Claims 20/21 External Audit 
(KPMG) 

External Audit Certification of Grant 
Claims – Mandatory Approval 

Annual 

 Internal Audit – Audit Plan Progress 
Report 2021-22 

Internal Audit To update Committee on progress of 
the plan. 
Not mandatory but part of 
Governance role. 

To each 
meeting 

 Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement, Mnimum Revenue Provision 
Policy Statement and Annual Investment 
Strategy 2022/23  

Section 151 Officer Mandatory requirement. 
To review Treasury Managmenet 
Strategy and approve Prudential 
Indicators. 
 

Annual 

 Q3 2021-22 Risk Report Corey Gooch Part of Governance role – not 
mandatory 
 

To each 
meeting 

17 March 2022 Audit Plan 21/22 
 

External Audit 
(Ernst & Young) 
 

External Audit Plan – Mandatory 
Approval 
 

Annual 

 Internal Audit – Audit Plan Progress 
Report 2021-22 

Internal Audit  To update Committee on progress of 
the plan. 
Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role. 

To each 
meeting 

P
age 239



Date of Meeting Agenda item Author Purpose and whether mandatory Frequency 
 

 

 Strategic and Annual Internal Audit Plan 
2022/23 

Internal Audit 
 

Annual Internal Audit Workplan - 
Mandatory approval 
 

Annual 

 Follow up report on Internal Audit 
recommendations 

Internal Audit Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role. 
 

To each 
meeting 
 

 Financial Statements 2021/22 
Accounting Policies  
 

Section 151 Officer 
 

Not mandatory, but good practice. Annual 
 

 
The following item to be added to the Committee’s Work Programme on an ad hoc basis, where there is information to report: 
 

 March 2024 – Diarise to review the Counter Fraud, Corruption and Bribery Policy, and the Whistleblowing Policy (to be reviewed every 
three years, last reviewed March 2021 (Whistleblowing Policy) and 29 July 2021 (Counter Fraud, Corruption and Bribery Policy). 

P
age 240


	Agenda
	3. Minutes
	4. Progress Report on Internal Audit Activity
	Appendix A

	5. Follow Up Report on Internal Audit Recommendations
	Appendix A

	6. Annual Report and Opinion 2020/21
	Appendix A

	7. Annual Treasury Management Review 2020/21
	8. Strategic and Annual Internal Audit Plans 2021/22
	Appendix A

	9. Q4 Strategic Risk Report
	Appendix 1

	10. Q1 Strategic Risk Report
	Appendix 1 for Q1 Risk Report

	11. Counter-Fraud and Corruption Policy
	Appendix A

	13. 2019-20 Annual Audit Letter
	14. 2020/21 External Audit Plan
	15. Governance and Audit Committee Work Programme
	Appendix A


